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GROUP STRUCTURE

W (M) ARAA

CHINA RESOURCES (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED

59.55%*

I A A )
1.43% * China Resources Land Limited

72.29%*

EWEREFAHR A

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

T TR

EEYXEERS BXEERYMEEERY
Residential Property - Commercial Operational and
Management Services _ Property Management Services

AFELRBEYTOERIER B
754 EEIEE 1 22 Number of Contracted Shopping Mall under
Projects under management commercial operational services
RFELRBEYTROEMERBH
1 041 &RIEE 69 Number of Opened Shopping Mall under
9 Contracted projects commercial operational services
i14l EESEBEDPOEFREEBE
° EE@E 2 Number of Opened Subleasing
BEFH¥% sqgm. inmilion  GFA under management Shopping Mall
]_ AFELRBEFESRAEEH
° ARmE 3 O Number of Contracted Office under
BHET Ak sqm. inmiion  Contracted GFA commercial operational services
AMXELRBEFTECFEEBE
25 Number of Opened Office under commercial

operational services

* HE-T=-_—F+=-A=+—H
As of 31 December 2021
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EPERETERATUTEE  EHERET > RENTBE1209.HK) 2t F 50058 1
¥EPEEETERERELEPREMNREQAT  RYEELENYEEEREEEE
REE - EBERETERREE  RAEFEENEENETRELETRET INLE
S BESUNELRKEED ZENLELERREAN—BLLEEBRER B HITE
(2% - 2FF  2EREZRE NETREEZTREES -

‘; BEXEBASHEREBYHORE U TEBRHE] - [BRXt] - [BREI S
k) % BOmE BETRELNHRELE) BREMERERE  BETE [HEHX
(1 = BEEEE-—mE| -VEXBBERELE HHOLAZE RFEREXE=AE

B U TBRRE] AkbRiE  BE2E  2XE6R > BORER [TERAXED
BT ERELREE] -

BZE2021F128310  ERERETREVEEERKENIEREEYEEERED
EN1.648EFTLK  REBEELERENBYPI LR EFTERZEEBHNI.0EELES

N2

o % -
.5ﬁ-' K% DEABMAHNZENNEA  BREAFEBATBRONES  BETE—
il ! BILERBER  BABTRE  SERFEE -

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited (“CR Mixc Lifestyle”) (stock code: 1209.
HK) is a member of CR Land, a strategic business unit of CR Group, a Fortune Global
500 company, and is the leading property management and commercial operational
services provider in China. Upholding to our corporate vision to “become a trustworthy
and popular urban quality-life service provider among customers”, CR Mixc Lifestyle
fully capitalizes on the superior operational capabilities, abundant ecological resources
and strong integrated membership system to build an urban quality-life service platform
featured with “multiple property types, all customers and full spectrum of product and
service offerings”.

Our commercial management business focuses on high-end and high-quality shopping
mall segment and, by promoting “MIXC"”, MIXC World” and “MIXONE"” as our core
brands and leveraging on our industrial-leading commercial operational capabilities,
our aim of high quality and large- scale development has been persistently pursued,
striving to become “the PRC's first brand in commercial operational and management”.
For property management business, concentrating on three main segments, namely
high-quality community, urban public space and office buildings and industrial parks,
and using “MIXC Services” as the core brand, we uphold to our business layout
of covering all property types across all regions so as to become “the PRC’s most
influential urban space operational service provider”.

As of 31 December 2021, the GFA of the residential and commercial properties under
our property management services was approximately 164.8 million sq.m. and the GFA
of the shopping malls and office buildings under our commercial operational services
was approximately 9.0 million sq.m.

In the future, the Company will further increase investment in technology and take
technological innovation as the core edge to continuously strengthen our integrated
ecosystem, facilitate urban development and play a leading role in creating people’s
happy life.
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COMPANY HONOR

MERHEFEHLETOPI00
B—8 — BHEALE

First among Top 100 Most
Influential Commercial Real
Estate Enterprises —

Van Sound Club

TEMERBLESEEEE
R TOP10 NO.1 — BEIEH
MRk

No. 1 among Top 10 Property
Service Enterprise in Terms
of Multiple Type Operational
Services in China —
Guandian Index Academy

HEIYEREBEREETOP10
— FEHER

Top 10 Property Service
Enterprise in China —
China Index Academy

PEYERBEE LT AR
1038TOP7 — ZEREHERRKR
No. 7 among Top 10 Listed
Property Services Companies
in China — E-House Real
Estate Research Institute

\
MERBELEFZESED
TOPS — R ¥I#fi

Top 8 Property Service
Enterprises in Terms of
Comprehensive Strengths —
China Property Management
Research Institution

FEIREEMETOP100E — &
— B EBHRR

First among Top 100 China
Commercial Real Estate —
Guandian Index Academy

BEMEDERRETOP100
F—8 - BHEYEHRR

First among Top 100
Commercial Property
Enterprises with Outstanding
Performance — Guandian
Index Academy

HEIR¥BETOP1001EE
F—F - BHHESR

First among Top 100 China
Commercial Real Estate —
Guandian Property Institute

TEMEREFELEEER |
¥ — PEEEWRR
Enterprise with Corporate
Social Responsibility in the
PRC Property Management
Service industry — China
Index Academy

MERBLEENBAR —
HEYEEEGS
Potential Unicorn of
Property Management
Service — China Property
Management Research
Institution

TERYEBEREmE —
ZELEEE — Rk
China Property Quality
Service Brand —

CRIC China
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B EZE NTOP10%E —
£— FEBEEELETOP100
HRAE

First among Top 10
Commercial Property

TEYEEERTRREE
ENE— PEEBHRR
11th among Top 100

Property Management | HE YRS BB R Companies in terms of |
Companies in China — : DAY — hEEEEE Ind.ustry Influenc.:e - h
China Index Academy 3 China Leading Property China Commercial Property =
§ - . Top 100 Research Group

. X o W Management Companies ¥
in terms of Characteristic . . T ¥,

Service — China Index L o A B R T i

Academy | BE10BE—% — PEEE

EF EXmE

First among Best 10 of
Operations of China
Commercial Real Estate
Developers — China Real !
Estate Association

. TEREMECEREEERE
 10BE-E - PEEMEXR
. o

 First among Best 10 of

-",‘ China Commercial Real

a Estate Developers Brand
E Value — China Real Estate
&

PR ETOP1001EE
F—F—- BEHER

5 First among Top 100 China

~ Commercial Real Estate —

Guandian Property Institute

Association

PEEEGLERROES -
E— HEESHER

First among Top 100
Commercial Property
Companies in China —
China Index Academy

gﬂﬁriﬁ.xr
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NATIONWIDE PRESENCE

1"“553335' -
| FEYFEEEEE

GFA under management of residential properties

1 146.8

A& 7K Million Square Meters

EEWHESNEE
Contracted GFA of residential properties

165.9

A&7k Million Square Meters

BYHLTER

Retail sales of shopping malls

113.9

AR¥-+{&7T RMB Billion

EREBYTLEE

Number of opened shopping malls

/1

EREBYTOEE
GFA of opened shopping malls

7.0

A& K Million Square Meters

gEHE
Number of members

2,000

& Ten thousands
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

BEER

2020 Year-on-Year Growth

RENEEBRY Residential Property Management Services
ARBEEE(TERK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in thousands) 185,904 142,922 30.1%
AREEEENEREA Number of projects for contracted GFA 1,041 854 21.9%
EEREEBE(TEAK) GFA under management (sg.m. in thousands) 146,833 106,563 37.8%
EERLERENELHA Number of projects for GFA under management 754 553 36.3%
BUROEEEERER Commercial Operational Services and Property

NEEBRRK Management Services for Shopping Malls
ARRERE(TEAK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in thousands) 13,014 10,099 28.9%
AREERENEEHA Number of projects for contracted GFA 122 99 23.2%
CREBEREERRE(TERX) GFA of projects opened (sg.m. in thousands) 7,378 6,126 20.4%
ERZERYA Number of projects opened 09 57 21.1%
ETEHEEERE Commercial Operational Services for Office buildings
ARREEBE(TEAK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in thousands) 1,900 1,771 7.3%
ARBERENERHE Number of projects for contracted GFA 30 29 3.4%
BEFLRBOEEEBE(TEAK)  GFA under commercial operational services

(sg.m. in thousands) 1,622 1,481 9.5%

HEELREAERHA Number of projects under commercial operational services 25 23 8.7%
BETRINEEERY Property Management Services for Office buildings
ARBEmE(TERK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in thousands) 10,003 7,341 36.3%
ARBREERENERHA Number of projects for contracted GFA 127 9% 35.1%
MEEBRENRERR GFA under property management services (sq.m. in

(FEAXK) thousands) 8,213 5,690 44.3%
MEERRBHEREE Number of projects under property management services 115 80 43.8%
FTEHKEN(ARBEET) SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (RMB million)
W Revenue 8.875 6,779 30.9%
ES| Gross Profit 2,759 1,827 51.0%
BAREE AEEERRT Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 1,725 818 110.9%
BRREEABEERNZOFEF Core net profit attributable to owners of the parent 1,702 816 108.5%
ITEEERRYB(ARYEEER) SELECTED BALANCE SHEET DATA (RMB million)
BEE Total assets 21,592 19,076 13.2%
BafE Total liabilities 7.703 6,613 16.5%
Em e Total equity 13,889 12,463 11.4%
TEMBLE SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS
EF% Gross profit margin 31.1% 27.0% +4.1pt
FRE® Net profit margin 19.4% 12.1% +7.3pt
BLFHE= Core net profit margin 19.2% 12.0% +7.2pt
BREXEBF  (ARET) Basic earnings per share, (RMB) 0.756 0.485 55.9%

1 ZECEFEXNARKE  FEEREFEER 1
B R E LIRS IERIEEESPIRT - REHEH
HEBEDFEHRRRERB —0  LE
BITHIREF -

In and before June 2020, the Group’s commercial operational services
to offices, as inter-departmental services, formed part of the CR Land’s
integrated commercial property development and investment business,
thus there were no additional charges on such services.
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| am pleased to present the annual business review and outlook of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 to the shareholders.

During 2021, the global economy continued to be suffered from
COVID-19. In face of the complicated external situation and the
challenges brought by the variant virus, the GDP of the PRC recorded a
YoY growth of 8.1%, while the total domestic retail sales of consumer
goods exceeded RMBA40 trillion, enabling the PRC to become the
world’s second largest consumer market and demonstrating a solid
step towards quality development of the “14th Five-Year Plan”. In
recent years, under the principle of “houses are for living in, not for
speculation”, the PRC real estate industry was subject to adjustment
and reformation. On the one hand, with more notable Matthew Effect,
the industry integration had been accelerating, while on the other
hand, the separate operations of the commercial management and
property management businesses of real estate conglomerates for
capital market integration had become a new trend. The commercial
management business was benefited from the continued returning
of high-end consumption of luxury goods, the expanding population
of middle class and the growing Z Generation, and the rapid growth
of high-end and high quality business market. Supported by the
favourable national policies, the property management business
enjoyed major development opportunities. Meanwhile, the significant
valuation differentiation of the property management business in the
capital market and the debt risk of their respective parent company
resulted in disposal of the property management business. The leading
property management companies entered into the window phase of
integration.
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In 2021, the Group further facilitated marketization. By establishing
solid management foundation and speeding up business development,
all of our core performance indicators experienced rapid growth.
On the first anniversary of the Listing, we released our brand value,
"leading quality life in urban cities and enhancing space asset value
through smart services”, and our brand concept, “Extraordinary
MIXC". All of the above demonstrated a good start of the “14th Five-
Year Plan”. The Group realized a consolidated revenue of RMB8.875
billion, an increase of 30.9% YoY and a core net profit of RMB1.702
billion, a significant increase of 108.5% YoY. The Group's earnings per
share relating to core net profit was RMBO0.746. The board of directors
(the “Board”) of the Company has resolved to declare a final dividend
of RMBO0.276 (equivalent to HK$0.339) per share, a significant increase
of 109.1% YoY, with an payout rate of 37.0%.

During the year, with 17 years of exploration and innovation, the
commercial management business of the Group grew strongly through
establishment of three core product lines, "MIXC", "MIXONE" and
"MIXC World"”, which offered a refreshed branding for consistently
reaching the target of becoming “the PRC's first brand in commercial
management”. By continuously improving operational quality and
efficiency, the core indicators of the Group recorded steady increase.
The annual retail sales of our shopping malls under management hit
record high, representing a YoY increase of 43.8% and exceeding
RMB100 billion. Operating profit margin rose 9.9 percentage YoY,
which drove a significant YoY increase in the revenue from operational
services of 85.7%. The retail sales of eight luxury shopping malls
recorded YoY growth of 39.7%, which further consolidated our leading
position in the high-end markets. Meanwhile, the Group further
expanded its commercial operational services to rank top-notch
position in the commercial operational service industry of the PRC by
obtaining eleven new contracted commercial operational projects from
the parent group, twelve third-party shopping mall projects in various
cities such as Shenzhen, Shanghai, Hangzhou and Shenyang. We also
had twelve new shopping malls opened as scheduled at high standard
and tapped into six new cities for the first time. In terms of the office
building business, we actively adjusted leasing strategies to capture
the huge demands in the technology and financial industry arising
from the transformation and upgrade of the PRC’'s economy, and
successfully introduced high-quality tenants such as Fortune Global
500 enterprises and unicorns, resulting in a YoY increase in occupancy
rate of 11.4 percentage points and a YoY increase in the revenue from
office commercial operational and property management services of
32.5%. As of the end of 2021, the Group's shopping mall operation and
property management services business covered 68 cities, while 71
projects were under operation. Besides, office building operation and
property management business covered 40 cities, while 25 projects
were under operation.
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In this year, by always adhering to the principle of high-quality
property management services, the Group achieved quality growth
in promoting the PRC's strategies and driving the transformation
and upgrade of urban management. We had used our best endeavor
to ensure the very success of the opening and closing ceremonies
and numerous competitions of the 14th National Games, the 11th
Paralympic Games and the 8th Special Olympics. As a result, all of our
operational indicators improved. We recorded a revenue of RMB5.310
billion for our residential property management services for the year,
up 36.7% YoY, while the gross profit margin of basic residential
property management services rose to 15.0%, and the revenue from
community value-added services significantly increased by 86.9%.
The property management business of the Group strived to transform
as “urban space operational service provider” and build our new
brand, “MIXC Services”. Upholding to the core power of “intelligent
technologies”, the Group continued to develop comprehensive
urban space operational services covering three major areas, i.e.
communities, offices and cities. We had joined hands with our parent
company CR Land to devote much more effort in the area of urban
space intelligent technologies in order to promote the construction of
smart cities. At the same time, by maintaining quality increase in scale,
the Group reached a significant surge of 320.5% YoY in the total GFA
expansion, placing its emphasis on the development of urban public
space business. As of the end of 2021, the Group's residential and
other property management business covered 100 cities across the
country, with 185.9 million sq.m. contracted GFA and 146.8 million
sg.m. GFA under management. At the beginning of 2022, the Group
has seized the market opportunity to enter into an equity acquisition
framework agreement and an equity acquisition agreement for the
acquisition of Yuzhou Property Service Company Limited and Jiangsu
Zhongnan Property Services Co., Ltd., respectively, which helped
facilitate our rapid expansion in management scale and the sound
synergy with the existing businesses.
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Incorporating the concept of low-carbon sustainability into the
operation and management, the Group consistently improved its
environmental management system, promoted green operation and
achieved energy saving and efficiency increase. Led by the nation’s
“dual carbon” goals, the Group has included “carbon emission peak”
and “carbon neutrality” into its overall strategic planning. We took
active initiative to implement ESG systematic management, and had
been given BBB rating under the ESG index rating by MSCI, enabling us
to position in the forefront of the industry.

Looking forward into 2022, as the pandemic situation remains severe
overseas and the global economic development is entering into a
"post pandemic era”, the PRC faces pressures in terms of pandemic
prevention and control and economic growth. Policy implementation
in full force will be the key to the domestic economic development.
With favorable countercyclical policy, the domestic economy has
shown a sign of “steady growth”. In the coming year, led by the
"14th Five-Year Plan” strategies, the Group will adhere to its strategic
positioning of being a "“high-quality urban lifestyle service platform”
and its main target of quality development by seizing opportunities and
strengthening our capabilities. For the property management business,
we will capture the opportunities, exert much effort in expansion and
achieve smooth post-investment integration. By consistently improving
our ability to provide high quality service and enhancing operational
efficiency, we will reinforce our brand, “MIXC Services"”, and continue
to promote our transformation into”urban space operational service
provider”. In relation to the commercial management business, we will
better utilize the project resources of our parent company and carry
out expansion to grasp market shares to enhance market penetration
and geographic grid exposure, we will constantly improve both our
quality and efficiency so as to solidify our leading position in the
industry. Meanwhile, we will strengthen our technology capability
and space operation, targeting to build our comprehensive, integrated
membership system in the coming year to boost and drive traffic
across different property types, to improve customers’ experience and
to facilitate our business growth.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to the shareholders, customers and all sectors of the
society who have been paying close attention to and supporting the
development of the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business is divided into two main segments: (i) residential
property management services; (ii) commercial operational and
property management services.

Residential property management services: The Group provides
management services for residential properties and other non-
commercial properties comprising public facilities such as stadiums,
parks and industrial parks, and brings various services to families and
residents in the communities to meet their living needs. Our residential
property management services can be categorized as follows:

o Property management services, including security, cleaning
and greening, as well as repair and maintenance services to (i)
property developers for properties prior to their delivery, and (ii)
property owners, property owners’ associations or residents for
properties sold and delivered,

o Value-added services to property developers, including
consultancy, preliminary preparation, and pre-delivery marketing
services; and

o Community value-added services, including community living
services, and brokerage and asset services.

Commercial operational and property management services:
commercial properties under our management include shopping malls
and office buildings.

For shopping malls, the Group provides:

° Commercial operational services, including pre-opening
management and operation management services;

° Property management and other services, principally including
security, cleaning and greening, repair and maintenance, as well
as other value-added services; and

° Commercial subleasing services, where the Group leases certain
quality shopping malls from their owners and sublease to tenants
such as retail stores and supermarkets.



016 =—Z=——#E#% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

o B g 500
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEAE - AEERME For office buildings, the Group provides:

o FEELERE BEBRRE - BEEE o Commercial operational services, including tenant sourcing,
BB RIS M EERRE & asset management and operational services, and opening
preparation services; and

e YHEETHEBELHMRE FTEBREKF# o Property management and other services, principally including
HBEERG  EREERAEMEE security, cleaning and greening, repair and maintenance, as well
BR7 - as other value-added services.

TEREV A BEIRRBRESE S L EREERZ The table below sets forth details of revenue by business segment and

D HRAFEIS type of services as of the dates indicated:
B+=HA=1+—H
As of 31 December
2021 2020
(AR¥T0) (ANR¥TIL)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
FENMEERRE Residential property
management services
VB RS Property management services 3,772,249 425 2,922,639 43.1
HET R RS E RS Value-added services to property
developers 813,029 9.2 573,322 8.5
@I E AR Community value-added services 724,777 8.1 387,858 5.7
it Subtotal 5,310,055 59.8 3,883,819 57.3

HEBERYESERYE  Commercial operational and
property management services

BEYIH D Shopping malls 2,130,267 24.0 1,811,699 26.7
BTE Office buildings 1,435,062 16.2 1,083,393 16.0
aEk Subtotal 3.565.329 40.2 2,895,092 42.7

ik Total 8,875,364 100.0 6,778,911 100.0
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EERETEEVEEERBEONRABARE
3,772.3B &L BMAFREHER29.1% « (h4E
WA425%  WAMERFESENEERRE
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IE - EEEERHAIEEEY I8 B #7541 -
B EFHIG201E - EEBELAMER146.88
BFHK RAHERI0IEEF K-

TREIFAREREEREMIEFEDENE
FEEmEREEZERMBENFE

RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
SERVICES

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue from
residential property management services amounted to RMB3,772.3
million, representing an increase of 29.1% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year, and accounting for 42.5% of our
total revenue. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to
the expanding management scale. As of 31 December 2021, there
were 754 managed residential and other non-commercial properties
projects, an increase of 201 over the last year, with an aggregate GFA
under management of 146.8 million sq.m., representing an increase of
40.3 million sq.m. over the previous year.

The table below sets forth details of our contracted GFA and GFA
under management of residential and other non-commercial properties
as of the dates indicated:

e

As of 31 December,

2021 )

AREEmBE(FTFERK) Contracted GFA (sq.m. in thousands) 185,904 142,922
AREEmMEMNERHA Number of projects for contracted GFA 1,041 854
EEEZEmMBE(TERXK) GFA under management (sg.m. in thousands) 146,833 106,563
TEREmBEMNIEEHE Number of projects for GFA under management 754 553
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TREHIAMEREFERZ SRR BE The table below sets forth a breakdown of the number of residential

HEREYEEESHE HEREEBEHR properties projects under management, the aggregate GFA under

4 AR REIRER W EE R RS RS management as of the date indicated, and revenue generated from

RRAA - property management services by type of property developer for the
periods indicated:

BEZAZ+—H
As of 31 December
2021 2020
i1 Vi3
R ¢ FHYH Bidd B FHYH Bidi

GFA under Number of GFA under Number of

management projects Revenue  management projects Revenue

(FF)ik) (ARHT50) (FFIik) (ARHT5)
(sq.m.in (sq.m.in

thousands) (RMB*000) thousands) (RMB*000)

EREN CR Land 95,777 511 2,819,316 81,355 416 2,383,495
EREERE=SH CR Group and third-party

B developers 51,056 243 952,933 25,208 137 539,144

Bt Total 146.833 754 3,772,249 106,563 553 2,922,639

St 360 S T 358w 1 94 LR VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO PROPERTY
DEVELOPERS

HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HLEFER &K During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded revenue

EEREMEREENIEERBSRABARE generated from value-added services to property developers of

813.0E &L ' HEKAI2% @ B EFRH1E RMB813.0 million, representing 9.2% of the total revenue, increased

R41.8% TEZEZASERENER LRSS by 41.8% as compared with the corresponding period of last year. Such

BRI AT - increase was mainly due to an increase in consultancy services and
preliminary preparation services provided by the Group.

o Ik 184 6 e 75 COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HLEFER & During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded revenue

FERAHEMNEEREBVABARKET248 generated from community value-added services of RMB724.8 million,

BEL BEFRPKES.9% ' (HAIA increased by 86.9% as compared with the corresponding period of

8.1% » TERAKEMWET FIREMLEAR last year, representing 8.1% of the total revenue. Such increase was

BEMEAREEEEMTERBIEINATE primarily resulted from the expansion of the community services
provided by the Group to our property residents and the increase in
asset operation and investment services.
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COMMERCIAL OPERATIONAL AND PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT SERVICES

SHOPPING MALLS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue from
the commercial operational and property management services to
shopping malls amounted to RMB2,130.3 million, representing an
increase of 17.6% as compared with the corresponding period of
last year, and accounting for 24.0% of the total revenue. As of 31
December 2021, the Group provided commercial operational services
to 69 opened shopping mall projects with an aggregate GFA of 7.4
million sg.m., a vast majority of which were also using our property
management services. In addition, we have two opened shopping mall
subleasing projects as of 31 December 2021.

82.7% of the segment revenue was generated from the provision of
commercial operational services and property management services
to shopping malls, with the remaining revenue from the provision of
commercial subleasing services.

The table below sets forth details of the contracted GFA and GFA of
projects opened under commercial operational services and property
management services for shopping malls as of the dates indicated:

Ht+=H=+—H

As of 31 December,

2021 2020

ARZEMBE(TERK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in thousands) 13,014 10,099
AREEmMEMNEREAR Number of projects for contracted GFA 122 99
CHEEBEZEERBE(TIELX) GFA of projects opened (sq.m. in thousands) 7,378 6,126
BEF¥IER#E Number of projects opened 69 57
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TREINAMEFEBERNE D HORFAR A H
REBXELRBNCHEBYTLEBEER
B EEAEZEEERAA - ARKATHER
BRXELRBEMEEERBEOHKDRPA

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the number of opened
shopping malls projects receiving commercial operational services and
the aggregate GFA under management as of the dates indicated, and
revenue generated from commercial operational services and property
management services by type of property developer for the periods
indicated:

BEZAZ+—H
As of 31 December
2021 2020
1% bix:s
R I Bt HHEA €3 1 ¢ HHEA €3
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects Revenue  management projects Revenue
(THIK) (AR®TIL) (FEHX) (AR¥TL)
(sq.m.in (sq.m.in
thousands) (RMB’000) thousands) (RMB’000)
EHEN CR Land 6,368 53 1,592,229 5,375 43 1,462,090
ERRENZ=) CR Group and third-party
kg developers 1,010 16 168,775 751 14 65,080
Hs Total 7378 09 1,761.004 6,120 57 1,527,170
EED OFFICE BUILDINGS

HE-_ZT-—F+-_A=+—BHIFER K
SEREBETENHEEERMEEERBY
ABARE14361EEL REFRHEE
325% * R A162% - BHE T~ — 4
+ZA=+—H1t - AEEA2ESFTERE
FE¥ELRY  BEEAERI6BEEFHK
ANGESFRIEHYETIERTE - BREEE
BB2EBFEHK o

ZOE88.9%MINE R A AR FRIERMEE
IR - Hepiian ok 8 iR eV E E LIRS o

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue from
the commercial operation and property management services to office
buildings was RMB1,435.1 million, representing an increase of 32.5%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year, accounted
for 16.2% of the total revenue. As of 31 December 2021, the Group
provided commercial operation services for 25 office buildings with a
total GFA of 1.6 million sq.m. and property management services for
115 offices with a total GFA of 8.2 million sgq.m..

88.9% of the segment revenue was generated from the provision of
property management services to office buildings, with the remaining
revenue from the provision of commercial operational services.
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TREFNAFMRHBEEFEEEMNEREEZR The table below sets forth the details of our contracted GFA and GFA

EREERAmMBEES under management of office building projects as of the dates indicated:
Rt+_H=1+—H
As of 31 December,
2020
BEEERK Commercial operational services
AREEmBE(FFERK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in thousands) 1,900 1,771
AREEmENEEHE Number of projects for contracted GFA 30 29
¥ EE RS EEEE GFA under commercial operational services
(FFEHK) (sg.m. in thousands) 1,622 1,481
B RGHIEE 28 Number of projects under commercial
operational services 25 23
YEERRE Property management services
AREBEmBE(TERK) Contracted GFA (sg.m. in thousands) 10,003 7.341
ARZEMEMNIEBHE Number of projects for contracted GFA 127 94
MESIBERGSHESE@EE GFA under property management services
(FFHXK) (sg.m. in thousands) 8,213 5,690
MEEREREHIERD HE Number of projects under property

management services 115 80
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TREHIAMEREZERZ SRR BE The table below sets forth a breakdown of the number of office

EERTEEHEHE REELEERERMA - buildings projects under management, the aggregate GFA under
ARRIT AR R REELERE L EER management as of the date indicated, and revenue generated from
RRAg =R 4R commercial operational services and property management services by

type of property developer for the periods indicated:

REZA=E+—N

As of 31 December

2021 2020
V31 b3
R I Bt KHYH €3 1 ¢ HHEA Bzt
GFA under Number of GFA under Number of
management projects Revenue  management projects Revenue
(F¥H%) (AR®TIL) (FEHX) (AR¥TL)
(sq.m.in (sq.m.in
thousands) (RMB’000) thousands) (RMB’000)
[0 Commercial operational
services
EHEM CR Land 1,255 20 128,551 1,150 19 48,309
EHEEEE=H CR Group and third-party
HERE developers 367 5 30,353 331 4 8,568
W Total 1,622 25 158,904 1.481 23 560,877
NESBRE Property management service
EHEN CR Land 6,582 81 1,047,275 4,957 65 834,672

EREEEE=] CR Group and third-party
B developers 1,631 34 228,883 733 15 191,844

At Total 8.213 115 1,276,158 5.690 80 1,026,516
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OUTLOOK

The Group plans to selectively acquire, or establish joint ventures with,
property management and commercial operational service providers
with complementary strengths or with targeted operation scale and
profitability. Meanwhile, the Group will adhere to its strategy to
penetrate regional market and take advantage of its business network
in cities expand with business presence established and the brand
advantages. In particular, it will continue to the property management
service portfolios to all property types while focus on medium and
high-end commerce in terms of commercial operational services. In
addition, it will also strive to secure quality projects from third parties,
therefore to enhance the market shares and realize economies of
scale.

The Group will continue to work with CR Land to secure new
engagements of property management and commercial operational
services for residential properties and commercial properties
developed or owned by CR Land for a stable expansion of our business.
The Group also plans to undertake management services engagements
relating to properties owned by CR Group, such as industrial parks
and factories. In addition, the Group plans to seize new business
opportunities from CR Group and CR Land to help us expand into new
property segments and strengthen the Company's platform.

The Group adheres to the principle of high-quality services. Riding on
years of professional experience accumulation in the commercial retail
and service fields and following the trend of technology innovation and
digital transformation, we will continue to improve our professional
operation and service system to achieve high-quality development and
continuous improvement of customer experience. Meanwhile, we aim
to introduce more CR Group and CR Land's services and resources to
the Company’s managed properties so as to bring more value to our
ultimate recipients of our services. In addition, we will also leverage
our advantages on “space, customer and resource” to construct
an integrated ecosystem featured with multiple property types,
full spectrum of service offerings and become the creator of urban
ecological services and people’s happy life.
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The Group plans to pursue strategic investments in national or regional
service providers with specialized businesses that are synergistic with
our business, such as brokerage, asset management and new retail,
to build an ecosystem of service offerings that promotes customer
loyalty. Meanwhile, the Group plans to pursue strategic investments
in business partners located upstream and downstream in the Group's
industry chain to enhance the Company's profitability and broaden our
customer base.

The Group intends to further integrate residential communities,
shopping malls and office buildings under our management to
create more business opportunities. We plan to promote the
membership system to attract third-party merchants and further
develop our platform and ecosystem through creating value and
growth opportunities, and continue to enhance the functionality of our
membership programs to capture members’ interest in our products
and services offered under the membership programs, enhance their
loyalty and further attract new users to our ecosystem in an efficient
manner. We will also consolidate our membership programs, which
allows the Company to fully understand the needs of users, optimize
interaction among different property types, improve customers’
cross-platform experience, and actively promote corporate brand,
enhance our brand image and customer loyalty through the Company's
membership programs.

The Group plans to promote digitization initiatives of “business
informatization, operation digitization, space intelligentization, data
capitalization” and enhances operational efficiency and users’
experience by technology empowerment. We also plans to pursue
strategic investments in technology companies relating to commercial
operation, property management and urban management. Meanwhile,
the Group continues to upgrade the functionality and capability of
our digitized service platforms, such as "E-MIXC,” “JOY LIFE" and
"Officeasy” apps, to create a unique experience for our users.
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The Group plans to attract talents with its competitive remuneration
packages and excellent corporate culture and reputation, and organizes
regular training provided by senior employees and external consultants.
The Group will also continue to refine its remuneration scheme and
formulate employee incentive mechanism to better align their benefits
with our interest. In addition, the Group plans to enhance the sense
of pride, mission and professionalism of its employees through the
promotion of corporate culture.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's revenue is mainly generated from two business
segments: (i) residential property management services and (ii)
commercial operational and property management services.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue
amounted to RMB8,875.4 million, representing an increase of 30.9%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year. Such increase
was primarily due to: (i) the increase in the GFA under management
of residential property management services; (ii) the increase in our
revenue from commercial operational services due to the rise in the
number of commercial projects under operation and the improvement
in the performance of business projects; (iii) the increase in our newly
added third party commercial projects which resulted in the increase
in our revenue from the pre-opening management services of the
commercial projects.

The Group's cost of sales mainly comprises (i) staff costs, (ii)
subcontracting costs, (iii) utilities costs, (iv) common area facility costs,
and (v) office and related expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s cost of sales
amounted to RMB6,116.9 million, representing an increase of 23.5%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year. Such increase
was primarily due to the increase of corresponding costs by class
resulting from the growth of revenue.



026 =—==—%E®% ANNUAL REPORT 2021

o B g 500
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

eV EsY I E GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

BE-_ZE-—F+-_A=+—HIEE XK During the year ended 31 December 2021, the gross profit of the
EEEFABARKE27585HE T RFEER Group amounted to RMB2,758.5 million representing a YoY increase
51.0% : EFEAE31.1% ' IREELEL1HED of 51.0% and the gross profit margin was 31.1%, representing a YoY
2o increase of 4.1 percentage points.

TREVARBEPIREEDSDEDHENRE The table below sets forth details of the gross profit and gross profit
RRF1G - margin by segment as of the dates indicated:

BRETHA=ZT—HEE

For the year ended 31 December,

2021 2020
EH BRE EH BHE
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin Gross profit margin
(ANRWTIE) % (ARWTIL) )
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
FENEERRE Residential property
management services
VTR RS Property management services 567,354 15.0 359,408 12.3
HET R SRS E RS Value-added services to property
developers 259,045 31.9 134,465 23.5
it E RS Community value-added services 198,978 27.5 123,506 31.8
it Subtotal 1,025,377 19.3 617,379 15.9

BEEBELERYWESERYE Commercial operational and
property management services

BEYIH D Shopping malls 1,329,256 62.4 884,975 48.8
BTE Office buildings 403,885 28.1 324,679 30.0
it Subtotal 1,733,141 48.6 1,209,654 41.8

ik Total 2,758,518 311 1,827,033 27.0
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the gross profit margin
of residential property management services was 19.3%, with
YoY growth of 3.4 percentage points. Such increase was primarily
attributable to effective cost control measures and the improvement in
operating efficiency.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the gross profit margin
of commercial operational and property management services was
48.6%, with YoY growth of 6.8 percentage points. The increase in
gross profit margin of this segment was mainly due to the increase
in our service scale arising from the substantial increase in the
profitability of shopping malls and the increase in the number of
commercial projects under management after the recovery of the
epidemic in 2021. Meanwhile, we switched from a lump sum basis
revenue model to a commission basis revenue model for property
management services to shopping malls from July 2020, and the gross
profit margin increased accordingly.

GAIN ON CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded gain on
changes in fair value of investment properties of RMB30.0 million,
which was mainly related to the valuation increase due to the rise in
the rental level of our subleasing project, Shenzhen Buji MIXONE.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded other
income and gains of RMB523.4 million, representing an increase of
190.2% as compared with the corresponding period of last year, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in the interest income of bank
deposits and gains from disposal of structured bank deposits.

MARKETING EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, our marketing expenses was
RMB58.1 million, representing an increase of 15.5% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year, which was mainly because
the Group had organized less promotion activities for the subleasing
projects as affected by the pandemic in 2020.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, our administrative expenses
was RMB819.0 million, representing an increase of 9.6% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year, which was primarily
attributable to the increased staff costs and office expenses as a result
of the Group’'s business expansion. Benefited from the significant
results of cost control and efficiency improvement, administrative
expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased by 1.8 percentage
points as compared with that in the corresponding period of last year.

OTHER EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, our other expenses amounted
to RMB20.8 million, representing an YoY increase of 360.3%, mainly
due to the increase of impairment losses on trade and bill receivables,
parking spaces accrued by the Group during the year.

INCOME TAX

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's effective income
tax rate was 26.1%, decreased by 1.8 percentage points as compared
with the corresponding period of last year, mainly due to the tax
exemption on offshore interest income.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's net profit was
RMB1,726.1 million, increased by 111.1% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's total bank
deposits and cash (including restricted bank deposits) are mainly held
in RMB and amounted to RMB13,927.0 million, (31 December 2020:
RMB10,679.4 million) an increase of 30.4% as compared with that as
of the end of last year, which was mainly due to the cash inflow from
operating activities and the remaining proceeds held by way of bank
deposits.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's borrowings
were floating interest borrowings of HK$980.0 million (equivalent
to RMB801.2 million, representing an YoY increase of 58.1%). The
borrowings were mainly used for the payment of the consideration of
acquisition of Huan Le Song (Hong Kong) prior to the Listing and for the
payment of dividends to the shareholders.
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GEARING RATIO

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's gearing ratio was
35.7%, representing an increase of 1.0 percentage points as compared
with that as of the end of last year. The gearing ratio was calculated by
total liabilities divided by total assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of 31 December 2021, the Group's capital commitments amounted
to RMB17.8 million (31 December 2020: RMB 223.3 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had invested
in structured bank deposits in February 2021 and the deposits
have all been redeemed in full during the year in accordance with
their respective terms, details of which were contained in the
announcement dated 4 June 2021.

On 30 March 2021, China Resources Mixc Commercial (Shenzhen)
Co. Ltd.* (FEBHERME (RY) BR2F) ("CR MixC Shenzhen”, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as transferee) entered
into (i) the Copyrights Transfer Agreement with Shenzhen Qianhai
Chengcang Technology Internet Co., Ltd.* (FYIAT/EE AR BB AR
3 A]) (“Shanghai Qianhai”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Land, as
transferor), where Shenzhen Qianhai agrees to transfer, among others,
the ownership, operating rights and software copyrights pertinent to
the certain software programmes to CR Mixc Shenzhen; and (ii) the
Domain Names Transfer Agreement with CR Shenzhen (as transferor),
where CR Shenzhen agrees to transfer, among others, the ownership
of certain domain names. In addition, CR Property Management
Engineering Technology Co. Ltd.* CEEMETREREARAF) (“CR
Property Management”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into an agreement with Pinghu Zhenshang Landscaping
Co., Ltd Beijing Branch* (‘FiflmZEmEBEMGEILER QAL RS A
al) (“Pinghu Zhengshang”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Land)
pursuant to which CR Property Management agreed to dispose and
Pinghu Zhenshang agreed to acquire the certain assets at an aggregate
consideration of RMB19,157,619.64. Details of both transactions were
contained in the announcements dated 30 March 2021.
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The Group will continue to invest in property development project
when deemed appropriate. It is expected that our internal financial
resources are sufficient for any necessary funding demands. Save for
the above and as disclosed in the “Subsequent Events” in this report
and the announcements of the Company dated 5 January 2022, 20
January 2022 and 8 March 2022 in relation to equity acquisition, as
of the date of this announcement, the Group had no other material
acquisitions or disposals, significant investments and future plans of
material investments.

PROCEEDS OF THE LISTING

The shares of the Group were successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange on 9 December 2020 (the “Listing”), with total net proceeds
of the Listing amounted to approximately RMB11,600.4 million after
deducting the underwriting fees and relevant expenses.

As set out in the prospectus of the Group dated 25 November 2020
(the "Prospectus”), the Group intends to use the proceeds for the
purposes and in the amounts set forth below:

° approximately 60% will be used to make strategic investments
and acquisitions to expand our property management and
commercial operational businesses.

o approximately 15% will be used to pursue strategic investment
in providers of value-added services and across the upstream and
downstream supply chain of our industry.

o approximately 15% will be used to invest in information
technology systems and smart communities.

approximately 10% will be used as working capital and for
general corporate uses.
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2 —F+-A=+—HIE ' EWAHAER As at 31 December 2021, RMB1,379.9 million of the proceeds of the
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Actual use of
net proceeds

Proceeds during Proceeds  Expected timeline
Planned  unused as of the year ended  unused asof  for fully utilizing
Business objective as stated in use of net 31 December 31 December 31 December  the net proceeds
the Prospectus Proportion proceeds 2020 2021 2021 from the Listing
ARHv
RMB million
(i) BANFERNEREL RBNBBREN 60% 6,960.3 6,960.3 - 6,9603 RIZZHET_AM
Yig
Making strategic investments and By December 2025

acquisitions to expand our property
management and commercial operational

businesses

i) RUEEREMATE L THAEROBRE 15% 1,740.1 1,740.1 92.1 16480  R-T-RETAR
£
Pursuing strategic investment in providers of By December 2025

value-added services and across the upstream
and downstream supply chain of our industry

il REGERMZSNERIULE 15% 1,740.1 1,740.1 1278 16123 RZEZRETZAF
Investing in information technology systems By December 2025
and smart communities

v SEEER-RAAME 10% 1,160.0 1,160.0 1,160.0 - RIEC-RETZAW
Working capital and general corporate uses By December 2025

100% 11,600.4 11,6004 1,379.9 10,2205
Bfet - Note:

1. R T - BHEAE T i ZE R AB o 1. The sum of the data may not add up to the total due to rounding.
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PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, one of the properties of the
Group, Shenzhen Buji MIXONE, was recognized as the investment
property under HKFRS 16 in the consolidated statements of financial
position, and the asset ratio of such investment property exceeds 5%
but is less than 25% and all other ratios are less than 5% pursuant
to Rule 14.04(9) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules"”). Shenzhen Buji MIXONE is
located at No. 2 Xiangge Road, Buji Area, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China. It is currently
used for commercial subleasing services and is held under long-term
lease. During the effective term of the lease contract, the lessor has
no right to unilaterally terminate the contract except for force majeure
events and extreme conditions such as the Group's rental payments
are in arrears, non-compliance with regulations and damage to the
buildings.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 December 2021, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities (as of 31 December 2020: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had no pledge of assets (as of 31
December 2020: nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

As the Group's business is mainly conducted in the PRC, we mainly
take RMB as the settlement currency. As of 31 December 2021, non-
RMB assets and liabilities mainly included the cash of HK$69.9 million,
US$12,745.9, and the bank borrowings of HK$980.0 million. The
management believed that the operation of the Group was not exposed
to material foreign currency risk. No significant impact was caused by
the fluctuation of RMB exchange rate on the Group’s financial position.
Meanwhile, the Group currently does not hedge its foreign exchange
risk but dynamically monitored the foreign exchange exposure and
made necessary adjustments in accordance with the change in market
environment.
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il imiﬁi 1-. b
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

The Company entered into the following loan agreements which have
specific performance covenant of its controlling shareholders. The
obligations of such loan agreements continue to exist as of the date
of this Report. As at the date of this Report, CRH beneficially owns
directly or indirectly approximately 73.72% of the issued share capital
of the Company, and CR Land is the single largest shareholder of the
Company, directly owning approximately 72.29% of the issued share
capital of the Company and being able to control the Company.

o A revolving loan facility letter for a facility in an aggregate amount
up to HKD620,000,000 with no fixed term and is repayable
on demand by the lender was entered into on 28 June 2021,
details of which have been disclosed in the announcement
dated 28 June 2021. The Company undertakes that during the
term of the facility, CRH shall directly or indirectly own no less
than 35% of the beneficial ownership of the Company, and
CR Land shall remain as the single largest shareholder of the
Company, directly or indirectly owning no less than 51% of the
beneficial ownership of the Company and being able to control
the Company. If a change of control resulting in violation of the
relevant undertakings under this facility letter occurs, the lender
may declare any commitment under this facility letter to be
cancelled and/or declare the outstanding loans, together with all
the interests accrued thereon, and all other amounts due under
this facility letter shall become immediately due and payable.

° A revolving loan facility letter for a facility in an aggregate amount
of up to HKD600,000,000 with a maturity date of 12 months
was entered into on 20 October 2021, details of which have
been disclosed in the announcement dated 20 October 2021.
The Company undertakes that during the term of the facility, the
Company shall procure that CRH and CR Land remain directly or
indirectly interested in no less than 35% and 51% of the issued
share capital of the Company respectively. If violation of the
relevant undertakings under this facility letter occurs, the lender
may declare any commitment under this facility letter to be
cancelled and/or declare the outstanding loans, together with all
the interests accrued thereon, and all other amounts due under
this facility letter shall become immediately due and payable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

° A revolving loan facility letter for a facility in an aggregate amount
of up to RMB1,000,000,000 with a maturity date of 12 months
was entered into on 23 March 2022, details of which have been
disclosed in the announcement dated 23 March 2022. The
Company undertakes that during the term of the facility, the
Company shall procure that CR Land remain directly or indirectly
interested in no less than 51% of the issued share capital of the
Company and remain to be the single largest shareholder of the
Company. If violation of the relevant undertakings under this
facility letter occurs, the lender may declare any commitment
under this facility letter to be cancelled and/or declare the
principal amount advanced and the outstanding loans, together
with all the interests accrued thereon, and all other amounts
due under this facility letter shall become immediately due and
payable.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

After the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has entered
into the following transactions:

° On 5 January 2022, Runying Property Technology Service
Company Limited CHAR%ERFREBR AR (“Runying”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the proposed
purchaser) and Tianjin Yujia Life Service Company Limited (K&
BEATFERBEAEMRAR) (“Tianjin Yujia") (as the proposed seller)
entered into the framework agreement for the proposed sale
and purchase of equity interest in Yuzhou Property Service
Company Limited (RN ZEAREHER AT (“Yuzhou Property
Service”) which is principally engaged in the business of property
management services in the PRC. The acquisition constitutes
a discloseable transaction. On 8 March 2022, Runying entered
into the equity transfer agreement with Tianjin Yujia and Yuzhou
Property Service. The consideration is RMB1,058 million. As of
the date of this Report, the acquisition has been completed.
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TH imiﬁi M
o On 20 January 2022, Super Honour Development Limited (8])&
ZERAMR A A) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the purchaser) entered into an equity transfer agreement with,
among others, HongKong Rainbow Property Limited (/&4 ¥
#¥AER A7) (“Seller 1”) and HongKong Lehuo Property Limited
(BBLEWMEAR AT ("Seller 27, collectively with Seller 1 as
the sellers), pursuant to which (i) the purchaser has agreed to
acquire, and Seller 1 has agreed to sell, the entire equity interests
of Nantong Changle Property Co., Limited (B R&EYEFR
‘A7) (“Nantong Changle”); and (ii) the purchaser has agreed
to acquire, and Seller 2 has agreed to sell, 1% of the equity
interests of Jiangsu Zhongnan Property Services Co., Ltd. (L&t
PEMERSAER AR ("Jiangsu Zhongan"). The consideration
is to be determined and finally agreed between the parties but
it shall not be higher than RMB2,260 million. Nantong Changle
and Jiangsu Zhongan, together with their respective subsidiaries
and branches (the “Target Companies”), are principally engaged
in the business of property management services in the PRC. In
connection with the acquisition, the purchaser also entered into
a framework agreement with the Sellers, Jiangsu Zhongnan and
Jiangsu Zhongnan Construction Group Co., Ltd (L& P mER
E£BRHAERAR) (“Jiangsu Zhongan Construction”), pursuant
to which Jiangsu Zhongnan Construction warrants to, among
others, procure companies in which it directly or indirectly holds
equity interests, to continue the cooperation with the Target
Companies in connection with the property management projects
of the Target Companies. As of the date of this Report, the
acquisition is still pending completion.

Saved as disclosed, the Group had no other significant subsequent
events occurred after 31 December 2021 which would material impact
on the performance and the value of the Group.

EMPLOYEE AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had 28,654 full time employees
in Mainland China and Hong Kong (31 December 2020: 27,077).
The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and market salary levels. In addition, performance
bonus is granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include provident fund, insurance and medical coverage.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Linkang, aged 50

has been our Director since July 2020 and was appointed as an
executive Director and the president of the Company in August
2020. Mr. Yu has approximately 29 years of experience in real estate
investment, commercial operation and corporate management.

Mr. Yu worked in China Resources Hotel in Beijing (1t B &R JE) from
August 1992 to September 1996, where he successively served as the
deputy manager and manager of the food and beverage department.
He worked in Longdation Enterprises Limited (B> ¥ AR A 7)) from
September 1996 to December 2000, where he successively served
as the supervisor, deputy manager and manager of the investment
management department. Mr. Yu served as the assistant general
manager of Shenzhen Foreign Trade Center (FIIEINE F L) from
December 2000 to June 2003, the chairman and general manager
of Shenzhen Hotel Kapok Co., Ltd. (I ARIBIEBIEER A7) from
January 2002 to June 2003, and the deputy general manager of Hotel
Kapok Co., Ltd. (RTBIEBEEBRAF]) from June 2003 to November
2004.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

From November 2004 to May 2011, Mr. Yu served as the deputy
general manager of China Resources Shenzhen (which has been
a subsidiary of CR Land since October 2005), during which he
concurrently served as the general manager of China Resources
Shenzhen Bay Development Co., Ltd. GERRIIEZEREGR A F]) from
December 2008 to May 2011. He was the deputy general manager of
Shenzhen region from May 2011 to August 2013. From August 2013
to July 2016, he served as the director for commercial real estate,
general manager of Wuhan region as well as the assistant president
of CR Land. In July 2016, he was appointed as the vice president of
CR Land, managing our Group's business, in particular our commercial
operational services business. Since November 2018 and March 2020,
he has been respectively appointed as the senior vice president of
CR Land and the chairman of its property management business,
managing the overall operation and business of the Group. For the
purpose of the Reorganization, Mr. Yu was appointed as the Group's
president in August 2020 to continue leading the management of
the Group and ceased his appointment at CR Land. He received the
Commercial Real Estate Leader Award (B ¥ EEE AYWEE) granted
by the China Commercial Real Estate Industry Annual Award Panel (4
Bl M ETTEFE HBIFFFZ ) for the year 2018 and 2020.

Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in hotel management from Beijing
International Studies University in the PRC in 1992 and an MBA degree
from Wright State University in Ohio, the United States in 2006.
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Mr. WANG Haimin, aged 57
was appointed as an executive Director and the vice president of the
Company in August 2020. He has extensive experience in real estate
and corporate management.

Mr. Wang worked in China Northern Airlines (FEldt 5= 2 a]) from
July 1993 to May 2003, where he successively served as the budgeting
officer of the construction department of the airline’s Dalian branch,
general manager of Dalian Aviation Hotel (Ki#EfiZ & E), director
and deputy general manager of Shenyang Northern Airlines Yangzi
Industrial Co., Ltd. (&ZIt M =HBFEEABRAF]). He joined the
preparation group of China Southern Airlines Tourist Hotel (F B
F Mz £ ERESH)E) in May 2003 and served as the deputy general
manager of China Southern Airlines Tourism Development Co., Ltd. (#
e B R EE 3 R A F]) from August 2003 to April 2010. In addition, Mr.
Wang also worked in Northern Airlines Yangzi Industrial Co., Ltd. (it
FMZzEG T EEAR AR from February 2007 to January 2012, during
which he served as the vice chairman, director and deputy general
manager. From January to October 2012, he served as the manager
of the corporate management department of Northern branch of
China Southern Airlines Company Limited (FFEmHMERNDER A
A]). In addition, Mr. Wang also served as the deputy general manager
of Yuexiu Property Shenyang Co., Ltd. (B85 EARAT) from
October 2012 to October 2013.

Mr. Wang has joined CR Land since October 2013, which he has
successively served as the deputy general manager of China
Resources Land (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. CEEE (&R ) BR A7) of the
Shenyang region from October 2013 to May 2015, and the general
manager of the marketing management department of the Shenyang
region from May 2015 to December 2016. From December 2016
onwards, Mr. Wang has been responsible for overseeing the Group's
business and is in charge of primarily the property management
business of our Group. He has assumed various roles including the
general manager of the Dalian company of Northeast China Region
from December 2016 to August 2019 as well as the assistant general
manager of Northeast China Region from August 2017 to August 2019.
He was the general manager of the operation management department
of CR Land from August 2019 to August 2020. For the purpose of the
Reorganization, Mr. Wang was appointed as the Group's vice president
in August 2020 to continue managing the Group's business and ceased
his appointment at CR Land.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics (investment and
economic management) and a doctoral degree in national economics
from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics in the PRC in 1993
and 2010, respectively.

Ms. WEI Xiaohua, aged 53

was appointed as an executive Director and the vice president of
the Company in August 2020. She has experience in real estate and
corporate management.

Ms. Wei served as the marketing manager of Ericsson (China) Co., Ltd.
(B Az (P E)BR AR from May 1998 to September 2003.

F

Ms. Wei joined China Resources Shenzhen in September 2003 and
served as the deputy manager of the marketing department until June
2005. Since October 2007, Ms. Wei has held various positions in CR
Land, including the marketing director of China Resources (Shenyang)
Property Co., Ltd. (ZH (J&[5) i ZE B R 2 &) from October 2007
to January 2011, assistant general manager of China Resources
(Shenyang) Property Co., Ltd. (ZE &3 )EHFR A7) and general
manager of Shenyang China Resources Centre from January 2011
to February 2013, deputy general manager of China Resources
(Shenyang) Property Co., Ltd. (ZEH (&) HESR A A, the general
manager of the commercial real estate management department
of Shenyang region from February 2013 to February 2015, as well
as general manager of the commercial real estate management
department of Beijing region from February 2015 to December 2016.
From December 2016 onwards, Ms. Wei has been responsible for
the management of the commercial operational services business
of the Group where she has successively served as the assistant
general manager of the North China Region from December 2016 to
September 2017 as well as the general manager of the commercial real
estate business division in North China Region from September 2017
to March 2020. In March 2020, Ms. Wei was appointed as the general
manager of the commercial real estate business division of CR Land
until August 2020. For the purpose of the Reorganization, Ms. Wei was
appointed as the Group's vice president in August 2020 to continue
managing the Group's business and ceased her appointment at
CR Land.

Ms. Wei obtained a bachelor of engineering degree in technological
English from the Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications
in the PRC in 1991. She obtained a Master of Business Administration
from Tsinghua University in the PRC in 2001.
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Ms. YANG Hongxia, aged 43

was appointed as an executive Director, the chief financial officer and
the general manager of the finance department of the Company in
August 2020. She has experience in finance, human resources and
operation management.

Ms. Yang has joined CR Land since July 2004 after her master's
graduation, where she has successively served as the supervisor,
assistant manager and deputy manager of the finance department
of China Resources Shenzhen from July 2004 to July 2010, deputy
manager, manager and deputy general manager of the finance
department of Shenzhen region from July 2010 to November 2016.
From November 2016 onwards, Ms. Yang has been responsible
for the management of the Group, and is in charge of the financial
management of the Group, where she served as the deputy general
manager of the finance department of South China Region from
November 2016 to July 2017, as well as the general manager of the
human resources administration department of South China region
from July 2017 to March 2020, responsible for human resources
and administration of our Group in South China Region, and she has
also been the assistant general manager of South China Region of
CR Land from June 2018 to August 2020, managing the operation of
development property business of the Group in South China Region.
For the purpose of the Reorganization, Ms. Yang was appointed as the
Group's chief financial officer in August 2020 to continue managing the
Group's business.

Ms. Yang obtained a bachelor's degree and a master’'s degree in
accounting from School of Management, Xiamen University in the
PRC in 2001 and 2004, respectively. She is qualified as a certified
accountant in 2003 with the title of intermediate accountant from
2006.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

Mr. LI Xin, aged 50

has been our Director since July 2020 and was appointed as a
non-executive Director in August 2020. He has experience in corporate
management and real estate development management. He is the
Chairman of nomination committee and a member of remuneration
committee of the Company.

Mr. Li joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CR
Holdings"”) in August 1994, where he successively served at
the personnel department of the then China Resources National
Corporation (currently known as China Resources Company Limited),
as director of Chongging Kuixing Industrial Co., Ltd. (EEZEE2E %K
2 B BB A Al), as managing director of Chongging Runlong Industrial
Co., Ltd. (EEHEZEXABMR A A]), and as manager and senior manager
of Longdation Enterprises Limited (i ™>% B R A 7]). He joined CR
Land in July 2001, where he successively served from July 2001 to
June 2013 as the general manager of the corporate development
department of CR Land, general manager of China Resources
(Dalian) Co., Ltd. (ZEH(K:&E) BBR A A]), vice president of CR Land,
and general manager of the Shenyang region and other positions. He
was appointed as the senior vice president of CR Land in June 2013
and concurrently served as the general manager of Shenyang region,
responsible for business development of Northeast China region. He
was appointed as the co-president of CR Land and chairman of East
China Region in July 2016, responsible for the business development
of East China region (known as Shanghai region prior to November
2016) of CR Land. Since April 2017, Mr. Li has been appointed as an
executive director of CR Land, where he is currently a member of
the nomination committee, the corporate governance committee, the
executive committee and the CSR Committee. Subsequently, Mr. Li
was appointed as the president of CR Land in December 2018 and
concurrently serve as the chairman of East China Region.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of economics degree in investment
economics management from Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics in the PRC and a master of engineering degree in project
management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1994 and
2005, respectively.
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Mr. GUO Shiqging, aged 52
has been our Director since December 2018 and was appointed as
a non-executive Director in August 2020. He is a member of audit
committee of the Company.

Mr. Guo served as the accountant of Guangdong Electric Power First
Engineering Bureau (EREENTERBE—TIER) from July 1994 to
October 2001. Subsequently, he joined CR Land in October 2001 and
served as the manager of the finance management department of
Shenzhen CR Property Management Co. Ltd. (RIIZEBEYEERAR

23 &]) from October 2001 to September 2006. He subsequently served
as finance director of China Resources (Dalian) Co., Ltd. (Z8(KE&E)
HPBR A FA]) from September 2006 to January 2011, assistant general
manager of China Resources (Dalian) Co., Ltd. (28 (X&) AR A7)
from January 2011 to August 2012, and general manager of the finance
department of Shenyang region (known as Liaoning region prior to
October 2013) from August 2012 to November 2014. At the same time,
he also served as the assistant general manager and deputy general
manager of China Resources (Shenyang) Property Co., Ltd. (ZE/E (&RZ)
HEBRR A F]). Mr. Guo was the assistant general manager and finance
director of Shenyang region between November 2014 to November
2016, assistant general manager and finance director of Northeast
China Region from November 2016 to August 2017 and deputy general
manager of Northeast China Region from August 2017 to October
2018, mainly responsible for financial management of CR Land in the
Northeast China Region. He has been the general manager of the
finance department of CR Land since October 2018. He was appointed
as the assistant president and chief financial officer of CR Land in June
2020.

Mr. Guo completed an undergraduate program in accounting from
Xiamen University in the PRC in 1994.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer

GBS, SBS, J.P., aged 70

was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 25
November 2020. He is the Chairman of remuneration committee and a
member of nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Lau also currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 1888) and SEM Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock
code: 9929). Previously, Mr. Lau served as an independent non-
executive director of MTR Corporation Limited (a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 0066) from August 2015
to May 2019. Mr. Lau has more than 30 years of experience in the real
estate industry.

Mr. Lau is one of the founders of Hong Kong Coalition of Professional
Services and has been its chairman since June 2012. He is also a
member of the Board of Governors of Our Hong Kong Foundation,
member of the Basic Law Promotion Steering Committee. Previously,
he was a member of the Long Term Housing Strategy Steering
Committee from September 2012 to December 2013, chairman of the
Surveyors Registration Board from 1996 to 1997.

Mr. Lau is also currently a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference since March 2018
and served as a member of the HKSAR Legislative Council between
October 2000 to September 2004.

Mr. Lau obtained a higher diploma in quantity surveying from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (currently known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in 1974.
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Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching, aged 617

was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 25
November 2020. He is a member of audit committee and a member of
remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Cheung has over 30 years of experience in the real estate industry
and is the founder and chairman of ACR Asset Management founded
in March 2019. Prior to the establishment of ACR Asset Management,
Mr. Cheung joined C.Y. Leung & Co., in September 1995 as a director
of the PRC business. In 1997, he was appointed as the General
Manager of the Shanghai office of C.Y. Leung & Co., which became
part of DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited in 2000. In 2007, he was
appointed as DTZ mainland China CEO and in 2010, he was appointed
as DTZ Greater China CEO. After DTZ merged with Cushman &
Wakefield (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock
code: CWK) in 2015, he was Greater China CEO and chairman of Asia
Pacific Board of Cushman & Wakefield until April 2019. Mr. Cheung
is the honorary chairman of the Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in
Shanghai, the chairman of Shanghai — Hong Kong Association and a
Shanghai representative in the Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference.

Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor of Science degree in urban and
environmental planning from Anglia Ruskin University of the United
Kingdom in 1985. He is also a fellow member of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors since 2018.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan, age 55

was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on November
25, 2020. Mr. Chan is the chairman of audit committee and the
member of the remuneration committee.

Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Upbest Group Limited (a company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 00335) and UBA
Investments Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 00768). Mr. Chan is currently the chief
operations officer of Miramar Hotel and Investment Company, Limited,
(a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock code:
00071), a subsidiary of Henderson Land Development Company
Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock
code: 00012). Mr. Chan has 32 years of management experience for
several listed companies in various industries including hospitality and
tourism, passenger transport and real estates in China.

Mr. Chan is a standing member and convenor of Hong Kong members
of the Political Consultative Conference of Yunfu City, Guangdong
since 2011, a standing member of the Guangdong’'s Association for
Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong & Macao
since 2009, a member of the China Overseas Friendship Association
since 2019 and a member of Friends of Hong Kong Association2019
and a joint convenor of Hong Kong Coalition since 2020. Previously,
Mr. Chan was appointed as a member of the Board of Review (Inland
Revenue Ordinance) of the HKSAR from 2009 to 2011. He became an
elected member of the Election Committee of the HKSAR since 2021.

Mr. Chan graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known
as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in 1989 with a professional
diploma in Business Studies (Banking) and graduated from Monash
University in Australia with master degrees in Practising Accounting
and Business Law in 2000 and 2006 respectively. He is a member and
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
2002 and 2014 respectively, a member and fellow of CPA Australia
since 2001 and 2014 respectively, the certified membership of the
Institute of Certified Management Accountants (Australia) since 2003,
a fellow of The Chartered Governance Institute since 2001 (and has
subsequently received the designations of “Chartered Secretary” and
“Chartered Governance Professional” in 2018), a fellow of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute since 2001, a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors since 2002, an ordinary member and fellow
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since 2015 and
2021, a member of Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport in
Hong Kong since 2000. Mr. Chan is also a member of the Chartered
Banker Institute, the United Kingdom since 2014 with a designation
of “Chartered Banker” and an associate and “Certified Banker” of the
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers since 2003 and 2018 respectively.
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Ms. QIN Hong, aged 59

was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 25
November 2020. She has extensive real estate research experience.
She is a member of audit committee and a member of nomination
committee of the Company.

Ms. Qin is also an independent non-executive director and a member
of the Strategy and Investment Committee of Red Star Macalline
Group Corporation Ltd. (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1528), an independent director of Beijing
Capital Development Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, stock code: 600376), as well as a research fellow at
the Renmin University of China, a role she has assumed since May
2019. She was an independent non-executive director, the chair of the
nominating and corporate governance committee and a member of
the audit committee and compensation committee of Fang Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock
code: SFUN) from November 2019 to June 2020.

Ms. Qin successively worked as a deputy researcher, researcher,
deputy head researcher and head of Policy Research Center under
MOHURD from November 1994 to April 2019, and head of the China
Urban-Rural Development Economics Institute from September 2012
to April 2019. Ms. Qin was granted the honorary certificate of National
Outstanding Professional Talent in 2014.

Ms. Qin was also the director of department of Urban-Rural
Development Economics of the Graduate School of the Chinese
Academy of Social Science from August 2000 to June 2004.

Ms. Qin obtained a bachelor's degree in business administration and
economics from Shandong Economics Institute in the PRC (currently
known as Shandong University of Finance and Economics) in 1985, and
a master's degree in economics from The Graduate School of Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences in the PRC in 1988.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GUO Ruifeng, aged 44

was appointed as an assistant president and the chief human
resources officer of the Company in August 2020. He has experience
in real estate development management, commercial real estate
operation management and human resources management.

Mr. Guo has joined CR Land since July 2003 after obtaining his
master's degree, where he successively served as the manager of the
corporate development department of CR Land, as well as the deputy
manager and manager of the contract management department from
February 2005 to November 2008, and the manager, deputy director
and director of the sales management department of China Resources
Land (Hefei) Co., Ltd. EEHEH (A ) ERAF]) from November 2008
to September 2012. Mr. Guo served as the general manager of sales
management in Wuhan region from September 2012 to November
2016 and from 2015 to November 2016, he was also the general
manager of the Guanggu Changdong project in Wuhan region. Since
November 2016, Mr. Guo specialized in the commercial operational
services business of the Group and served as the general manager of
Hangzhou MIXC under the commercial real estate business division,
and subsequently also served as the deputy general manager of China
Resources Sun Hung Kai Properties (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. (ZEE#TEE
EbE (M) B AF) of East China Region from November 2016 to
February 2019, during which he was also the deputy general manager
of the commercial real estate business division in East China Region
from August 2018 to February 2019. He was appointed as the general
manager of Shenzhen MIXC under the commercial property business
unit in February 2019. For the purpose of the Reorganization, Mr. Guo
was appointed as the assistant president and chief human resources
officer of the Group in August 2020 to continue managing the Group's
business.

Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering and a
master’s degree in engineering (management science and engineering)
from Tsinghua University in the PRC in July 2000 and July 2003,
respectively.
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Mr. LUO Bing, aged 44

was appointed as an assistant president and the chief strategy officer
of the Company in August 2020. He has experience in real estate,
finance and corporate management.

Mr. Luo worked in China Resources Shenzhen from June 2004 to April
2012, where he served as the supervisor of the ice rink management
department; assistant manager, deputy manager and manager of the
investment department; deputy general manager of the Shenzhen
China Resources Centre; as well as the general manager and marketing
director of the ice rink. From April 2012 to April 2013, Mr. Luo attended
the first industry-finance integration senior practical course organized
by CR Holdings. Subsequently, he worked in the head office of China
Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai CR Bank") from April
2013 to October 2016, where he served as the industry expert of the
industry finance department, general manager of the housing and
construction department, assistant general manager of the real estate
financial business development department.

Mr. Luo transferred to CR Land in October 2016, and since then has
been mainly responsible for the management of the Group's property
management business. Mr. Luo successively served as the assistant
general manager of the property management business division and
the property management arm of the Group from October 2016 to
January 2018. He has been appointed as the deputy general manager
of property management arm of the Group since January 2018. For the
purpose of the Reorganization, Mr. Luo was appointed as the assistant
president and chief strategy officer of the Group in August 2020 to
continue managing the Group's business.

Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor's degree in international economics and
trade and a master’s degree in history of economic thoughts from
Xiamen University in the PRC in 2001 and 2004, respectively.
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present the corporate governance
report for the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the Board are committed to establishing good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The Company
recognizes the importance of maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to the long-term stable development of the Group.

The Company has applied the principles and adopted the code
provisions stated in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set out
in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own securities dealing code to
regulate all dealings by Directors and relevant employees of securities
in the Company and other matters covered by the Model Code.

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to all the directors
of the Company and the relevant employees and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code for the year
ended 31 December 2021.



—E - —FE®R%E ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

WA

B-ZE_—F A - REEELXRFHAY
B EF9RENANTES  MEIFNTE
ERNABIIFAITES -

SEgmERNT

Tan R 37 ST A (482
TEREAE
gL
BAlELt

FIMFELE(ERE)
BB

BIRE A
REIESEA
BRR&EELE
ES iR

EEMEHANNFREICEE
BREEABBE]—& -

FABHE[EFEN

BRAFHAFWEEN  TREBHEREFTSN
BREREBANBZEREEMER  BHEY
% X% REXHMER MHENBE -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the period from 1 January 2021 up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprises four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Mr. YU Linkang (President)
Mr. WANG Haimin

Ms. WEI Xiaohua

Ms. YANG Hongxia

Mr. LI Xin (Chairman)
Mr. GUO Shiging

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan
Ms. QIN Hong

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 36 to 48 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) between the chairman and the president or among the
Board of directors and senior management.
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#EEBRAEBMR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
the Directors and senior management of the Company for their
liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage will
be reviewed on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS, COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND
GENERAL MEETINGS

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code stipulates that board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of the majority of the Directors, either
in person or through electronic means of communications.

The Board held 5 meetings during the financial year ended 31
December 2021. The Directors expect to convene at least four regular
Board meetings in each financial year at approximately quarterly
intervals in accordance with code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code.
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Number of

meeting(s)
attended/number

of board meeting(s)

held during
the financial
year ended
31 December

Name of Director 2021
HITES: Executive Directors:
gl 7R BR S5 A Mr. YU Linkang 5/5
FTEREL Mr. WANG Haimin 5/5
BELL Ms. WEI Xiaohua 5/5
P4 20 Ms. YANG Hongxia 5/5
FHTES Non-executive Directors:
FREE Mr. LI Xin 5/5
MEFRE Mr. GUO Shiging 5/5
BAFHTES Independent non-executive Directors:
BImELLE Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer 5/5
REIESAE Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 5/5
PRoRER S Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan 5/5

Hir+ Ms. QIN Hong 5/5
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has
complied with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
and the number of independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board. The Board has also received from
each of the independent non-executive Directors a written annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of 3 years.

All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meeting of the Company. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to,
but not less than, one- third) shall retire from office by rotation and be
eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting of the Company,
provided that every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. In addition, any new Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold
office only until the next following general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re- election at that meeting.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is the primary decision-making body of the Company and is
responsible for overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board makes decisions objectively to safeguard in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day to day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. The senior management of the Group is responsible for
the day-to-day management and specific operation of the Group.
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES BETWEEN THE
CHAIRMAN AND THE PRESIDENT

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code and the terms of
reference of the Board adopted by the Company on 30 March 2022,
the roles of chairman and president of the Group are separate with
clear division of responsibilities. The chairman, Mr. Li Xin is responsible
for monitoring the long-term strategies, goals and directions of the
Company, ensuring the Board operates effectively and performs its
due duties, ensuring the Directors receive sufficient, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner, etc.. The president, Mr. Yu
Linkang is responsible for leading the management to implement the
strategies of the Company and reporting to the Board, providing the
Board with the required information to enable the Board to monitor
the performance of the management, formulating plans for the
development and succession of management, etc..

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Each of these committees is established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of each of
these committees are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee include, but not limited to (i) review and supervise
the financial controls, internal controls and risk management system
of the Group; (ii) provide advice and comments to the Board; and
(iii) perform other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by
the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Guo Shiging and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheung Kwok Ching, Mr. Chan Chung Yee Alan and Ms.
Qin Hong. Mr. Chan Chung Yee Alan is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee held 2 meetings during which they reviewed and
discussed, inter alia, the interim and annual results of the Group,
continuing connected transactions and property valuation reports for
investment properties and discussed the reappointment of the external
auditor; it had also reviewed the Group’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk assessment results.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members to committee
meetings is set out below:

[BY:1) P hg s
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Attended/Eligible

Directors to attend

BRRZFLE(ER) Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan (Chairman) 2/2
Bt F S & Mr. GUO Shiging 2/2
REIE S Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 2/2
R+ Ms. QIN Hong 2/2
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During the period from 1 January 2021 up to the date of this annual
report, the Board had not deviated from any recommendation given
by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

There are proper arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but not limited to (i)
making recommendations to the Board in relation to remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management of the
Company, and the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policy; (ii) determining remuneration
package of each Director and senior management according to the
authorization of the Board; and (iii) approving compensation payable
to the executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent
with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and reasonable and not
excessive.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Li Xin, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer, Mr. Cheung Kwok Ching and Mr.
Chan Chung Yee Alan. Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting during which they reviewed and discussed,
inter alia, the following matters: (i) the existing remuneration policy
of the Directors; (ii) the remuneration packages and terms of service
contracts of the executive Directors and senior management; and (iii)
the performance of the executive Directors.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members to
committee meeting is set out below:

Bl E#
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Attended/Eligible

Directors to attend

MELE(ER) Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer (Chairman) 17
REIERE Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 11
BRoR&F L& Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan 1/1
FMAEE Mr. LI Xin 1/

He_Z2-—F+_-_A=+—HIEFEEMK
REBSEBTMN 2 FBHRNGAEYBREWE
90

Details of the remuneration payable to each Director of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 9 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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The remuneration of the members of senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

A¥

Number of

7 T 448 18 (3 o) Remuneration bands (HK$) persons
4,500,000 = 5,000,000 4,500,000 to 5,000,000 1
5,500,000 £ 6,000,000 5,500,000 to 6,000,000 3
6,500,000 & 7,000,000 6,500,000 to 7,000,000 1
10,500,000 £ 11,000,000 10,500,000 to 11,000,000 1
mst Total 6
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but not limited
to (i) review the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
once a year and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes to the corporate strategy of the Company; (ii)
identify individuals qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations
to the Board on appointment or re-appointment of our Directors and
succession plan for Directors.

The Nomination Committee comprises one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Li Xin, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer and Ms. Qin Hong. Mr. Li Xin is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held 1 meetings during which they reviewed and
discussed, inter alia, the following matters: (i) the structure, size and
composition of the Board; (ii) board diversity; (iii) the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and of the Board as a whole;
and (iv) the director nomination policies.
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The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members to
committee meetings is set out below:

el

EEnze i)

Attended/Eligible

Directors to attend

ZMEE(ER) Mr. LI Xin (Chairman) 1M1

BIm= S E Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer 11

S Ms. QIN Hong 1/1
HHREHG NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
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The Company follows a fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new Directors for the Board to achieve a balance of
skills and experience and diversity to achieve the Company’s strategic
focus and specific business needs. Recognising the vitality of diversity
for the Board, the Company has adopted a board diversity policy,
details of which are set out in the below section headed “Board
Diversity Policy”.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least once a year and makes
recommendation to the Board to complement the corporate strategy
of the Company. The appointment of a new Director is a collective
decision of the Board, taking into consideration the procedures for
Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director of the
Company and the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Company.
The Board believes that changes to the Board composition shall be
managed without undue disruption, and shall continue to provide
a balanced composition of executive Directors and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) so that there
is a strong independent element in the Board, which can effectively
exercise independent judgement.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company formalised and adopted a Dividend Policy with effect
from 29 March 2021, aiming to provide shareholders of the Company
with an annual dividend payout of not less than 35% of the annual
core net profit available for distribution generated in any financial year,
subject to the criteria set out below. Such declaration and payment of
dividends shall remain to be determined at the absolute discretion of
the Board and subject to all applicable requirements (including without
limitation restrictions on dividend declaration and payment) under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association
of the Company.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account the following criteria, including: (1) the Group's actual and
expected financial performance; (2) shareholders’ interests; (3) general
business strategies; (4) retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the other members of the Group; (5) the
Group's indebtedness level, key financial ratios (such as the Group's
debt to equity ratio and return on equity) and any financial covenants
to which the Group is subject; (6) the Group's expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans; (7) liquidity position and
future commitments at the time of declaration of dividend; (8) taxation
considerations, and legal and regulatory restrictions; (9) possible
effects on the Group’'s creditworthiness; (10) general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group's business and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company; and (11) other factors that
the Board deems appropriate.

The Board may from time to time pay to the shareholders such interim
dividends subject to the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company. Except in the case of interim
dividend, any dividends declared by the Company must be approved by
an ordinary resolution of shareholders at an annual general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. Dividends
may be distributed in the form of cash or shares subject to and in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Company will regularly
review the Dividend Policy and reserve the right in its sole and absolute
discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at
any time, and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board.
The Group recognizes the benefits of having a diversified Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of the Group’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development.
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Directors
B Male
% Female

The Group has developed measurable objectives to achieve diversity of
our Board through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to professional experience, talents, skills, knowledge,
cultural and education background, gender, age, ethnicity and length of
service. Our Directors have a balanced mix of experiences, including
overall management, brand improvement, business development and
finance experiences. Our Directors obtained degrees in various majors
including accounting, engineering and economics. As of the date of
this report, the male-to-female ratios of the Company's Board, senior
management and workforce are set out as follows:

WA W B4 PR D LA %
Board of Senior  Total number
Directors management of employees
70% 66.67 % 67.74%
30% 33.33% 32.26%
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For the purpose of implementing the Diversity Policy, the following
measurable objectives were achieved for the financial year ended
31 December 2021: (i) the Company should comply with the
requirements on board composition in the Listing Rules from time
to time; (ii) the number of independent non-executive Directors
should be not less than three and one-third of the Board; (iii) at
least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise; and (iv) at least one Director should be a
professional or have intensive experience of the industry on which the
business of the Group is in.

Having reviewed the Board composition, the Board recognises
the importance and benefits of gender diversity at both the Board
and senior management level and is of the view that the ratios of
female members among our Board (30%) and senior management
(33.33%) are satisfactory for the financial year ended 31 December
2021. The Board will continue to take initiatives to promote gender
diversity among the Board and senior management members and
implement measurable objectives in this regard in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee will also
review the Diversity Policy and its implementation from time to time to
ensure its implementation and monitor its continued effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance duties set out in
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviews the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and
the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in its
Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company may from time to time and as
the circumstances require provide updated written training materials
relating to the roles, functions and duties of a director of a company
listed on the Stock Exchange to the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of the responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company.

The Company acknowledges the importance of directors participating
in appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant internally-facilitated briefings
for the Directors have been arranged and reading material on relevant
topics would be issued to the Directors where appropriate. They
are encouraged to attend relevant training course at the Company's
expenses.
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BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—BIFE =% During the year ended 31 December 2021 the Directors participated

UTAAXL2EBREITEFREEER - & in the continuous professional developments in relation to legal and
EHEEEBEURAEREBOFEEERRE - regulatory update, the duties and responsibility of the Directors and the
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business of the Group in the following manner:

Fri R B R 2 B0

Type of continuous professional
development

B AT B A 2 )
JRB 2 BT W AT R K
¥ sk TR AR TR

Reading
regulatory Attending
updates or training on
information regulatory
relevant to development

the Company and directors’

Directors or its business duties

Executive Directors

Mr. YU Linkang (President) (4 (%4
Mr. WANG Haimin v 4
Ms. WEI Xiaohua v (4
Ms. YANG Hongxia v [%4
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xin (Chairman) v v
Mr. GUO Shiging v v
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer (4 v
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching v v
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan v v
Ms. QIN Hong v (%4

RATBHE LT RERE - RESRE TR The Company will arrange regular seminars to provide Directors with
REMBEEEIEREERENFNRAER R updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and
BE) o  ERNERHMARARE KA KAS other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
HEHEHN RESSEBREESFETRE - The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s

performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY AND
REMUNERATION

The Company appointed Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong (“EY")as the external auditor for the year ended
31 December 2021. A statement by EY about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is included in the section
headed “Independent Auditor's Report” of this annual report.

Details of the fees paid/payable in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided by EY for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the table below:

P G 1 e Services rendered

BRI : Audit services:

HE-Z—-—F+=-A=+—H Annual audit for the year ended 31 December 2021 AR#2,800,0007T
IEFERNFERZ RMB2,800,000
HE—_ZT—-—F/"A=+HIE/X Review for the interim financial statements for the six AR#500,0007T
18 A = HR B 74 S 3k 0 22 B4 months ended 30 June 2021 RMB500,000
BEAR S EHFZ Specific audit for material transactions 7 1#200,0007T
HKD200,000
ERRENEAER Total fees for audit services: AR#3,463,0007T
RMB3,463,000

FEZRE : Non-audit services:
—E-—FHRE  HE@RKEA  Environmental, social and governance consulting AE#220,0007T
e AR 7S services in 2021 RMB220,000
T E R A RS Equity valuation model consulting services AR #230,0007C
RMB230,000
FERRENWAER Total fees for non-audit services: AR #450,0007T

RMB450,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the Company's risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing its effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. The Group's internal audit team and senior management
conduct reviews of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. The Audit Committee reviews
the findings and recommendations of the internal audit team and the
senior management in their meetings at least twice a year and reports
to the Board on such review.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage, rather than eliminate business risk; to help safeguard the
Group’'s assets against fraud and other irregularities; and to give
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material financial
misstatement or loss. In addition, it should provide a basis for the
maintenance of proper and fair accounting records and assist in the
compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

From 1 January 2021 to the date of this annual report, the Board,
through the Audit Committee, reviewed the overall effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems, covering
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions and results of risk assessment.

The Board believes that there are no material internal control
deficiencies that may affect the shareholders of the Company and an
effective and adequate risk management and internal control system
is in place to safeguard the assets of the Group. The Audit Committee
and senior management will together monitor the implementation of
risk management policies on an ongoing basis to ensure the policies
and implementation are effective and sufficient.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has in place a framework for the disclosure of inside
information by reference to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The
framework sets out the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in an appropriate
and timely manner, such as steps to ascertain sufficient details,
conduct internal assessment of the matter and its likely impact on the
Company, seek professional advice where required and verification
of the facts. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
any persons who possess the knowledge of such information must
ensure strict confidentiality and must not deal in any of the Company's
securities.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary (“Company Secretary”), Mr. Lo Chi
Lik, Peter, is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. Although the Company
Secretary is not a full time employee of the Company, he reports to the
Board and in his capacity as Company Secretary advises the Board on
governance matters. The primary contact person of the Company with
the Company Secretary was Ms. Yang Hongxia, executive Director
of the Company. The Company Secretary has confirmed that he has
attended at least 15 hours of professional development in 2021.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board strives to maintain a continuing open dialogue with the
shareholders of the Company. Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings. The process of the Company’s general meeting is monitored
and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be
made to ensure that shareholders’ needs are best served.

The Company uses annual general meeting as one of the principal
channels for communicating with its shareholders. The Company
ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board.
At the annual general meeting, each substantially separate issue
has been considered by a separate resolution, including the election
of individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the
respective board committees and the external auditor usually attend
annual general meetings to inter-face with and answer questions from
shareholders.



066

—ZT - —FF5H%E ANNUAL REPORT 2021

e STk a

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HIFE XA
AT —RRERE T -—FlRER
FRE([ZZZ—FHREBFARE]) - =F
T FRERFAEN _E-—FXANAR
BB BT A EE265REHRNEI6ERIT - &
E(PRESFSIRE BFHZESXIF  REZ
BEEIREFMEESER)  URAQFINE
REMEZKOEFE S —FERRBAFAE -
ENEINEESHEFE S FRRBFELS
Ky ERE P T

Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company held one
general meeting, which was the 2021 annual general meeting (“2021
AGM"). The 2021 AGM was held on 8 June 2021 at 46th Floor, China
Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and the external auditor of
the Company, EY, attended the 2021 AGM. The attendance records of
the then Directors to the 2021 AGM are set out below:

i/ BORE

Meeting(s)
attended/held

BITES Executive Directors

gy R B O AR (HB ) Mr. YU Linkang (President) 171
FEREE Mr. WANG Haimin 1/1
BNEZL Ms. WEI Xiaohua 171
IS4+ Ms. YANG Hongxia 11
FHITES Non-Executive Directors

EMRAEE(ER) Mr. LI Xin (Chairman) 1/1
B LA Mr. GUO Shiging 1/1
BAFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors

BMELE Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer 1/1
REIELAE Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 1/1
BRoR SR Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan 11
E iR Ms. QIN Hong 1/1

REEFTERARRABZZAMANPE T 21
N B BRREEZRBARRBREIRE T UETT
TR - RARRBEBBRENARRAE L
REZHBERBRETRR - AR_FT_—F
BRBFEFRERE LERBRESAARRZERF
BT - —FREBEFAERAIGERZRNIMAR
-

The chairman of the meeting exercised his power under the
Company's Articles of Association to put each proposed resolution
to vote by way of a poll. The Company adopted poll voting for all
resolutions put to vote at the meeting. The procedures for voting by
poll at the 2021 AGM were explained at the 2021 AGM prior to the
polls being taken.
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(3) EEIERLIR/EE -
(4) BRBUBLTAES-
(5) BEFMELRES -
(6) EEDBHFLERES -
(7) EBEIAMBRERES -
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Percentage of
votes casts

Resolutions proposed at the 2021 AGM in favour

To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements
and the Directors’ Report and the Independent Auditor’s
Report for the year ended 31 December 2020. 99.99%

To declare a final dividend of HK$0.158 per share for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

99.99%

(1) To re-elect Mr. Yu Linkang as Director. 99.99%
(2)  To re-elect Mr. Wang Haimin as Director. 99.93%
(3)  To re-elect Ms. Wei Xiaohua as Director. 99.93%
(4)  To re-elect Ms. Yang Hongxia as Director. 99.93%
(5)  To re-elect Mr. Li Xin as Director. 99.90%
(6) To re-elect Mr. Guo Shiging as Director. 92.65%
(7)  To re-elect Mr. Lau Ping Cheung Kaizer as Director. 99.99%
(8) To re-elect Mr. Cheung Kwok Ching as Director. 99.99%
(9)  To re-elect Mr. Chan Chung Yee Alan as Director. 99.94%
(10) To re-elect Ms. Qin Hong as Director. 99.99%
(11) To authorise the board of directors to fix the

remuneration of the Directors. 99.99%
To re-appoint EY as the auditor of the Company and
authorise the board of directors to fix their remuneration. 99.90%
To give a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase
shares of the Company not exceeding 10% of the issued
shares. 99.94%
To give a general mandate to the Directors to issue new
shares of the Company not exceeding 20% of the issued
shares. 85.02%

To extend the general mandate to be given to the
Directors to issue shares by the addition of the shares
repurchased by the Company under Item No.5 above. 85.36%
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All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2021 AGM were passed.
There were no shares entitling the holders to attend and abstain
from voting in favour of the resolutions at the 2021 AGM as set
out in Rule 13.40 of the Listing Rules and there were no shares
requiring the holders to abstain from voting at the 2021 AGM under
the Listing Rules. The Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
acted as scrutineer for the poll and counted the poll votes cast at the
2021 AGM. The results of the voting by poll were published on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of
any one or more members holding together, as at the date of deposit of
the requisition, shares representing not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company which carry the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. The written requisition shall be deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office
of the Company, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist(s).

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association for the
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals may request the
Company to convene an EGM in accordance with the procedures
set out in the above paragraph headed “Convening of EGM by
Shareholders”. Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director have been uploaded to the Company's website.
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The shareholders of the Company shall direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’'s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

In addition, the shareholders and the investment community may at
any time contact the Company’'s Investor Relations Department to
enquire about the information published by the Company. The contact
details are as follows:

Investor Relations

China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited
30/F., China Resources Land Building Tower B

No. 9668 Shennan Avenue

Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China

Email: ir_mixc@crland.com.cn

Tel: 852-2877 2330/86-755 28681268 8700

Fax: 852-2877 9068
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. To ensure that the shareholders and potential investors
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, the Company has
established several channels to communicate with the shareholders
as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports and circulars are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange;

(i)  periodic announcements are published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange;

(iii) corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website; and

(iv) annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential investors.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The latest version of the Company’s Articles of Association is available
at the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. No changes
have been made to the Company’ Articles of Association during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present this report of Directors
together with the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Mr. YU Linkang (President)

Mr. WANG Haimin (Vice president)

Ms. WEI Xiaohua (Vice president)

Ms. YANG Hongxia (Chief financial officer)

Mr. LI Xin (Chairman)
Mr. GUO Shiging

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer
Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan
Ms. QIN Hong

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 36 to 48 of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading property management and commercial
operational service provider in China. The Group provides property
management and value-added services to one of the largest portfolios
of residential properties, and also manages and operates a diversified
and growing portfolio of commercial properties comprising shopping
malls and office buildings.

Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group including an analysis of
the Group's financial performance and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group's business is set out in the section headed
“"Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. These
discussions form part of the Report of the Directors. The Group's key
relationship with its stakeholders (including employees, customers and
suppliers) who have a significant impact on the Group and on which
the Group's success depends, is set out in this report. Events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in the section headed “Important Events
After The Balance Sheet Date” in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties.
The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are set out as
follows:

Changes in the general economic and market conditions including
changes in international, national, regional and local economic
conditions, market volatility, declining demand for residential or
commercial real estate, falling real estate values, disruption to the
global capital or credit markets may also negatively affect the PRC
property management and commercial operational service markets
which could, in turn, have a material adverse effect on the PRC
property management and commercial operational service markets
which could, in turn, have a material adverse effect on the Group.

As the Group does not have control over the business strategies of
CR Group and CR Land, nor any factor that may affect their business
operations, any adverse development in the operations of CR Group
and CR Land or their ability to develop new properties may affect the
Group's ability to procure new service contracts. In addition, there can
be no assurance that all of the Group's service contracts with CR Group
and CR Land will be renewed successfully upon their expiration.
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The Group intends to strategically expand its business through
collaboration with independent third parties. However, there can
be no assurance that it will maintain its current revenue levels and
profitability if it takes on more projects from, or sign more service
contracts with, independent third-party developers in the future.

The Group provides property management services under the trade
name of “ZEE" (China Resources) and commercial operational and
subleasing services mainly under brands of "% " (MIXC) and "&
KME” (MIXONE). Any material negative publicity associated with the
Group’s brands and any unauthorized use of its brand names or related
trademarks could diminish the value of its brands, market reputation
and competitive advantages.

The protection of the Group's brands, including related trademarks,
may require the expenditure of significant financial and operational
resources. Moreover, the steps the Group takes to protect its brands
may not adequately protect its rights or prevent third parties from
infringing or misappropriating its trademarks. Even when infringement
or misappropriation of its trademarks is detected, the Group may
not be able to enforce all such trademarks. Any unauthorized use by
third parties of the Group's brands may adversely affect its brands.
Furthermore, as the Group continues to expand its business, there is
a risk that the Group may face claims of infringement or other alleged
violations of third-party intellectual property rights, which may restrict
us from leveraging its brands in a manner consistent with its business
goals.

The Group has adopted a sound risk management and internal control
systems, details of which are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate its business in compliance
with applicable environmental protection laws and regulations and
has implemented relevant environmental protection measures in
compliance with the required standards under applicable PRC laws and
regulations.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
will be disclosed in the environmental, social and governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 to be published in
due course.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no
material breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group believes that the expertise, experience and professional
development of the employees contribute to the growth of the Group.
The human resources department of the Group manages, trains and
hires employees. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 28,654
(As at 31 December 2020: 27,077) full time employees in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. The Group believes in the importance of
attraction, recruitment and retention of quality employees in achieving
the Group's success. The Group’'s success depends on our ability to
attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel. Compensation for
the Group's employees typically consists of basic salary, allowances
and subsidies (transportation, communication, housing subsidies
and allowances for staff relocated from other places), welfare (lunch
subsidies, cold and heat prevention subsidies), performance-based
bonus and year-end bonus. The Group provides the employees
with basic pension scheme, basic medical insurance, workplace
injury insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity insurance and
housing providence funds in accordance with relevant PRC laws and
regulations. For the remuneration expenses for the year ended 31
December 2021, please refer to Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to this retirement benefits scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

Details of the pension obligations of the Group are set out in Note 2.4
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 30 March 2021, CR Property Management (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into the an agreement with
Pinghu Zhenshang (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which CR
Property Management agreed to dispose and Pinghu Zhenshang
agreed to acquire the (i) approximately 9,100 planting stocks
such as Ginkgo ($877) and lacebark pine (A #}) which were
planted by the Company and/or third parties commissioned by
the Company (the “Planting Stocks"”); and (ii) related fixed assets
such as lawn mowers and insecticide sprayer (together with the
Planting Stocks, the “Assets”) at an aggregate consideration of
RMB19,157,619.64.

The revenue generated from the sale of Planting Stocks
represented less than 0.02% of the total revenue of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The main purpose of
disposing the Assets is to divest the relevant business of the
Group so as to ensure that the Group can focus its time and
resources on its principal businesses in property management
and commercial operational services. The Board (including the
independent non-executive Directors) believes that the disposal
can further optimise the operating capacity and assets structure
of the Group and is of the view that terms of the Agreement
are fair and reasonable, and the entering into of the Agreement
is conducted on normal commercial terms, in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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CR Land is a controlling Shareholder of the Company interested
in approximately 72.29% of the total issued share capital of
the Company, CR Land is therefore a connected person of the
Company. As Pinghu Zhenshang is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CR Land, the entering into of the Agreement constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
in respect of the disposal is less than 5%, the disposal is only
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements, and
is exempted from the circular, independent financial advice and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Details of the above transaction are set out in the connected
transaction announcement of the Company dated 30 March
2021.

On 30 March 2021, CR Mixc Shenzhen (as transferee) entered
into (i) an agreement (the “Copyrights Transfer Agreement”)
with Shenzhen Qianhai (as transferor), where Shenzhen Qianhai
agrees to transfer, among others, the ownership, operating rights
and software copyrights pertinent to the Programmes (as defined
below) to CR Mixc Shenzhen; and (ii) an agreement (the “Domain
Names Transfer Agreement”) with CR Shenzhen (as transferor),
where CR Shenzhen agrees to transfer, among others, the
ownership of the Domain Names (as defined below).
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Principal terms of the Copyrights Transfer Agreement are
summarised as follows:

Date: 30 March 2021

Parties: (1) Shenzhen Qianhai, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRL, as transferor; and

(2) CR Mixc Shenzhen, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as
transferee

Programmes: 53 different programmes (“Programmes”)
in total, comprising:

(i) four mobile applications in connection
with the “"E-MIXC(—EEXK)" platform;

(ii) 48 relevant WeChat mini programmes;
and

(iii) one Alipay mini programme

The aforesaid programmes include
the underlying source codes, design
documents and/or files, and data. As
advised by Shenzhen Qianhai, the
development cost of the Programmes
was approximately RMB100,874,000. As
the development cost of the Programmes
was expensed and no assets were
recognised based on the accounting
standards adopted by Shenzhen Qianhai,
the Programmes had nil book value as of
28 February 2021.

Consideration: RMB116,005,400, which is payable by CR
Mixc Shenzhen within six months from the
date of the agreement
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Principal terms of the Domain Names Transfer Agreement
are summarised as follows:

Date:

Parties:

Domain
Names:

Consideration:

30 March 2021

(1) CR Shenzhen, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CR Land, as transferor;
and

(2) CR Mixc Shenzhen, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as
transferee

six domain names (the “Domain Names”)
in connection with the “"E-MIXC (—24&
R)" platform

As advised by Shenzhen Qianhai, the
development cost of the Domain Names
was approximately RMB300. As the
development cost of the Domain Names
was expensed and no assets were
recognised based on the accounting
standards adopted by CR Shenzhen, the
Domain Names had nil book value as of
28 February 2021.

RMB1,600, which is payable by CR Mixc
Shenzhen within six months from the
date of the agreement
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The terms of each of the Copyrights Transfer Agreement and the
Domain Names Transfer Agreement were agreed by the parties after
arm’s length negotiations and are on normal commercial terms. The
consideration under of the Copyrights Transfer Agreement and the
Domain Names Transfer Agreement will be settled out of the internal
financial resources of the Group.

The Group is principally engaged in property management and
commercial operational services in the PRC. As an online extension of
shopping mall commercial operational services, E-MIXC (—2/EXR) is
an official online customer service platform that the Company operates
to facilitate consumers’ shopping experience, which is provided
through mobile applications and WeChat official accounts. The
platform provides brief introduction of each of the Company's operated
shopping malls and regularly releases news and updated information
regarding sales promotion, service updates and other shopping malls
activities.

Prior to the listing of the Company, CR Land has agreed to transfer to
the Company the operating rights of, and relevant software copyrights
pertinent to, the E-MIXC (—24&%) mobile application and relevant
WeChat mini programmes (which are already under the effective
operation by us). Accordingly, the transaction under the Copyright
Transfer Agreement is contemplated prior to the listing of the
Company. The Board believes that the acquisition of the Programmes
and the Domain Names provides an appealing investment opportunity
for the Group which will enable the Group to have ownership,
management and operating rights to freely edit and develop the
Programmes and utilise the Domain Names in order to fully utilise
the full potential of the Programmes and the Domain Names without
any reliance on CR Land Group. The acquisition will also enable the
Group to further enhance and upgrade its information technology
service to its customers, which is in line with the Company's future
plan disclosed in its listing document to invest approximately HK$220
million of the net proceeds from the global offering to upgrade the
digital service platforms, including the E-MIXC platform.

The Board (including the independent non-executive Directors) is of
the view that terms of both the Copyrights Transfer Agreement and
the Domain Names Transfer Agreement were determined after arm'’s
length negotiations between the Company, Shenzhen Qianhai and
CR Shenzhen, which are fair and reasonable, and the entering into of
the Copyrights Transfer Agreement and the Domain Names Transfer
Agreement are on normal commercial terms, in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.
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As approximately 72.29% of the shares issued by the Company are
directly held by CR Land, CR Land is the controlling shareholder of the
Company and therefore a connected person of the Company. As CR
Mixc Shenzhen is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and both
Shenzhen Qianhai and CR Shenzhen are wholly-owned subsidiaries
of CR Land, the entering into of the Copyrights Transfer Agreement
and the Domain Names Transfer Agreement constitute connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As each of the highest percentage ratios (as defined under the Listing
Rules) in respect of the Copyrights Transfer Agreement and the
Domain Names Transfer Agreement exceeds 0.1% but is less than 5%,
the transactions contemplated under each of the Copyrights Transfer
Agreement and the Domain Names Transfer Agreement are only
subject to reporting and announcement requirements but are exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above transactions are set out in the connected
transaction announcement of the Company dated 30 March 2021.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021:

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (SUBJECT TO REPORTING,
ANNUAL REVIEW AND ANNOUNCEMENT
REQUIREMENTS)

The Company entered into the property leasing framework
agreement with CR Land on 20 November 2020 (the “CR Land
Property Leasing Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
(1) the Group may, from time to time, lease certain properties
from CR Land and its associates (the “CR Land Connected
Persons”) as office and/or employee quarter(s) for our own use,
(2) the CR Land Connected Persons may, from time to time,
lease certain properties from our Group as office for its own use,
and (3) the CR Land connected persons may lease certain retail
spaces managed by the Group as tenants under the commercial
subleasing model.

The initial term of the CR Land Property Leasing Framework
Agreement commenced on 9 December 2020 (the “Listing
Date”) until 31 December 2022, subject to renewal by mutual
consent.
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The amount paid/received in respect of the CR Land Property
Leasing Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 is set out below:

(ARWTT)

(1) AEEAFHEMBEALHERYE

(1)

(RMB000)

The Group leasing from the CR Land Connected

Persons 24,544
(2) EEEMEBEATEAEEHEBYWE (2) CR Land Connected Persons leasing from the
Group _
(3) EHEBMEEATIRERESMERX  (3) CR Land Connected Persons leasing from the
BARSEERAYE Group under the commercial subleasing mode 4,624
HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HEKEZ The annual caps in respect of the CR Land Property Leasing

T__Ft+-A=1+— EIJJ:I_iﬁﬁiJ‘“z
FoEREMYFEEERBENFEL
REFIMT -

Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the year ending 31 December 2022 are set out below:

BEFZHAZ P HIRAE 2 @A B (ARRT0)

Proposed annual caps (RMB’000) for the year ending 31 December

2021 2022

(1) AEEGgEFEEMEEATE (1) The Group leasing from the CR Land

=k EU Connected Persons 96,459 108,357
(2) EBEWEEALBEAREEM (2) CR Land Connected Persons leasing
IEE/ES from the Group 5,175 13,662
(3) FEHEMREATIRIEEZES (3) CR Land Connected Persons leasing
HEXEREEERYE from the Group under the commercial
subleasing model 20,072 24,087
Bz - Note:
1. FEFREGAHREFYEHER 1. The annual caps refer to both estimated rental payment and

EROEFARERE - B2 —F = —14F
A=+ HUFEREE T ==
FH—AZ+—HIFE FELERS
FIABA R 964596 E T (EF AR
#91.778E BT i tERABE FTHOEME
BIEAEEERHIARKL681 5 ET
HERAHEE) RARE108.357 HET
(BEAHARKE100.956 5 & T 5 #R 4
ETYEHENEAREERIARE
7.401 BB HERBHE)

recognition of right-of-use assets from certain property leases.
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and the year ending 31
December 2022, the annual caps are RMB96,459 thousands
(among which approximately RMB91,778 thousands will be
recognized as right-of-use assets from certain property leases, and
approximately RMB4,681 thousands will be rental payment) and
RMB108,357 thousands (among which approximately RMB100,956
thousands will be recognized as right- of-use assets from certain
property leases, and approximately RMB7,401 thousands will be
rental payment), respectively.
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PROPERTY LEASING
Background

The Company entered into the property leasing framework
agreement with CR Holdings on 20 November 2020 (the “CRH
Property Leasing Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
(1) the Group may, from time to time, lease certain properties
from the CR Group and its associates (excluding the CR Land
Connected Persons) (“CRH Connected Persons”) as office for
its own use, (2) the CRH Connected Persons may, from time to
time, lease certain properties from the Group for its operation,
and (3) the CRH Connected Persons may lease certain retail
spaces managed by the Group as tenants under the commercial
subleasing model.

The initial term of the CRH Property Leasing Framework
Agreement commenced on the Listing Date until 31 December
2022, subject to renewal by mutual consent.

The amount paid/received in respect of the CRH Property Leasing

Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
set out below:

(ARWTT)

(RMB’000)

(1) AEBEBEAFEH(EBE)EEALHBY (1) The Group leasing from the CRH Connected

¥ Persons 387
(2) EB(EE)EEATEREREAY (2) CRH Connected Persons leasing from the Group

M -
3) EB(REDEEALEAZSOMEER
BEARKEEAME

(3) CRH Connected Persons leasing from the Group

under the commercial subleasing model 8,728
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The annual caps in respect of CRH Property Leasing Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the year
ending 31 December 2022 are set out below:

BEFZH = — Hab ARl 4r B LR (ARWT0)

Proposed annua

I caps (RMB’000) for the year ending 31 December

2021 2022

() AEEaFEH(REBEEA ()
THEAYED

2 FBEEBEALEAE (2
EGZEE/ES

@) FH(RBEBEEALEZEE ()
HHEBRAAARERBYE

The Group leasing from CRH Connected

Persons!" 16,256 20,564
CRH Connected Persons leasing from

the Group 51 55
CRH Connected Persons leasing from

the Group under the commercial

subleasing model 21,534 34,454

1. #E —Ft+ZHA=+—HR&EZE
*T\**J’FHL A=+—HiEmEF
B FAHERHSRREEE  KFF
FRLRIGIEEHERERER

Ji A5 LA

il
o

ARBEEHEWR T _TF+— 8
T HIVEEMNEEERBGH([FE
EBBERDH] Bt - AKEATE
IR S NEBEREHEMEEA T
ENETAREEEMNEERER SFEA
#E o

FEUBEERGBHZNSFHRA LD
BffEE—T_—F+_FA=+—08 7
KEZRBRED -

BHE-_Z-_—F+-A=t+—HILFE"
AEEREBEEEMNBEERBETE
BLEAARKEBLIBI0BET - HE-E
——F+ZA=+-—ARZE-__F+=
A=+—BLEMEAFE FEMEEESR
MENFEERESEL FRDABARE
350.000E &t X AR #350.000E & T °

Note:

1. For the year ended 31 December 2021 and the year ending 31
December 2022, the annual caps refer to recognition of right-of-use
assets as the leases are expected to be long term leases.

w

PURCHASE OF PARKING SPACES
Background

The Company entered into the parking spaces purchase
framework agreement with CR Land on 20 November 2020
(the “Parking Spaces Purchase Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group may, from time to time, enter into
transactions to purchase the ownership of and/or the right to use
certain unsold parking spaces which are owned by the CR Land
Connected Persons.

The initial term of the Parking Spaces Purchase Framework
Agreement commenced on the Listing Date until 31 December
2022, subject to renewal by mutual consent.

The purchase amount paid under the Parking Spaces Purchase
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
RMB54,810 thousands. The annual caps of the annual purchase
amounts in respect of the Parking Spaces Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the year
ending 31 December 2022 are RMB350,000 thousands and
RMB350,000 thousands, respectively.
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PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES
Background

The Company entered into the procurement of and provision
of goods and services framework agreement with CR Holdings
on 20 November 2020 (the “CRH Procurement Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which (1) the Group may, from time
to time, procure from the CRH Connected Persons certain types
of goods and services which include staff uniforms, food items
and utilities (gas and electricity) which are aggregated by the
Company to streamline the management of these transactions,
and (2) the CRH Connected Persons may, from time to time,
procure from the Group marketing services for the respective
users in the CR Life Club (#£)83#) through points conversion.

The initial term of the CRH Procurement Framework Agreement
commenced on the Listing Date until 31 December 2022, subject
to renewal by mutual consent.

The annual amounts paid/received under the CRH Procurement
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
set out below:

AEENEESS

FR(EEEALNBESHE

(AR L)

(RMB’000)

Purchase amount by the Group 59,039
Purchase amount by the CRH Connected Persons 118

BE_ZT-—F+A=+T—HR#EE=
T F+A=F+—HIMEAFE - =
H(RE)HRBERBZENTE LREN
™

The annual caps in respect of CRH Procurement Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the year
ending 31 December 2022 are set out below:

BETZH =S HIRR R RAEE ER (AR TO)

Proposed annual caps (RMB’000) for the year ending 31 December

AEENBERESE
EFR(EEEALNBESHE

Purchase amount by the Group 101,662 151,476
Purchase amount by the CRH Connected
Persons 253 278
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The Company have entered into the provision of commercial
operational services (commercial properties) framework
agreement with CR Holdings on 20 November 2020 (the “CRH
Commercial Operational Services Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group may, from time to time, provide
commercial operational services to the CRH Connected Persons
for their commercial properties (including shopping malls and
office buildings). The commercial operational services include
(i) pre-opening management services (such as positioning
and design management services, and tenant sourcing and
management services) and (ii) operation management services
(such as opening preparation services, tenant coaching,
consumer management, and marketing and promotion).

The initial term of the CRH Commercial Operational Services
Framework Agreement commenced on the Listing Date until 31
December 2022, subject to renewal by mutual consent.

The service fee received by the Group under the CRH
Commercial Operational Services Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is RMB74,958 thousands. The
annual caps of the annual service fee amounts in respect of the
CRH Commercial Operational Services Framework Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the year ending 31
December 2022 are RMB142,984 thousands and RMB147,612
thousands, respectively.



086

—ZT - —FF5H%E ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

0.

PGB B (A [ 394 1 AR 25 S 8t
S5 5% B % 1 A 39 1 R )

4k 51
A=

ARERER(KRE)IR-_FT_FF+—5
T RAIMERERBIER B (TEB (%
®) EERBERRBZE]) @ &L AEE
AR S EEE (R BB AL RE K3k
BRENEEHEREMIFBHEDERAR S
REIRERTS - PRt ERE 5L
[ (B AR 7 () a0 At [ A2 0% AR 7GR A8 42 I
BERD) Rt ERERNEERE
(fIonEE R AR - A1 A RS R XA AT
B A RTE) o

E=H(EE)EERBIERB ROV F
HEA TR EZE T - —_F+_A
=+—H " AJKESFRERES -

BE-T_—®+_A=t+-ALFE "
A AR IREE R (R ) S E R 2E 53
WHRRFEBIIDT

0.

PROVISION OF VALUE-ADDED SERVICES
(COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES AND
VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO PROPERTY
DEVELOPERS)

Background

The Company entered into the value-added services framework
agreement with CR Holdings on 20 November 2020 (the “CRH
Value-added Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group may from time to time, provide value-added
services to the CRH Connected Persons for the residential
properties and other non-commercial properties developed and/
or owned by them. The value-added services to be provided
include community value-added services (such as community
living services and brokerage and assets services) and value-
added services to property developers (such as consultancy
services, preliminary preparation services and pre-delivery
marketing services).

The initial term of the CRH Value-added Services Framework
Agreement commenced on the Listing Date until 31 December
2022, subject to renewal by mutual consent.

The fees received by the Group under the CRH Value-added
Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 is set out below:

(ARW¥TT)
(RMB000)
NER B B AL IR G B AR AU Y & A Fees received by the Group for the community value-
added services 454
REBGHE Y ER R EHILEREWE.  Fees received by the Group for the value-added
# & A services to property developers 1,123
s Total 1.577
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The annual caps in respect of the CRH Value-added Services
B Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the year ending 31 December 2022 are set out below:

BEFZH = — Hab ARl 4r B LR (ARWT0)

Proposed annual caps (RMB’000) for the year ending 31 December

REEBHRIEEREKBRNE

Fees to be received by the Group for the

A community value-added services 6,124 13,851
NEEGSTE B EMIL(E  Fees to be received by the Group for
Ak 75 W B Y 2 R the value-added services to property
developers 27,790 29,463
A5t Total 33.914 43.314
T 5 18 B 28 o (B T iR NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED

SRR B ~ 2 B B R
BAE)
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TRANSACTIONS (SUBJECT TO REPORTING,
ANNUAL REVIEW, ANNOUNCEMENT AND
INDEPENDENT SHAREHOLDERS* APPROVAL

REQUIREMENTS)

7. PROVISION OF PROPERTY MANAGEMENT
SERVICES
Background

ARREEHEMNR T _FTF+—A
T RAZRUMEEERBIERGZ
(TEHEHMEERRBIERRZE]) &
b AEE R AR EEEMREEA LR
BRGEANEER S LREEWERA
OERRERRDEE LR -

EHEMMREERGERBENNSF
HREBLTHERE-_T-_—_F+_-A4
=t—H AEEHTRBRED-

The Company entered into the provision of property management
services framework agreement with CR Land on 20 November
2020 (the “CR Land Property Management Services Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group may, from time to
time, provide property management services to the CR Land
Connected Persons for the residential and/or commercial
properties and other properties developed and/or owned by
them.

The initial term of the CR Land Property Management Services
Framework Agreement commenced on the Listing Date until 31
December 2022, subject to renewal by mutual consent.
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BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H01FE " The property management fees received by our Group under the
ANEBRIBEFEHEMYESERBIEZRD CR Land Property Management Services Framework Agreement
FWHHMESEEEY W T for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:
(AR¥TL)
(RMB’000)
REBWEBMMEESIEE (BEDE) Property management fees received by the Group (for
commercial properties) 594,752
AEBWIRKYEEIEE ((TEWEKREM  Property management fees received by the Group (for
IEEEME) residential properties and other non-commercial
properties) 228,504
st Total 823,256
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—AK#HE= The annual caps in respect of CR Land Property Management
T FF A=+ —HIMEAFE - #E Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December
HEMYEEERRGERDENER LR 2021 and the year ending 31 December 2022 are set out below:
HIWT -

BEFZH = — HaR ARl Ar B B (ARWT0)

Proposed annual caps (RMB’000) for the year ending 31 December

2021 2022

REFEWRMYMEESIEE (BEY Property management fees to be received

%) by the Group (for commercial properties) 662,057 845,405
AEBWRKYEEIEE (XY Property management fees to be received
ENEMIEREDE) by the Group (for residential properties
and other non-commercial properties) 531,894 735,832

Bust Total 1,193,951 1,581.237
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The Company entered into the provision of commercial
operational services (commercial properties) framework
agreement with CR Land on 20 November 2020 (the “CR Land
Commercial Operational Services Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group may, from time to time, provide
commercial operational services to the CR Land Connected
Persons for their commercial properties (including shopping
malls and office buildings). The commercial operational services
include (i) pre-opening management services (such as positioning
and design management services, and tenant sourcing and
management services) and (ii) operation management services
(such as opening preparation services, tenant coaching,
consumer management and marketing and publicity).

The initial term of the CR Land Commercial Operational Services
Framework Agreement commenced on the Listing Date until 31
December 2022, subject to renewal by mutual consent.

The service fees received by the Group under the CR Land
Commercial Operational Services Framework Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is RMB1,458,262 thousands.
The annual caps of the annual purchase amounts in respect
of the CR Land Commercial Operational Services Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the year
ending 31 December 2022 are RMB1,581,347 thousands and
RMB1,807,973 thousands, respectively.
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9.

PROVISION OF VALUE-ADDED SERVICES
(COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES AND
VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO PROPERTY
DEVELOPERS)

Background

The Company entered into the value-added services framework
agreement with CR Land on 20 November 2020 (the “CR Land
Value-added Services Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group may, from time to time, provide value-added
services to the CR Land Connected Persons for the residential
properties and other non-commercial properties developed and/
or owned by them. The value-added services to be provided
include community value-added services (such as community
living services and brokerage and assets services) and value-
added services to property developers (such as consultancy
services, preliminary preparation services and pre-delivery
marketing services).

The initial term of the CR Land Value-added Services Framework
Agreement commenced on the Listing Date until 31 December
2022, subject to renewal by mutual consent.

The service fees received by our Group under the CR Land Value-
added Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out below:

(ARWT )
(RMB’000)
Fees received by the Group for the community value-
added services 46,807
Fees received by the Group for the value-added
services to property developers 739,559

At

Total

786,366
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The annual caps in respect of the CR Land Value-added Services
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the year ending 31 December 2022 are set out below:

BEFZH = — Hab ARl 4r B LR (ARWT0)

Proposed annual caps (RMB’000) for the year ending 31 December

2021 2022

AREE LA R 1 (E AR 7% R

Fees to be received by the Group for the

o= community value-added services 91,700 110,604
B G E Y ERER Fees to be received by the Group for
B3 E AR TS R B B A the value-added services to property
developers 863,897 915,919
Bt Total 955,597 1,026,523
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PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES
Background

The Company entered into the procurement of goods and
services framework agreement with CR Land on 20 November
2020 (the “CR Land Procurement Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group may, from time to time, procure
from the CR Land Connected Persons certain types of goods and
services which include interior design and construction, purchase
of furniture and fixtures, and utilities (water and electricity).

The initial term of the CR Land Procurement Framework
Agreement commenced on the Listing Date until 31 December
2022, subject to renewal by mutual consent.

The purchase amount paid by the Group under the CR Land
Procurement Framework Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2021 is RMB99,412 thousands. The annual caps of the
annual purchase amounts in respect of the CR Land Procurement
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the year ending 31 December 2022 are RMB590,954
thousands and RMB860,366 thousands, respectively.
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11.

PROVISION OF
SERVICES

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

Background

The Company entered into the provision of property management
services framework agreement with CR Holdings on 20
November 2020 (the “"CRH Property Management Services
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group may,
from time to time, provide property management services to the
CRH Connected Persons for the residential and/or commercial
properties and other properties developed and/or owned by
them.

The initial term of the CRH Property Management Services
Framework Agreement commenced on the Listing Date until 31
December 2022, subject to renewal by mutual consent.

The property management fees received by the Group under the

CRH Property Management Services Framework Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

(ARWTT)

(RMB’000)

REBWEHNMESIES Property management fees received by the Group

(HEWE) (for commercial properties) 191,431
AEENDNMEETES Property management fees received by the Group

(FEWMEREAMRA Eﬁ ) (for residential properties and other public facilities) 38,175
M5t Total 229,606
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The annual caps in respect of the CRH Property Management
Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the year ending 31 December 2022 are set out below:

BEFZH = — Hab ARl 4r B LR (ARWT0)

Proposed annual caps (RMB’000) for the year ending 31 December

2021 2022

RNEFBWRHYWESEE Property management fees to be received
(BEWE) by the Group (for commercial properties) 376,173 498,685
REBWBHNYEEERSE Property management fees to be received
(F=EWEREAMALENE) by the Group (for residential properties
and other public facilities) 48,449 66,951
sk Total 424,622 565.636
A7 e Al 4 7 IR 12. DEPOSIT AND OTHER FINANCIAL SERVICES
FEHER Principal terms
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The Company entered into the deposit and financial service
framework agreement with Zhuhai CR Bank on 20 November
2020 (the “"Deposit and Financial Services Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group may, from time to
time, (1) deposit cash into Zhuhai CR Bank while Zhuhai CR
Bank will provide deposit services and pay deposit interest to
the Group on such deposits, and (2) use the commercial banking
services of Zhuhai CR Bank including, but not limited to, letter of
credit, letter of guarantee, granting of loans with collaterals, bill
acceptance and discount services, account receivable factoring
services, provision of loans and security, wealth and cash
management services, financial consulting service and other
financial services as agreed by the parties. The Deposit and
Financial Services Framework Agreement (including the term of
the agreement) is in line with the “CR Bank Strategic Cooperation
Agreement 2019"” dated 9 December 2019 entered into by
Zhuhai CR Bank and CR Land.

The initial term of the Deposit and Financial Services Framework
Agreement commenced on the Listing Date until 31 December
2022, subject to renewal by mutual consent.



094

—ZT - —FF5H%E ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EoE N R e
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

HE T+ -_A=+—HILFE " The maximum daily balance of deposits placed by the Group with
AREBERBTFR LS RRGSIEZRRTETR Zhuhai CR Bank and maximum daily amount of financial services
REBERRITHN RSB FRENULIE and products provided by Zhuhai CR Bank under the Deposit and
BENRTIRACHBEELEREI SRS Financial Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31
SEHIAT - December 2021 are set out below:

(AR¥T )

(RMB000)

REBFHRAKEERRITHESEH Maximum daily balance of deposits placed by the

FRzE Group with Zhuhai CR Bank 448,839
KEERRTIRESHRELEREA Maximum daily amount of financial services and
ey products provided by Zhuhai CR Bank -
 EZE - —Ft+ A=+ B REEZ The annual caps in respect of the Deposit and Financial Services
T _FF+ZA=+—HILEMEFE - 7(_ Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021
R R & B RISIERGZENTE LR and the year ending 31 December 2022 are set out below:
T

BEFZH = — HaR AR Rl 4r B B (ARWT0)

Proposed annual caps (RMB’000) for the year ending 31 December

2021 2022

REBFRNKEBEBIFEITH Maximum daily balance of deposits to be

SEEHFRE placed by the Group with Zhuhai CR Bank 525,000 525,000
HKAEBRETIRES RS & Maximum daily amount of financial services
EnEHRaeE and products to be provided by Zhuhai CR

Bank 821,429 821,429
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Listing Rules Implications and Waivers from the Stock
Exchange

The following entities are connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules:

EFHBMARRANERRR - BEEFBEARARERL72.29% -
CR Land is the controlling shareholder of the Company, which directly own
approximately 72.29% of the share capital of the Company.

EHEMAER(EE)EEFFL5955%  MEEH(EB)ATFEEHEGRARME
BEREHA -
CR Land is indirectly held as to approximately 59.55% by CR Holdings, which is

in turn indirectly wholly-owned by China Resources Company Limited.

WBERRITARAR
(TTRBEBIRTT))

WEEBHRTARTEBRTREBEBEEZESEENHERT ARV HEK
8 IBEBRITNDTETEMPEARMR - RZFhREEWIRHDE

REERTRG - RAREAH - IREEERTHERIRNERRRGGEEE
(5E)100% #Z)FHLT0.28% » Ft - REETRA - IWEFERTA LD
BERBARRINEEAL

China Resources Bank of
Zhuhai Co., Ltd.
("Zhuhai CR Bank"”)

Zhuhai CR Bank is a licensed bank regulated by the China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission and headquartered in Zhuhai, the PRC.
It has branches and sub-branches in different locations in the PRC where it

operates and provides financial and commercial banking services. As of the
date of this report, Zhuhai CR Bank is held as to approximately 70.28% by
China Resources Inc., which holds 100% of CR Holdings, and therefore is the
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules upon the listing.
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SEZFHERER S - FRBERERS
HEEEHBFERARERRR—F—
EET-A-tREANBAERER(ERE
RIBERS | —H -

Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under each of (1)
CR Land Property Leasing Framework Agreement; (2) CRH
Property Leasing Framework Agreement; (3) Parking Spaces
Purchase Framework Agreement; (4) CRH Procurement
Framework Agreement; (5) CRH Commercial Operational
Services Framework Agreement; (6) CRH Value-added Services
Framework Agreement; (7) CR Land Property Management
Services Framework Agreement; (8) CR Land Commercial
Operational Services Framework Agreement; (9) CR Land
Value- added Services Framework Agreement; (10) CR Land
Procurement Framework Agreement; (11) CRH Property
Management Services Framework Agreement; and (12) Deposit
and Financial Services Framework Agreement as mentioned
above (collectively known as the “CCT Agreements”) constitutes
continuing connected transactions of the Group under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Further details of the CCT Agreements
are set out under the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in the Prospectus of the Group dated 25 November 2020 (the
“Prospectus”).
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In respect of the CCT Agreements, the Company has applied
for, and the Stock Exchange has granted us, waivers from strict
compliance with (i) the announcement requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing
connected transaction as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions — Non-Exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions (subject to reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements)” above; and (ii) the announcement
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing
connected transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions — Non- Exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions (subject to reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements)” above.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the CCT Agreements, and
confirmed the Agreements have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Group
has engaged its auditor (the “Auditor”) to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
conducted by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A copy of the auditor's letter has been delivered by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The related party transactions set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements include related party transactions disclosed
under accounting standards and related party transactions which
also constitute connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The related party transactions in respect of the remuneration of
directors and chief executives of the Company constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However, these transactions are exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions disclosed above,
the related party transactions set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements do not fall within the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules (as the case may be). The Company confirmed
that it was in compliance with the disclosure requirements in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021 or
a waiver from such provisions has been obtained from the Stock
Exchange.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed on this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities including debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our customers primarily consist of property developers, property
owners and tenants, property owners’ associations and residents.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, a significant portion of our
property management and commercial operational services was
related to properties developed by CR Group and CR Land. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the revenue amounts from the Group's five
largest customers accounted for 41.3% (2020: 39.6%) of the Group's
total revenue and the revenue amount from the Group's single largest
customer, CR Land, accounted for 35.3% (2020: 33.9%) of the Group's
total revenue.

Other than CR Group and CR Land, the Group’s customers during the
year ended 31 December 2021 were all independent third parties.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, supervisors,
members of senior management, any Shareholder who, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital or their close associates held any interest in any of
the Group's five largest customers other than CR Group and CR Land.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, other than CR Group and CR
Land, none of the Group's major suppliers was the Group's customer.

The Group's suppliers primarily consist of subcontractors providing
cleaning, greening services, and repair and maintenance services,
services providers of utilities, third-party merchants providing
renovation services, advertising and community living services and
property owners.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the purchases amount from
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 23.3% (2020: 21.3%)
of the Group’s total purchases and the purchases amount from the
Group’s single largest customer, CR Land, accounted for 18.1% (2020:
12.7%) of the Group's total purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, other than CR Group and
CR Land, none of the Group's major suppliers was also the Group's
customer and all of the Group’s major suppliers were independent third
parties. CR Group and CR Land was also the Group’'s single largest
customer during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Other than CR Group and CR Land, the Group's suppliers during the
year ended 31 December 2021 were all independent third parties.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, supervisors,
members of senior management, any Shareholders who, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital, or their close associates had any interest in any of
the Group's five largest suppliers other than CR Group and CR Land.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited consolidated results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 240
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their respective holding
of the Company's securities.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’'s subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and details of the Shares issued during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the public float as required under
the Listing Rules as modified by the waiver granted by the Stock
Exchange upon the Listing.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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CHARITABLE DONATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s charitable donation
amounted to approximately RMB9,706.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The consolidation results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out on page 126 of consolidated statement of profit of
loss and other comprehensive income.

The Board recommended a final dividend of HK$0.339 (equivalent to
RMBO0.276) (“2021 Final Dividend”) for the year ended 31 December
2021 payable on or around 10 August 2022 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 22 June
2022.

The 2021 Final Dividend will be payable in cash to each shareholder in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD") unless an election is made to receive the
same in Renminbi (“RMB").

Shareholders will be given the option to elect to receive all or part
of the 2021 Final Dividend in RMB at the exchange rate of HKD1.0:
RMB0.8134, being the average benchmark exchange rate of HKD
to RMB as published by the People’'s Bank of China during the five
business days immediately before 30 March 2022. If shareholders
elect to receive the 2021 Final Dividend in RMB, such dividend will be
paid to shareholders at RMB0.276 per share. To make such election,
shareholders should complete the dividend currency election form
which is expected to be dispatched to shareholders in early July
2022 as soon as practicable after the record date of 22 June 2022 to
determine shareholders’ entitlement to the 2021 Final Dividend, and
lodge it to branch share registrar of the Company, Tricor Investors
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 20 July
2022.

Shareholders who are minded to elect to receive all or part of their
dividends in RMB by cheques should note that (i) they should ensure
that they have an appropriate bank account to which the RMB
cheques for dividend can be presented for payment; and (ii) there is no
assurance that RMB cheques can be cleared without material handling
charges or delay in Hong Kong or that RMB cheques will be honored
for payment upon presentation outside Hong Kong. The cheques are
expected to be posted to the relevant shareholders by ordinary post on
10 August 2022 at the shareholders’ own risk.
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If no duly completed dividend currency election form in respect of that
shareholder is received by the branch share registrar of the Company
by 4:30 p.m. on 20 July 2022, such shareholder will automatically
receive the 2021 Final Dividend in HKD. All dividend payments in HKD
will be made in the usual ways on or around 10 August 2022.

If shareholders wish to receive the 2021 Final Dividend in HKD in the
usual way, no additional action is required.

Shareholders should seek professional advice with their own tax
advisers regarding the possible tax implications of the dividend
payment.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has waived
or agreed to waive any dividend.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty
in their offices.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Company has taken out liability
insurance to provide appropriate coverage for the Directors.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB11.5 billion.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2021 are in this annual report and Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of 3 years with effect
from the Listing Date.

None of the Directors has a service contract with members of the
Group that is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors nor any entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31 December
2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business that competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
being a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation
given by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals (included three Directors) in the Group are set
out in Note 9 and Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the Directors has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are
payable, for the year ended 31 December 2021, by the Group to or on
behalf of any of the Directors.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions”, “Continuing Connected Transactions”, “Related Party
Transactions” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” and Note
33 to the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report, no contract of significance was entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders
or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2021
or subsisted at the end of the year and no contract of significance for
the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by
a Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was entered into
during the year ended 31 December 2021 or subsisted at the end of the
year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

On 10 December 2020, CR Land entered into a non-competition
undertaking in favor of the Company, pursuant to which, among other
things, CR Land has given certain non-competition undertakings to the
Company. Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders— CR Land
Non-competition Undertaking” in the Prospectus.

CR Land confirmed that it and its close associates have complied with
the non-competition undertaking for the year ended 31 December
2021. The independent non-executive Directors have conducted such
review for the year ended 31 December 2021 and also reviewed
the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the non-competition
undertaking has been fully complied with.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Company provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group also
puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and development
resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast of the
latest development of the market and the industry and, at the same
time, improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.
Further details in relation to the Group's employees are set out in the
paragraph headed “Human Resources” in this report.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide the products in a way that
satisfies needs and requirements of the customers. The Group
enhances the relationship by continuous interaction with customers to
gain insight on the changing market demand for the products so that
the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also established
procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints to ensure
customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good relationship with
suppliers and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure
stability of the Group’'s business. The Group reinforces business
partnerships with suppliers and contractors by ongoing communication
in a proactive manner.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditors since the Listing Date to
the year ended 31 December 2021. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been audited
by Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants, who are proposed
for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The Company entered into the following loan agreements which have
specific performance covenant of its controlling shareholders. The
obligations of such loan agreements continue to exist as of the date
of this report. As at the date of this report, CRH beneficially owns
directly or indirectly approximately 73.72% of the issued share capital
of the Company, and CR Land is the single largest shareholder of the
Company, directly owning approximately 72.29% of the issued share
capital of the Company and being able to control the Company.

o A revolving loan facility letter for a facility in an aggregate amount
up to HKD620,000,000 with no fixed term and is repayable
on demand by the lender was entered into on 28 June 2021,
details of which have been disclosed in the announcement
dated 28 June 2021. The Company undertakes that during the
term of the facility, CRH shall directly or indirectly own no less
than 35% of the beneficial ownership of the Company, and
CR Land shall remain as the single largest shareholder of the
Company, directly or indirectly owning no less than 51% of the
beneficial ownership of the Company and being able to control
the Company. If a change of control resulting in violation of the
relevant undertakings under this facility letter occurs, the lender
may declare any commitment under this facility letter to be
cancelled and/or declare the outstanding loans, together with all
the interests accrued thereon, and all other amounts due under
this facility letter shall become immediately due and payable.

° A revolving loan facility letter for a facility in an aggregate amount
of up to HKD600,000,000 with a maturity date of 12 months
was entered into on 20 October 2021, details of which have
been disclosed in the announcement dated 20 October 2021.
The Company undertakes that during the term of the facility, the
Company shall procure that CRH and CR Land remain directly or
indirectly interested in no less than 35% and 51% of the issued
share capital of the Company respectively. If violation of the
relevant undertakings under this facility letter occurs, the lender
may declare any commitment under this facility letter to be
cancelled and/or declare the outstanding loans, together with all
the interests accrued thereon, and all other amounts due under
this facility letter shall become immediately due and payable.
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° A revolving loan facility letter for a facility in an aggregate amount
of up to RMB1,000,000,000 with a maturity date of 12 months
was entered into on 23 March 2022, details of which have been
disclosed in the announcement dated 23 March 2022. The
Company undertakes that during the term of the facility, the
Company shall procure that CR Land remain directly or indirectly
interested in no less than 51% of the issued share capital of the
Company and remain to be the single largest shareholder of the
Company. If violation of the relevant undertakings under this
facility letter occurs, the lender may declare any commitment
under this facility letter to be cancelled and/or declare the
principal amount advanced and the outstanding loans, together
with all the interests accrued thereon, and all other amounts
due under this facility letter shall become immediately due and
payable.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have any
other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the
Listing Rules.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2022 annual general meeting (the “2022 AGM") will be held on 14
June 2022. Notice of the 2022 AGM and all other relevant documents
will be published and despatched to shareholders of the Company in
due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

1. from 8 June 2022 to 14 June 2022, both days inclusive and during
which period no share transfer will be effected, for the purpose
of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 14
June 2022. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2022
AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company's
Hong Kong share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 54, Hopewell Center, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 7 June 2022; and

2. subject to the approval of shareholders at the meeting, the
proposed final dividend will be payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company after
the close of business of the Company at 4:30 p.m. on 22 June
2022 and the register of members of the Company will be closed
on 22 June 2022, during which no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
share register, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at the above
address not later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 June 2022.
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AR A A A BTG BB DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

By ~ M B BBy B AR A RERE kA IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

HE-_ZEZ-—F+-_HF=+—H Fx4LN As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of our
AEEITTHABRARRSEMREEIE(EFER Directors or chief executives of our Company in the shares, underlying
BELHE SO EXVER) G - RN & shares and debentures of our Company or its associated corporation
BEREFPERHARNRRIREFS MAE GG (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
F302FAFEMERMA - SRR LR BT required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SR FrEl PR B A E AN E R FTH SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
KRBT pursuant to the Model Code as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

AN FIHE R INTEREST IN THE COMPANY
WAL H HE 42 Pk BT BB HO BEAF BT 4 @
Number of Approximate
ordinary  percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares® holding®
g AR B ST A Hitne 358,304 (L) 0.02%
Mr. YU Linkang Others®
TEREE H® 52,955 (L) 0.00%
Mr. WANG Haimin Others®
BhELL Hftn @ 263,459 (L) 0.01%
Ms. WEI Xiaohua Others®
BhLE R+ Hitne 358,304 (L) 0.02%
Ms. YANG Hongxia Others®
Mt - Notes:
1. F [LIIEZATATFIRGIFE © 1. The letter “L " denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

2. BR-ZFEZ—F+ A=+ HEETRGE 2. The calculation is based on the total number of 2,282,500,000 shares in
#(2,282,500,000/8 BE K H - issue as at 31 December 2021.

3. I FRFESLE ~ TEREL - B EL L RIGA 3 Mr. Yu Linkang, Mr. Wang Haimin, Ms. Wei Xiaohua and Ms. Yang

EE2 4% #8CICC Financial Trading Limitedi% Hongxia subscribed and hold interests under the Employee Preferential
UHBEERERIEKIESELEERBEILF Offering through the asset management schemes established by CICC
Fi#m -  FHEEELEENE—FLEN 7 Financial Trading Limited. For further information on the Employee

LEBREFE o Preferential Offering, please refer to the Prospectus.
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3 0 B HhRE INTEREST IN CR LAND
W HO BRI E 4 e
Number of Approximate
HARE A B2 PR ordinary  percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares® holding®
ML EmBEEA 40,000 (L) 0.00%
Mr. LI Xin Beneficial owner
BteE - Notes:
1. FR[LJIEZANLATFHR DA » 1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.
2. R —_E-—F - A=+—HE TR 2. The calculation is based on the total number of 7,130,939,579 shares in

£(7,130,939,57958 BEE;E -

TP BESE AN A PR ] (T 3T ) b
o

issue as at 31 December 2021.

INTEREST IN JIANGZHONG PHARMACEUTICAL CO, L'TD
(“CR HANGZHONG")

B BH O BEAIRR BT 4 H

Number of  Approximate
WL H B2 PR ordinary  percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares® holding®
FHE S E H e 51,700 (L) 0.01%
Mr. GUO Shiging Others®
Mt Notes:
7. FE[LFEFZA TR 4f & 1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

2. BER-ZFEZ—F+ZA=+—HEETRGE
£(630,000,00048 BEE;E -

3. SBH)E S IR B A R E 251, 7008 AR 17
RS -

BEXERE  RZEZ—F+A=+—
H BETAARREERESTRABRE
ARIKEBEEEE(TEREES RHAEGHE
XV #) Rk - ABRARR (0 S EHE A S
VEEBIM@RZARRIRBEELSLBE K
BlEE3521E BB 2 B MAMmESsAR + &
(b) AR {5 AZ 4 <F Bl 78 38 AN AR 1 B K Bt 22 Py b 2k

YR

2. The calculation is based on the total number of 630,000,000 shares in
issue as at 31 December 2021.

3. Mr. Guo Shiging was deemed to be interested 51,700 shares through
interest of his spouse.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or the chief executives of the Company had, or were deemed
to have, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO; or (b) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) and companies had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO:

THRBEEHO  FRBEATH 2 e

Number of Approximate
JBe 3K 44 18 - 2704 £UiAe ordinary percentage of
Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares®” holding®
FEEBERLRS B NGIE S 1,682,666,000 (L) 73.72%
China Resources Company Limited® Interest in controlled corporation
ZEERHBERAFS et IVNGIE £ 1,682,666,000 (L) 73.72%
China Resources Inc.® Interest in controlled corporation
CRC Bluesky Limited® XEHIARER 1,682,666,000 (L) 73.72%
CRC Bluesky Limited® Interest in controlled corporation
ERE(&E)® St VNIE S 1,682,666,000 (L) 73.72%
CR Holdings® Interest in controlled corporation
CRH (Land) Limited® SEB AR 1,650,000,000 (L) 73.72%
CRH (Land) Limited® Interest in controlled corporation

EERAA 32,644,400 (L)

Beneficial owner

EHEHO EmBEA 1,650,000,000 (L) 72.29%
CR Land® Beneficial owner
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1. FELIEZALFHROTE -

2. R -ZFEZ—F+ - HA=1+—HE TR
#(2,282,500,000 & BEEAE -

3. iE B & # - Commotra Company Limited
K CRH (Land) Limited 5 5l B # #5 B 2 2 7]
1,650,000,000% - 21,600 /% X } 32,644,400
AR AZ 17+ 2 B & # 1 CRH (Land) Limited #5
55951% #m + E)H(EH) A Commotra
Company Limited X CRH (Land) Limited
ZME—RE - i3 (% BF )2 CRC Bluesky
Limited £ = & W/ /8 2 A] + CRC Bluesky
Limited HEHR D BER AT EHE + ME
BRHDBRGIRIEFEEHGR LG E
#A - At - CRH (Land) Limited - % 8 (%
&) + CRC Bluesky Limited * 28R (7 HR A
B LA R A B3 B B IR 23 5] #4542 B HE B AN 2 ]
1,682,666,000/8 B 17 a9 7 °

B EXPREREN  RZBEZ—F+-A=+—
B BEEEMm AT RARF &R M AERE
Retr e A RIEC(E S RAEGED) EXVEE?2
REIFDRERAMARBRENERIXR
HRCER N AN R B IRCRE 77 S I B 15 11)) 52 336 1%
FEMERMOEDIOAR -

WEE ~ A SR bl 2R
BHEZ-—F+_RA=1T—HIEFE £RQ

AREEAHEARHMERE  HEXWE A
REMEFEMRES

Notes:

1.

2.

The letter "L " denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

The calculation is based on the total number of 2,282,500,000 shares in
issue as at 31 December 2021.

CR Land, Commotra Company Limited and CRH (Land) Limited directly
held 1,650,000,000 shares, 21,600 shares and 32,644,400 shares of the
Company, respectively. CR Land is owned as to 569.51% by CRH (Land)
Limited. CR Holdings is the sole shareholder of Commotra Company
Limited and CRH (Land) Limited. Moreover, CR Holdings is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned
by China Resources Inc. China Resources Inc. is wholly-owned by China
Resources Company Limited. Thus, CRH (Land) Limited, CR Holdings,
CRC Bluesky Limited, China Resources Inc. and China Resources
Company Limited are deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
1,682,666,00 shares in the Company.

Save as aforesaid, as at 31 December 2021, no other person had any
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provision of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the

SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SEC

URITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redee

med any listed securities of the Company during the year ended

31 December 2021.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The shares of the Group were successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange on 9 December 2020 (the “Listing”), with total net proceeds
of the Listing amounted to approximately RMB11,600.4 million after
deducting the underwriting fees and relevant expenses.

As set out in the Prospectus, the Group intends to use the proceeds
for the purposes and in the amounts set forth below: (i) approximately
60% of the net proceeds for making strategic investments and
acquisitions to expand our property management and commercial
operational businesses; (ii) approximately 15% of the net proceeds for
pursuing strategic investment in providers of value-added services and
across the upstream and downstream supply chain of our industry; (iii)
approximately 15% of the net proceeds for investing in information
technology systems and smart communities; and (iv) approximately
10% of the net proceeds for working capital and general corporate
uses.

As at 31 December 2021, RMB1,379.9 million of the proceeds of the
Listing had been utilized. The remaining amounts were held by way of
bank deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong or the PRC and are
intended to be used in the manner set out in the Prospectus.
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TRAHZE - ZE-_—F+_A=+—HARA The following table sets forth the status of use of net proceeds from
BHAAHAEEEENMEREFEFERBRE the Company'’s initial public offering as of 31 December 2021 together
RITEFHEARRBE - with the expected timeline of use:

RE-F- K
REZZZE FZAZT—H RERSH BRI LHM
Bkl oA -0 REERARE FSHET -0 SR
S TR A i R WGHHRE AR WRNTEAE ABRRGRE R

Actual use of
net proceeds
Proceeds during the Proceeds  Expected timeline
Planned  unused as of  year ended unused as of  for fully utilizing th

use of net 31 December 31 December 31 December  net proceeds from

Business objective as stated in the Prospectus Proportion proceeds 2020 2021 2021  the Listing
ARWE#L
RMB million
(il BEADXEENERERXBOBERE 60% 6,960.3 6,960.3 - 69603 M-FT-RF
e TZAH
Making strategic investments and By December 2025

acquisitions to expand our property
management and commercial
operational businesses

(i) RESERBIATELTHREROH 15% 1,740.1 1,740.1 92.1 16480 WN-ZT-1F
BiERE += A
Pursuing strategic investment in By December 2025

providers of value-added services and
across the upstream and downstream
supply chain of our industry

i) REGSRMEASNERME 15% 1,740.1 1,740.1 127.8 16123 WRIZZHF
Investing in information technology +Z A
systems and smart communities By December 2025

iv) EEEER-—RRAME 10% 1,160.0 1,160.0 1,160.0 - RIE-EF
Working capital and general corporate +Z A0
uses By December 2025

100% 11,600.4 11,600.4 1,379.9 10,2205
Mt Note:

1. ARIIETA - BIRAEFIR 2 Z A - 1. The sum of the data may not add up to the total due to rounding
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. Details of the
role and work performed by the Audit Committee are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report. The
Audit Committee, which comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and one non-executive Director (namely Mr. CHAN Chung
Yee Alan (Chairman), Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching, Ms. QIN Hong and
Mr. GUO Shiging), have reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 with
the Company's management and considered that such statements
have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and requirements with sufficient disclosure. There has
not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the
Reporting Period and there are no prior period adjustments due to
correction of material errors during the Reporting Period.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE
SHEET DATE

After the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has entered
into the following transactions:

1. On 5 January 2022, Runying Property Technology Service
Company Limited CEBYERHIREERAF) (“Runying”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the proposed
purchaser) and Tianjin Yujia Life Service Company Limited (K2
BEAERBER AT (“Tianjin Yujia”) (as the proposed seller)
entered into the framework agreement for the proposed sale
and purchase of equity interest in Yuzhou Property Service
Company Limited (RM#IZEREHBER 25 (“Yuzhou Property
Service”) which is principally engaged in the business of property
management services in the PRC. The acquisition constitutes
a discloseable transaction. On 8 March 2022, Runying entered
into the equity transfer agreement with Tianjin Yujia and Yuzhou
Property Service. The consideration is RMB1,058 million. As of
the date of this report, the acquisition has been completed.
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On 20 January 2022, Super Honour Development Limited (&8
ZREAMR A A) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the purchaser) entered into an equity transfer agreement with,
among others, HongKong Rainbow Property Limited (B& 4 ¥
¥AE A7) (“Seller 1”) and HongKong Lehuo Property Limited
(BBLEWEAR AT (“Seller 2", collectively with Seller 1 as
the sellers), pursuant to which (i) the purchaser has agreed to
acquire, and Seller 1 has agreed to sell, the entire equity interests
of Nantong Changle Property Co., Limited (B ERL&LYEFR
A\ (“Nantong Changle”); and (ii) the purchaser has agreed
to acquire, and Seller 2 has agreed to sell, 1% of the equity
interests of Jiangsu Zhongnan Property Services Co., Ltd. ((T&k
hE RIS ER A F) (“Jiangsu Zhongan”). The consideration
is to be determined and finally agreed between the parties but
it shall not be higher than RMB2,260 million. Nantong Changle
and Jiangsu Zhongan, together with their respective subsidiaries
and branches (the “Target Companies”), are principally engaged
in the business of property management services in the PRC.
In connection with the acquisition, the purchaser also entered
into a framework agreement with the Sellers, Jiangsu Zhongnan
and Jiangsu Zhongnan Construction Group Co.,Ltd ((T&k A 2%
EERMHERAT]) ("Jiangsu Zhongan Construction”), pursuant
to which Jiangsu Zhongnan Construction warrants to, among
others, procure companies in which it directly or indirectly holds
equity interests, to continue the cooperation with the Target
Companies in connection with the property management projects
of the Target Companies. As of the date of this report, the
acquisition is still pending completion.

Saved as disclosed, the Group had no other significant subsequent
events occurred after 31 December 2021 which would have material
impact on the performance and the value of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

LI Xin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022



EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EY:

HEHBREFRRARAKRRK
(RESHEEME A HRLA])
=37

RAZEEN (A TEREIHM]) EEZINERE
126 BEEFE29FEFHEREEBRARNTER
ADREWNBARIATHE [E£E )NEE
HHmE  WRAMEHRREER-ZZZ—F
F+ZA=+—HMERETBKRAR  UREE
ZBELFENGABREREME2ERER &
EHZEHANGAREREER  UREKAEH
BHERMT  BEETESTEHEME -

BARR  ZEGRAMBERRCREBT AT
MAg([BEGFMAE ) BANELBHBR
SEANTEBEMBRSER D EEMF 5K
M EEER-ZE-—F+-A=1+—HKEK
BMBHRRARBEZ A EFENGE MR
BREaREenE W BREBR AR
BEMEZ /RS -

=g ALE S

BMPERBERESTMASRONELE;E
A([EBRFTER DETER - RANZFE
AIATHEEERARSE [RUMAFRSEH
BHKEAERE M|~ SR EE— P E - 1R
BEEGHMAGRGY [EXSBFERE
FAT=PRI) - BB EEE - XEE
TTARNEMERBREL - RMAMBE - &
FIMESHNBZRRETEMEE M ARME
BERERRHEEE -

Ernst & Young R EETEERERT Tel & 7f: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place  HBHIGIFEEEI795E  Fax{FH: +852 2868 4432
979 King’s Road Kt —REE2748 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RESOURCES MIXC LIFESTYLE
SERVICES LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “"Group”) set out on pages 126 to 239, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PR 2 7% o L 0

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REYX1EE

Valuation of investment properties

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H"
B - sTEAARK226488 T ' (b
10% °
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As at 31 December 2021, the investment properties of
the Group were located in the Mainland China and carried
at RMB2,264 million, which represented approximately
10% of the Group's total assets.

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the
investment properties included:

° Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer; as well as obtained an understanding of
the Valuer's scope of work;
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Valuation of investment properties (continued)
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The Group's investment properties were stated at fair
values based on valuations carried out by independent
and professionally qualified valuer (the “Valuer”). The
valuations of the completed investment properties were
dependent on certain significant unobservable inputs,
including the capitalisation rate and prevailing market
rents. Management’s assessment on the fair values of
investment properties requires significant judgements
and estimates.

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and the
significant judgements associated with determining the
fair values.

Related disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
accounting judgements and estimates” and note 15
“Investment properties” to the consolidated financial
statements.

BPWABEEERSE R B RPFEEETEAR
BEEEEEERMGEMARASATAIBERBARER
BIBERIR 2 EREE - TASHMELRABRERAFAE
AR HEANELBMEZ AREMARBMEEH
ETEZAE Rk

MRS RZGET AR ABRNERERAEE - ki
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Involved our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the valuation methodology and the
significant unobservable inputs and the accuracy
of the source data adopted by management of the
Group and the Valuer by comparing them, on a
sample basis, to existing tenancy profiles, publicly
available information of similar comparable properties
and our knowledge of the real estate industry; and

Checked on a sample basis, accuracy and relevance
of the input data used in the valuation and checked
the mathematical accuracy of the valuations.

119
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Recoverability of trade and bill receivables and other
receivables
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As at 31 December 2021, the gross balances of trade
and bill receivables and other receivables were amounted
to RMB1,051,544,000 and RMB927,658,000, of which
provisions for impairment amounting to RMB8,935,000
and RMB5,080,000 were made, respectively.

Management assessed the expected credit losses
of receivables based on assumptions about risk of
default, expected credit loss rates and whether there
has been any significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition for other receivables. The Group used
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's history, ageing profile of the receivables, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

PERFORAKREETE - RAIBZNEFEE
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Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability of the
receivables included:

° Understood, evaluated and tested management'’s key
controls in relation to the assessment of the expected
credit losses of receivables;

° Obtained an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model
adopted by management, including the basis of
segmentation of receivables based on credit loss
characteristics, the ageing profile, historical default
data, assumptions involved in management’s
estimated loss rate and whether there has been
any significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition for other receivables;
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESERMBEREREZEUARE MENRSETRE M (E)
Recoverability of trade and bill receivables and other
receivables (continued)
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Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 22 and 23to e Assessed the estimated credit loss rates by

the consolidated financial statements. considering historical cash collection and movements
of the ageing of receivables, the market conditions
and forward-looking factors;

° Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing
analysis of receivables prepared by management; and

° Examined, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of the receivables to cash receipts and the
related supporting documentation.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HET-_A=1T—HILLEE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

Mtat ARWTE ARETT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Wz REVENUE 5 8.875.384 6,778,911
HEK A Cost of sales (6,116,866) (4,951,878)
EF Gross profit 2,758,518 1,827,033
BEYEZ AR BEZES K  Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties 15 30,000 1,704
ERREEEER Share of loss of a joint venture (1.895) (120)
E A R Other income and gains 6 523.432 180,368
MHHES H Marketing expenses (58,100) (50,287)
TTEE Administrative expenses (818,959) (747,125)
HE Other expenses (20,798) (4,518)
B ER Finance costs 7 (75,642) (72,129)
BB AT PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 2,336,556 1,134,926
Frisfif Income tax expenses 11 (610,486) (317,216)
FREF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,726,070 817,710
L‘/{T/\:tJEEfﬁ : Attributable to:
NEEB A Owners of the parent 1,724,925 817,710
#T AR fEE Non-controlling interests 1,145 =
1,726,070 817,710
BATEBEERIEEAEEER EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
ZF TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT 13
FRARARR#EE Basic and diluted for the year RMB75.6 cents RMB48.5 cents
ARW75.6% AR¥48.5%
FREEWRZHEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR
LA A - Attributable to:
[SYNCIEZZ- DN Owners of the parent 1,724,925 817,710
IR Non-controlling interests 1,145 =

1,726,070 817,710
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EFHEREEERD

7] China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2021 2020

R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December

MtaE AR¥T L AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - WEREKRE Property, plant and equipment 14 527,014 259,928
REE Investment properties 15 2,264,000 2,234,000
EREEE Intangible assets 16 115,957 2,238
EREEE Right-of-use assets 18(a) 99,416 114,257
R—HEEELEZIRE Investment in a joint venture 19 435 2,330
RERIIBE E Deferred tax assets 20 76,585 45,367
BEWE  BEX Deposits paid for purchase of

B EN oA property, plant and equipment 23 3.758 86,065
TE B Time deposits 17 2,474,608 =
EmBEERAE Total non-current assets 5,561,773 2,744,185
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
T8 Inventories 21 138,004 196,132
B 5 RIGRIE KW R & Trade and bill receivables 22 1,042,609 822,240
TERTRIE - HAbEUEIE K& Prepayments, other receivables and

HEiEE other assets 23 922,578 786,173
BAREEFEHHEEHT A Financial assets at fair value through

EHERNEREE profit or loss 24 - 3,847,810
SR HIERTTIF 3K Restricted bank deposits 25 228,720 366,955
BENBEEEED Cash and cash equivalents 25 13,698,238 10,312,459
MENEEBE Total current assets 16,030,149 16,331,769
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FE R FK Trade payables 26 839.115 700,378
E e R ERTE A Other payables and accruals 27 2,807,313 2,665,222
ARBE Contract liabilities 5 1,417,223 1,006,947
GEN =N Lease liabilities 18(b) 80,547 63,041
FET R IE Tax payable 133.615 97,927
sTEIERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 801,249 521,815
mE B EET Total current liabilities 6,079,062 5,055,330
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 9,951,087 11,276,439
EEABRABAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 15,512,860 14,020,624
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f T B AR DU
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December

2021 2020

k3 A Ri¥s T80 AREET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEBE Lease liabilities 18(b) 1,277,923 1,319,331
HEMBE Other liabilities 12,166 12,552
BELEFHIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 20 333,746 225,709
JEmB A EAEE Total non-current liabilities 1,623.835 1,557,592
EEFE NET ASSETS 13,889,025 12,463,032
e EQUITY
NEEE AELHEZS Equity attributable to owners of
the parent
&% 7R Share capital 29 152 152
s Reserves 30 13,887,728 12,462,880
13,887,880 12,463,032
PR 2 Non-controlling interests 1,145 =

HEmiBEE Total equity 13.889.025 12,463,032
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LEERERS BN R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN_IE_,

LZph 2N 1
Attributable to owners of the parent

Bk BfRRE  OORRE LEEMEE MR it RRRES  BEAE

Statutory Non-
Share Share Merger surplus  Retained controlling Total

capital  premium reserve reserve profits g interests equity

ARRTE ARRTRL ARBTL ARRTL ARETR ARRTR ARETL ARETR
RMB'O00 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

(fi29) (Hi30)  (hts0)
(note 29) (note 30) (note 30)

“Z-2F-f-H 1 January 2020 838 = (46,237) 98,011 979,722 1,031,584 - 1,031,584
n il Profit for the year - - = - 817,710 817,710 - 817,710
FREANGEE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 81770 817,710 - 817,710
Bk Issue of shares 41 11,857,187 - - - 11,867,228 - 11,867,228
RABTEY Share issue expenses - (216,770) - - - (216,770) - (216,770)
BRIEN Capitalisation issue 2 (23) - - - - R -
BIFRETEESHEEL DK Deemed distribution upon group

reorganisation - - (591,954) - - (591,954) - (591,954)
WEARMEEREEE  Dividends declared by the subsidiaries

o) to the then shareholders = = = - (434,766)  (434,766) - (434766)
ROARMS Appropriation of retained profits = = = 94,140 (94,140) = = =
RZZ-ZF+-FE=F—H At31 December 2020 and
k-Z--%-F-H 1 January 2021 152 11,040,394 (638,191) 192,151 1,268,520 12,463,032 - 12,403,032

ERET] Profit for the year - - - - 1724925 172492 1145 1,726,070
FRRENGEE Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 1724925 1,724,925 1,145 1,726,070
“ZOTERHRS Final dividend for 2020 - - - - (300.077)  (300,077) - (300,077)
ROAGNE Appropriation of retained profits - - - 76,746 (78.746) - - -
WZE-—F+-A=FT—H At31 December 2021 152 11,640,394 (638,191)*  270,897% 2,014,628* 13,887,880 1,145 13,889,025

* S%gfﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂ?éﬁjﬁﬁﬁiqbw,ﬁé\ﬁﬁ & These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
ANE# 713887725000 T ( —FE_FF : AR RMB13,887,728,000 (2020: RMB12,462,880,000) in the consolidated
#4712 462 880,0007T) ° statement of financial position.
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A Bl i R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BET-HA=1T—BLLHFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

HizF AR®TL ARBFIT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
RETHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B B A1 v A Profit before tax 2,336,556 1,134,926
FHEE Adjustments for:
B ER Finance costs 7 75,642 72,129
Rl ey L] Exchange gains, net 6 (16,656) (48,004)
FEHA Interest income 6 (376.301) (15,085)
WRGFEZ2EFE Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value 8 3,045 -
B 5 e W 2k I8 N U Z= 55 R Impairment/(reversal of impairment)
B,/ CRERRm) of trade and bill receivables 8 6.146 (1,363)
FERTFIE - E b EUGRIE & Reversal of impairment for prepayments,
HAth & ERERM other receivables and other assets 8 (221) (505)
BEWMEZ AR EBEEB WG Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties 15 (30,000) (1,704)
EEREEREZEE Share of loss of a joint venture 19 1,895 120
BARBEFEEEZEHTA Fair value gains from financial assets
EHEENeMEEAAEE at fair value through profit or loss
Uz 6 (28,0060) (1,090)
mE - BEREETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 8 68,876 49,601
FRHESENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 8 49,981 31,831
B Amortisation of intangible assets 8 2,757 1,657
HEWE BEREEEER Gain on disposal of items of property,
g plant and equipment 6 (12,323) (28,025)
B A Covid-1948F7 4 Covid-19-related rent concessions
S from lessors 18 - (7,468)
2,081,337 1,186,920
BERL(Em) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 55.083 (90,371)
B 5 e U 20 0E % e Uk Z g 1 Increase in trade and bill receivables (226.515) (231,916)
FERTFRIE © b EUWEIE M EME Increase in prepayments, other receivables
BN and other assets (136,185) (260,433)
B SN FIAE M Increase in trade payables 138,737 250,424
oty JE T ERIE [ FEEHE R RSN Increase in other payables and accruals 465,416 289,274
AR BEEN Increase in contract liabilities 410,276 208,793
EaECRD),/Em (Decrease)/increase in other liabilities (386) 4,642
KEMBRE Cash generated from operations 2,787,763 1,357,333
BEf#IE Taxes paid (497,979) (254,435)
WEEEMBREREFE Net cash flows from operating activities 2,289,784 1,102,898
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

BET-_HA=1T—BLLHFE

Year ended 31 December

Kzt ARBFT
NOTES RMB'000
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,102,898
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 7,767
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (206,621)
Purchases of items of intangible assets (2,239)
Capital injection to a joint venture (2,450)
Repayments from China Resources
Land Investment Limited & 1,704,507
Advances to related parties 33 (1,680,150)
Repayments from related parties &8 2,056,402
Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment 36,172
Purchases of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (3,846,720)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Purchases of time deposits -
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
(1,933,332)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares 11,857,228
Share issue expenses (5,238)
New bank borrowings 739,019
Repayments of bank borrowings (196,674)
Dividends paid (667,597)
Advances from related parties &5 1,840,703
Repayments to related parties &5 (2,275,799)
Principal portion of lease payments 18(b) (95,464)
Cash payment to China Resources Land
Limited upon group reorganization (644,886)
Interest paid (7,147)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing
activities 10,544,145
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,718,711
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 605,489
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (6,741)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 25 10,312,459
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 18 May 2017. The registered office address of
the Company is PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands.

During the year, the Group was mainly engaged in the provision
of residential property management services and commercial
operational and property management services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company's shares became listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
9 December 2020 (the “Listing”).

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is China Resources Land Limited (“CR
Land"”), a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
ultimate holding company of the Company is China Resources
Company Limited (“CRCL"), a company incorporated in the PRC.
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

1. AW BB MR (4) 1.
A7 15 A D 2 1 R B R

AARMBARNFBIT

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

VWD /%

ik IR A A B o MR R i 23 B

Percentage of equity

E 3]

Place of incorporation/

(8]
(V)

registration Registered capital ~ attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EL: i
Direct Indirect

BIRRRARAR([E1E]) &k 75#100,0007T REBR

Super Honour Development Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited (“Super Honour")

Golden Key Resources Limited ~ RXBREZHES/EH %7210,000 REZR
(TGolden Key )

Golden Key Resources Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$10,000 100 - Investment holding
("Golden Key") Hong Kong

AEEERAR &k 75#100,0007 REBR

Cheer Ocean Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Investment holding

BH(EE)ERAA Bk 1007 REBR

China Resources Huan Le Song Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited

MR IR 2 Rl i) RERAHS/BE %7110,000 REBR

Profit Luck Holdings Limited {iii) British Virgin Islands/ US$10,000 - 100 Investment holding

Hong Kong

ENEREEERERA FE/HER AK10,000,0007C BEBERNEEERE

Luzhou Runxin Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Commercial operational
Management Co. Ltd. (i) and property

management services

BREERE(RI)BRAR FE/RER AR%1,000,000,0007C BEBLERRS
(ragmz i

Runxin Commercial Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 - 100 Commercial operational
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. management services
("Mixc Commercial”) (i)

BRMERERBARAR hE/HEN AR3,000,000,0007C WEERRE
(rB@ )

Runying Property Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000,000 - 100 Property management

Services Co. Ltd.
(“Runying”) (i

services
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

1. A RAEME R (8) 1.
A7 [ A D 2 ) A R DR ()

i3 ) WV L] kA A AR T 23 b FEEH
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration Registered capital ~attributable to the Company ~ Principal activities
EL: i
Direct Indirect
EENFEEBRRERAR () FE/RER AR 30,000,0007C Ba RS
CR Property Agents PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100 Thermal energy supply
Consultancy Co. Ltd. (i) services
BEVERK(ER)ARAA 0 B/ HEAN AR 20,000,007 WEERRE
Runjia (Shenyang) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 Property management
Management Co. Ltd. (i) services
ENERK(LEARAR G B/ HEAN AE#20,000,00070 NEERRY
Runua (Shanghai) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 Property management
Management Co. Ltd. (i) services
BRMERS (RB)ARAA 0 B/ RER AR #20,000,0007C WEERRE
Runying (Chengdu) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 Property management
Management Co. Ltd. (i) services
BENEEROLRARARG &AM AR#20,000,0007C WEERRE
Runjia (Beijing) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 Property management
Management Co. Ltd. (i) services
ENMERBCRINERAR () +E/RER AK#20,000,0007C WEERRE
Runjia (Shenzhen) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 Property management
Management Co. Ltd. (i) services
ENERE(RE)ERAR 0 B/ RER AK#20,000,0007C WEERRE
Runjia (Wuhan) Property PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 Property management
Management Co. Ltd. (i) services
ERELEER(RINERAR () +8/FERH ARH10,000,0007 BEELINEERRE
Run Xin Commercial Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100 Commercial operational
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (i) and property

management services
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VWD /%

Place of incorporation/

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ik IR A A B o MR R i 23 B

Percentage of equity

E 3]

registration Registered capital ~ attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EL: i
Direct Indirect
W BN EERERAR () hE/HEN AB#10,000,0007 WEERRE
Hubei Run Lian Property PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property management
Management Co. Ltd. (i) services
BRMFTRMR(ER)ERAR () B/ HEN AR#10,000,0007T BERBREERS
Runijia Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction services and
Engineering Technology Co. Ltd. (i decoration services
BENFRE(RE)ERAR () FE/RER AR%3,000,0007C NEERRS
Runjia Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 100 Property management
(Dalian) Co. Ltd. (i) services
EREERS(ER)ARAR ()6 &/ PEM ARH5,000,0007T NEERRY
CR Mixc Lifestyle Services PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Property management
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd. (i)(iii) services
RYEBKBEELERERAR (i) $E/FERH AR5,000,0007C NEERRS
Shenzhen Runze Water Operation ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 65  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. (i)(iii) services

RO A EERARNREHR
ARAPMEEHZEARNP X EEEE
TOEE  RERZSARLMEENMNR
AT

BEE

BRAREPEEZIMAILIZE

o

(i) EA

£
AR

M mh

(il ZEERBARBHEDREZMARLZI
HEERE -

(i) FEZBRARAR  BRETRS (=
BOBRAR KRB KEELSERE
BRATHRR=_TBE-_—F=A+N\B -
B FRATMAR-ZT-_—FH
B=+=BmK3L °

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC
represent the best efforts made by the directors of the Company
to translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do
not have official English names.

Notes:

(i) These entities were registered as domestic enterprises under the
laws of the PRC.

(ii) These entities were registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under the laws of PRC.

(iii)  Profit Luck Holdings Limited, CR Mixc Lifestyle Services (Ningbo)
Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Runze Water Operation Management Co.,
Ltd. were established on 18 March 2021, 14 May 2021, and 23 April
2021, respectively.

(V)
)]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 SR 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

ZEVBHRRDRETESAMAS([F
BRI A )BT BN ERELER
([FEMBREER ) (BEMBEEEY
BmEER - BREHEUN(HEGE
ADERE)  BEARGTRINALE
BRAHRPINRBERERE - ZFHHR
RIVEESLKAZmSE - RIREMEMIZ
AREBEEFEAHEEHHAZTHERNS
BEEDNRAABEFESN - ZEVBR
RINAARE(TAREDZS - BxEE
BN FRIEBERBESEO TR -

HAVBBRREBEARR LENB QA
(R AEEDRBE—_T—_—F+_A
=t RLEFEENPBERE - MEBARE
HAAREEXFEREFNER(BERA
BUHER) EXEEHSEREURE
0¥ B Bl R R L R 5k F A REFIIA K B
BRHREHSOEN(AIRTAKEE
RIRE N A T BB RIBEB IR B
M) EZ L LIRS - BAIES IS -

EARRHEENEZRHEGREHRTIK
AR EESIALENE - ARBERFHE
HRELBHAHREHRNEIKREZE—
DHREASEERBR - B

(a) HEREUREMREFFEANSH
E7¢7 13K

(o) HAARTHEMEENERN : &
(c) AEBNKRERNEBEREE -

Bt 22 B BA 75 3R TR BN 2 BRI AR R EY
BEHREA BN ST BRER - /B
NAM AR B A K BEUS IR IR B B
A AR BRZAESIER LB R —
HiFB AR -

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “"Group"”) for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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2.2

EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June

2021 (early adopted)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest
rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount of
financial assets and liabilities when accounting for changes
in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and
the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to
be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any
gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to
meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") as at 31 December
2021. The Group expects that HIBOR will continue to exist
and the interest rate benchmark reform has not had an
impact on the Group's HIBOR-based borrowings. If the
interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in
a future period, the Group will apply the above-mentioned
practical expedient upon the modification of these
instruments provided that the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic
by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient
applies to rent concessions for which any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for
applying the practical expedient are met. The amendment
is effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning
of the current accounting period. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021. However, the Group has not received covid-19-
related rent concessions and plans to apply the practical
expedient when it becomes applicable within the allowed
period of application.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts®®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current**
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts -
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract'
Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41'

R —F—- A AR ZEKABRNE
JZ BRfE A 3K
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U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

S No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

. As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

® As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if
an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to
the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity's financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on
the Group's accounting policy disclosures.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement technigues and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are
as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies
the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
[llustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group in arriving
at these financial statements set out in this report are set out
below:

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments
in the joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as part of
the Group's investments in joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint
venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations of entities under common control are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method. The results
of subsidiaries are combined from the beginning of the Annual
Periods or the date on which a subsidiary first came under the
common control of the controlling shareholders, whichever
is later, and continue to be combined until the date that the
Company's control ceases. The assets and liabilities of the
combining entities are reflected at their existing carrying values
at the date of combination. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control combination,
which, instead, is recorded as part of equity.

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.
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POLICIES (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’'s or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(if)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers of
the post-employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.17% to 5.00%
Machinery equipment 5.00% to 33.33%
Motor vehicles 10.00% to 23.75%
Other equipment 6.33% to 33.33%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease term

and 20.00% to 50.00%
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POLICIES (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on
a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery under
construction or installation, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
of 2 to 10 years.

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land use rights 20 years
Buildings 2 to 8 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate (“IBR")
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the recognition exemption in the statement
of financial position, the Group classifies the sublease as an
operating lease.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’'s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade and bill receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
and bill receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI"”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months
(@ 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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bill receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

For trade and bill receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings and payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

After initial recognition, trade payables and other payables and
accruals are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.



—E-—#EHRE ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 B St goR e (5) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

TRABEAEER TEEREE - BUERE
HABF AR L HERR

ERACRMABRA-—ERXATEE TR
FFOZ—ERABENAK - HBREREN
GFRBE LB - RS HWR A
RIFERARBERERTEERE - &8
FHEZANEZEENGAEEREMEE
W R HER

B AR AMROX R BT TR R E A
CHERLHE  AARRFHEEELAELR
REREEWSERER SREERD
RABEMEEEE  FERMBRRRE

& o

FEBA R AN A Z IR FEME T ORIE
FEAR - AR FERGHEERETT
KRB A IR E KA H -

HizE (BREBEEY REMMEDIRK
RER BB FEME T ORIEE AR K
RIRFEAFLLEETE - IR ERMEFT
EERET L REEE b ATH A EAA

s
AaTH ©

POLICIES (continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Parking spaces are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Other inventories, comprising ornamental plants and other
materials, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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POLICIES (continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

The Group provides residential property management services
and commercial operational and property management services.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
services are rendered to the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange of those services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Residential property management services

Residential property management services comprise: (i) property
management services; (ii) value-added services to property
developers; and (iii) community value-added services.

Property management services mainly include security, cleaning
and greening, repair and maintenance services and customer
services to residential properties and other properties. For
property management services, the Group bills a fixed amount
for services provided on a monthly basis and recognises it as
revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to invoice
and that corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed. Property management service income from
residential properties is managed on lump sum basis, where
the Group acts as a principal. The Group entitles to revenue
at the value of property management service fee received or
receivable.

Value-added services to property developers mainly include pre-
delivery marketing services, preliminary planning and preparation
services, preliminary consultancy services and other services
including housing trust and vacant unit management. The Group
agrees the price for each service with the customers upfront
and issues the monthly bill to the customers which varies based
on the actual level of service completed in that month. Revenue
from value-added services is recognised over time, in the amount
to which the Group has a right to invoice, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.

For community value-added services including community
living services and brokerage and asset services, revenue is
recognised when the related services are rendered. Payment of
the transaction is due immediately when the community value-
added services are rendered to the customer. Sales of goods
are included in asset services. Revenue from sales of goods
is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer, generally on the acceptance of the
goods by the customer. Revenue from brokerage services is
recognised at the point in time when the services are rendered
and accepted by the customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Commercial operational and property management services

Commercial operational and property management services are
provided to property developers, and owners or tenants of i)
shopping malls and ii) office buildings.

For shopping malls, the Group provides:

o Property management and other services, mainly including
security, cleaning and greening, repair and maintenance
and customer services for shopping malls. Property
management fees are charged on a lump sum basis or
commission basis. The Group bills a fixed amount for
services provided on a monthly basis and recognises it
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right
to invoice and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

Starting from the 1 July 2020, the Group has changed revenue
model for property management services to shopping malls to
commission basis. For property management service income
from properties managed under commission basis, the Group
considers its obligation is only limited to arranging and monitoring
the services provided by other parties to the property owners
as an agent and accordingly recognises the commission, which
is calculated based on fixed fee on a per sq.m. basis, as its
revenue. On a commission basis, the Group is not entitled to
any excess of the property management fees paid by customers
(after deducting the fees receivable by the Group as the property
manager) over the costs and expenses associated with the
provision of services to the shopping malls. Therefore, the Group
does not recognise any direct cost under property management
service contracts charged on a commission basis in general. Such
costs are borne by the property owners.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Commercial operational and property management services
(continued)

o Commercial operational services, including pre-opening
management and post-opening operation management
services. The Group charges pre-opening management
service fees at a fixed rate per square meter or per monthly
rent, or an annual fixed fee depending on the nature of
services rendered. The Group collects fees from providing
post-opening operation management services typically as
a percentage of the rental income, operating income and/
or operating profit of the relevant shopping malls. Revenue
from commercial operational services is recognised in
the amount to which the Group has a right to invoice
that corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.

For office buildings, the Group provides property management
and other services, mainly including security, cleaning and repair
and maintenance services. Property management fees are
charged on a lump sum basis. The Group bills a fixed amount
for services provided on a monthly basis and recognises it
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice that corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.

Sales of planting stocks, merchandise and properties

Revenue from the sales of planting stocks, merchandise and
properties is recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer.

The Group provides commercial subleasing services with respect
to units located within certain shopping malls. The Group receive
rental income from tenants primarily on a monthly basis. Rental
income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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POLICIES (continued)

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument of the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial information of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).
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POLICIES (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of each of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of certain overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of certain overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the
Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects
its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or
to terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term
for leases of machinery due to the significance of these assets to
its operations. These leases have a short non-cancellable period
(i.e., three to five years) and there will be a significant negative
effect on production if a replacement is not readily available.

Determining whether the Group is acting as a principal
or as an agent requires consideration of all relevant facts
and circumstances, and the contractual terms of property
management service contracts.

The Group manages properties either under lump sum basis
or commission basis. Under lump sum basis, the Group
acts as a principal and is primarily responsible for providing
property management services to the property owners, and
recognises the property management fee received or receivable
from property owners as its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of services. For property
management service income from properties managed under
commission basis, the Group considers its obligation is only
limited to arranging and monitoring the services provided by
other parties to the property owners as an agent and accordingly
recognises the commission, which is calculated based on fixed
fee on a per sq.m. basis, as its revenue.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
and bill receivables and other receivables. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
service type, customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer's
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group's trade and bill receivables and other receivables is
disclosed in note 22 and note 23 to the financial statements,
respectively.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
Net realisable value of parking spaces is estimated by the
directors based on the prevailing market prices. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and the historical
experience of selling merchandise of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste or
competitor actions. The Group reassesses these estimates at the
end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Investment properties, including the leasehold property held as
a right-of-use asset, are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at their fair value, details of which are
disclosed in note 15. The fair value of the investment properties
was determined by reference to valuations conducted on these
properties by an independent and professionally qualified valuer
using property valuation technigues which involve certain
assumptions of prevailing market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions may result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair value
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Details of the fair value of investment
properties are disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was nil (2020: nil).
The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2021
was RMB2,747,000 (2020: RMB5,657,000). Further details are
contained in note 20 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding tax levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprise established in Mainland China. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax liabilities that can be recognised, based upon the
likely dividends declared. Further details are contained in note 20
to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or
will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and, therefore,
depreciation charge in the future periods.

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an IBR to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for
subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when
it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease. (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers (“CODM") of the
Group, was specifically focused on the segments of the
residential property management services and commercial
operational and property management services. These divisions
are the basis on which the Group reports its segment information
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

The Group provides residential property management services of
residential properties and other properties. Such services include
(i) property management services; (ii) value-added services to
property developers; and (iii) community value-added services.

Commercial operational and property management services are
provided to property developers, owners or tenants of shopping
malls and office buildings. For shopping malls, the Group
provide property management and other services, commercial
operational services and commercial subleasing services. For
office buildings, the Group provides property management and
other services.

Segment results represent the profit earned or loss incurred
before taxation by each segment without allocation of income or
expenses which are not recurring in nature or unrelated to the
CODM'’s assessment of the Group's operating performance, e.g.,
other income and gains, share of loss of a joint venture, gain on
changes in fair value of investment properties, administration
expenses, other expenses, and finance costs. Segment revenues
and results are the measures reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets exclude unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

% 7y W0 EEOR (A1) 4.

AT BAEERARZEREERATHRE

DEBEI DDA

BE-Z-_—F+=-A=+—HLEFE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating and reportable segments:

Year ended 31 December 2021

iRt/ d
igide

Residential

property

managemenl

services

LES Y93
P2k 4% B
Commercial

operational
and property
management
services

ARWET L ARWET L ARWT L
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue
RERFA RARA Revenue from contracts with customers
ER—BEER Recognised at a point in time 468,340 - 468,340
E—BREEANER Recognised over time 4,810,798 3,276,269 8.087,067
B H A HORAIA Revenue from other sources
A WA Rental income 30,917 289,060 319,977
REINBEFHIBA Revenue from external customers 5,310,055 3,565,329 8.875,384
ES Result
DEEE Segment results 1,025,377 1,733,141 2,758,518
BEYENGBEZEMUE  Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties 30,000
EihaatE s EE Share of loss of a joint venture (1,895)
Hap A R Other income and gains 523,432
AOERAX Unallocated expenses (897.857)
BHEER Finance costs (75.642)
R B A4 A Profit before tax 2,336,556
PEEE Segment assets 3,418,899 3,733,263 7,152,162
#EE Reconciliation
TCEREMRIEEE Corporate and other unallocated assets 14,439,760
BEE Total assets 21,591,922
2EER Segment liabilities 4,394,096 2,658,994 7,053,090
#iE Reconciliation
rEREMRSEERE Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 649,807
waR Total liabilities 7,702,897
EARER* Capital expenditure* 66,834 304,074 370,908
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4. BEBHWEH(5]) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
HE T -FF+—_A=+—HItEE Year ended 31 December 2020

M= BEEE R
ERRYE DEBEERS
Commercial

Residential operational

property  and property
management  management

services services
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
WA Revenue
RERFA RARA Revenue from contracts with customers
TEE—EEER Recognised at a point in time 218,900 = 218,900
F—BREEANER Recognised over time 3,641,884 2,687,744 6,329,628
REEAMIRAIWA Revenue from other sources
HE WA Rental income 23,035 207,348 230,383
REIMBEFHIUA Revenue from external customers 3,883,819 2,895,092 6,778,911
E3 Result
DEELE Segment results 617,379 1,209,654 1,827,033
BREYENSGBEZEMUEE  Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties 1,704
BhHEECEZER Share of loss of a joint venture (120)
H A RS Other income and gains 180,368
KOERX Unallocated expenses (801,930)
BI5 &R Finance costs (72,129)
B 258 Al Profit before tax 1,134,926
PHEE Segment assets 3,309,553 4,622,468 7,932,021
#EE Reconciliation
NalREMADEEEE Corporate and other unallocated assets 11,143,933
WEE Total assets 19,075,954
SHMEE Segment liabilities 3,498,673 2,643,070 6,141,743
E9):3 Reconciliation
AR REMADAEEE Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 471,179
waR Total liabilities 6,612,922
EARER* Capital expenditure* 94,135 114,725 208,860
* BAHES OEREYR  BERRE 2 The capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

BICEE - equipment and intangible assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

No geographical information is presented as the Group's revenue
from the external customers is derived solely from its operation
in Mainland China and no non-current assets of the Group are
located outside Mainland China.

For the years ended 31 December 2021, revenue from the
ultimate holding company and the fellow subsidiaries contributed
39% (2020: 38%) of the Group's revenue. Other than the
revenue from the ultimate holding company and the fellow
subsidiaries, no revenue derived from sales to a single customer
or a group of customers under common control amounted to
10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

REVENUE

Revenue mainly comprises proceeds from residential property
management services and commercial operational and property
management services.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

HE+T-_A=+T—HILLEFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

1¢

)
)

1

AR AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RKEEFAERMEA Revenue from contracts with customers 8.555,407 6,548,528
KB HALRIRAUA Revenue from other sources:
REREYHELEHENHES Gross rental income from investment
WA MR property operating leases:
— NEUR R ek R R 1) — Variable lease payments that do not
AIEAENR depend on an index or rate 78,111 57,751
—HiEENK - BEEE — Other lease payments, including
(BN fixed payments 241,866 172,632
319,977 230,383
8,875,384 6,778,911
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5. WA (&) 5. REVENUE (continued)
KA %A A REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

BET-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARWT I ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERkREER Types of goods and services
FENEEERE Residential property management services
Y EIR IR Property management services 3,772,249 2,922,639
B EE AR Community value-added services 384,633 295,578
STEY R B R AL E RS Value-added services to property developers 813,029 573,322
MEHE Sales of properties 217,339 67,802
Hoh Others 91,838 1,443
5,279,138 3,860,784
BEEERNEETERY Commercial operational and property
management services
B Shopping malls* 1,841,207 1,604,351
BEEr Office buildings** 1,435,062 1,083,393
3,276,269 2,687,744
KERFARMW AL Total revenue from contracts with customers 8,555,407 6,548,528
W\ FE R Y e P Timing of revenue recognition
EREEEEENER Goods transferred at a point in time 309,227 69,245
ER—REHEBHRE Services transferred at a point in time 159,113 149,655
F—BEBAERR RS Services transferred over time 8,087,067 6,329,628
RERFEARKRALE Total revenue from contracts with customers 8.555.407 6,548,528
& REFH —FE_-FTF— ﬁ@ﬁ?iﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ’f‘ﬁ] * The Group started to charge commercial operational fees on
AWK ESE - Al —E-F shopping malls since January 2020. Meanwhile, starting from
FLHE  KEBEEBEDFLYDES July 2020, the Group had changed revenue model for property
FERIEM AR 2 BN 2 4 - GEIRIEB management services to shopping malls to commission basis. For
2HE f;‘?ﬂ’]#ﬁji‘z Y EEIEREIWA property management service income from properties managed
REFERBEETIERRUAEANE under commission basis, the Group considers its obligation is
{/;]‘fff#& BERAME G T IEHENR only limited to arranging and monitoring the services provided by
7% FHUEEB 2 tER AR WA - other parties to the property owners as an agent and accordingly

recognises the commission as its revenue.

*x BT -FTFETFEEFEE  RNEFFIL A ** The Group started to charge commercial operational fees on office
BN EGEEESE o buildings in the second half of 2020.
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5. WA (8) 5. REVENUE (continued)
KA %A RO (4) REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(continued)
EREE Contract liabilities
REEDERUATRAEBER AR : The Group recognised the following revenue-related contract
liabilities:

W+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December

2021 2020

ARHTo0 ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARAE Contract liabilities
RaEt 5 (K12£33) Related parties (note 33) 57,069 11,213
=5 Third parties 1,360,154 995,734
1,417,223 1,006,947
AEENAREBETIEXRAREREHD Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance
HEREEWEELZIE - ZZB8EBEAXR payments received from customers while the underlying services
EFEKIERE ML o are yet to be provided. Such liabilities increased as a result of the

growth of the Group's business.
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BOA (#1)
HKHE%E PG BB (4])

eE&fEE)
TREFR A EREFARERIEE

BEKEBETHREERBEHZBERD
WALH :

REVENUE (continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(continued)

Contract liabilities (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

Rt=A=+—8

As at 31 December

2021 2020

A R¥s Tt ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEAFIERBENDHER Revenue recognised that was included in
& contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year
FEVMEEERS Residential property management services 836,225 661,174
EEEERMEEE RS Commercial operational and property
management services 382,335 63,431
918,560 724,605

BR&E®

EEMERERRSE (RLRSE - @A -
AR EEERIN) EERELRME
BEREME  ARESARENAAR
ERNSB(ERYRAKELZSBROY
EPWMEE)ERRA - AEEF AR
HE RIS F b 2 BRARE T F IR WE
REE - FBRARAE=TBERZIH - &
SECEEREMBREENEI165E
1210 ERER L - THREX
FRVERNB TROET -

Performance obligations

For residential property management services (except for
brokerage services, sales of planting stocks, merchandise
and properties) and commercial operational and property
management services, the Group recognises revenue in the
amount that equals the right to invoice which corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Group's
performance to date on a monthly basis. The Group bills the
amount for services provided on a monthly basis or pre-charges
service fee on a half year basis and payment is due within 30
days of invoice. The Group has elected the practical expedient as
described in HKFRS 15.121(b) for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these types of contracts.
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REVENUE (continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(continued)

Performance obligations (continued)

For brokerage services, the services are rendered in a short
period of time which is generally less than a year and there was
no satisfied performance obligation as at 31 December 2021 and
2020. The payment is due immediately when the services are
rendered to the customer.

For sales of planting stocks, merchandise and properties, the
performance obligation is satisfied when control of the asset is
transferred to the customers. The payment is due immediately
when the customer obtains the physical possession or the
legal title of the planting stocks, merchandise and properties.
There were no remaining performance obligations unsatisfied or
partially satisfied as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

HE+T-_A=+T—HILLEFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

A Re¥s Tt ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

FEUA Interest income 376.301 15,085

BT Eh* Government grants* 77,883 72,148
HEME  BERXBER Gain on disposal of items of property,

ol gy plant and equipment 12,323 28,025
B e Operating subsidies** - 9,272
BE 5 s 25 F 58 Exchange gains, net 16,656 48,004
BARBEFEAEEZFHTA Fair value gains from financial assets at

EEREMEERN fair value through profit or loss

AR BEERE 28,060 1,090
B 5 s K e Reversal of impairment of trade and

b [ U TR IE R (B B (B bill receivables and other receivables - 1,868
Hith Others 12,209 4,876

523,432 180,368

1
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6.

7.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

* ¥

Government grants received for which related expenditure has not
yet been incurred are included in other liabilities the consolidated
statements of financial position. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies relating to these grants.

Operating subsidies refer to cash received for managing certain
property projects managed in accordance with the Notice from the
State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council ("SASAC”) that required state-owned
enterprises to separate the management of water, electricity and
heat supply and other property management services of their
employees’ residential properties from their own businesses
and transfer them to specialised property management service
providers for management (“SOE Reform Projects”).

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

BET-_A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

A R¥TE ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Hb A S Other interest expense 9,215 5,419
HEAEFE Interest on lease liabilities 66,427 66,710
75,642 72,129
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8.

B B i 6k A 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

AEBERRTADE Y EHR (GEA) T
JIBIRRETHE ¢

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

HE+T-_A=+T—HILLEFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

et A RWToE ARETT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
BIRHERIEA A Cost of services provided 5,953,922 4,912,980
EEFEMMRA Cost of inventories sold 162,944 38,898
ME - BE NERETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 14 68,876 49,601
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 18(a) 49,981 31,831
A B Amortisation of intangible assets 16 2,757 1,557
FHRAX Listing expenses - 39,029
ZEEB & Auditor’s remuneration 3.300 2,180
EBERANBEX (TEHE Employee benefit expense
FENRFTETHRAE (excluding directors’ and chief
) - executive’s remuneration):
TERH® Wages and salaries 3,141,428 2,939,681
RIKE IR Pension scheme contributions* 267,379 113,546
3,408,807 3,053,227
B o EWIE L EWRZE  Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of
BE CRIERE) trade and bill receivables 22 6,146 (1,363)
FEfTFRIE - EfbEUERIE  Reversal of impairment for prepayments,
NH A& ERERE R other receivables and other assets 23 (221) (505)
WoRTFEE a2 15%E Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 21 3,045 -
HENZ(KEFATHERE Lease payments not included in the
=) measurement of lease liabilities 18(c) 42,760 25,591
HeEWE  HEREMES  Gain on disposal of property, plant and
W equipment 6 (12,323) (28,025)
WARBESEREESE  Fair value gains from financial assets at
FFAEHIER S fair value through profit or loss
BEENARBERS 6 (28,060) (1,090)

& BE_—_F-_—F+_A=1+—HIF *
B ANEEHEE Y S AT b R A
BRI A 2IAy 5 -

pension schemes in future years.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had no
forfeited contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

1

~

oo
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9.

o

Bz EmRA - FE QARG FE383(1)
(@)~ (b)) ) RMOERAR(HEZENR
BRDABIE 22T FRNESH MW
T

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2021 2020

AR¥ET I ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

we Fees 992 104
EH A Other emoluments:

e R R EYWER Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,208 1,855

i@ﬁ*ﬁ BATEAT Performance-related bonuses 18,361 4,930

RIS T2 Pension scheme contributions 685 211

23.254 6,996

24,246 7,100




#=HEREEGMR /AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

9. HEIHH M (41) 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

FRAENTEEFHOFHOT :

were as follows:

e W
e REWHEAN
Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

in kind

#3
HIBAE AL

Performance-
related

bonuses

B4
FE LT

Pension
scheme

contributions

The remuneration paid to each of the directors during the year

Total

ARWTE ARWTE  ARBTE  ARBTL  ARBTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E--F 2021
WIES: Executive directors:
Wi 7R B 5 A Mr. YU Linkang - 1,585 6,857 176 8,618
BNELL Ms. WEI Xiaohua - 1,008 4,197 176 5.381
FER%AE Mr. WANG Haimin - 876 3,701 176 4,753
B ELT Ms. YANG Hongxia - 739 3,606 157 4,502
- 4,208 18,3601 685> 23,254
FHTEE Non-executive directors:
FREE Mr. LI Xin - _ _ _ -
PHERE Mr. GUO Shiging - - - ~ _
BUIEHITEE . Independent Non-executive directors:
REIELA Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 248 - - - 248
AMELAE Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer 248 - - - 9248
RLt Ms. QIN Hong 248 - - N 9248
Bor&EgLE Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan 248 - - - 248
992 - - - 992
992 4,208 18,361 685> 24,246

189
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9. HHHM(4H])

9.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

55 2R =R BIKE
REWET HEIEA FHEMER
Salaries,
allowances Performance- Pension
and benefits related scheme
in kind bonuses  contributions
ARBTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARNTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—ECEE 2020
WIES: Executive directors:
AR St A Mr. YU Linkang - 782 2,171 64 3,017
TEREE Mr. WANG Haimin - 357 1,155 54 1,566
BELT Ms. WEI Xiaohua = 419 878 45 1,342
GaEzt Ms. YANG Hongxia = 297 726 48 1,071
- 1,855 4,930 21 6,996
FHTES Non-executive directors:
FREE Mr. LI Xin = = = - -
FHERE Mr. GUO Shiging = - - _ -
BUIEHITEE . Independent Non-executive directors:
REIFLE Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ching 26 - - - 26
AmERAE Mr. LAU Ping Cheung Kaizer 26 = = = 26
Rzt Ms. QIN Hong 26 = = = 26
BorR&EE Mr. CHAN Chung Yee Alan 26 = = = 26
104 - - - 104
104 1,855 4,930 21 7,100

F D R B S FE NI TE S A0 oAb BT
(ZE=ZF : &) -

FAYBEEXRSTRAERERRE
A ME 22 5F -

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2020: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.
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10. 0 4% 35 ¥ 357 1 O EL 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
RAFERERSFNEEBE=RES The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(ZZZZF : —RESR)  BEZHFHF directors (2020: one director), details of whose remuneration are
BER EXHIFY - B TIWIEARRBESR set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
MIEERBITRABHMAG(ZEZTF ¢ of the remaining two (2020: four) highest paid employees who
MZ)&eHE B FHIFBLT : are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

HE+T-_A=+T—HILLEFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARHTo0 ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000
e R REYWET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,633 3,459
IR Performance related bonuses 8.034 8,502
RIKEET B Pension scheme contributions 241 520
11,908 12,481
HFMER AT ERBAIEFESE MIEESRIT The numbers of non-directors and non-chief executive highest
ABHNESEIEE ASHT : paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands are as follows:

BET-_A=+—HILEE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

75#2,000,001 TE HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

##2,500,0007TC - 3
75#2,500,001 TE HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

78 #£3,000,0007T - 1
755,500,001 TE HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000

7 #6,000,0007T 1 -
758,500,001 TE HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000

7 #9,000,0007T 1 -

no
N
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11. PifaBib % 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

AEBARBEBEERNAEBNXE AR
PrEst MR & 2 M R AE SR EE
HEE G MRS - RIEFSHS
REBRIZBHESRALER  REBET
REEHERRBRELHSEMAINE
REBEGRERAFN -

AEEARAFEREBELNGFET
R FIE16.6% (— T T4 : 16.6%)H
MEHREBFEH - BRAEEREE
—E-—F+-_A=t—HIEETER
ERELERTF N - MW EREEFE
MUELBEB(ZSTF &) -

BE-_E-_—F+-A=+—BILFE -
REERFREAMEENHNB LG —MRAE
1%25%( — T —T4F 1 25%) B REMPH
EMRER(TTPBRECEMER])  HERE
B % T BB B A &) (R 7 P BB M sk
BREANMEEE)IREE_T=—
F+ZA=+—HLEFERI5%ERR
KBNS -

Bl E R ([ LB ER ) B TR
B BEREREAR JOERNRERE
TR EHRCRIEEB O RRER RIEL
B - WMERETRMERIAR -

FAMBRAXNEEAXEOWT

BNEAFR1S Current income tax
T HbIBET LAT

RIEFTISH Deferred income tax
FRFHIBS B

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Cayman lIslands and British Virgin Islands, the
entities within the Group incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2020:16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax
has been made as the Group had no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China are
generally subject to the PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") rate
of 256% (2020 25%) for the year ended 31 December 2021,
excluding certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC which are
either located in western cities or qualified as Small and Micro
Enterprises and were subject to a preferential income tax rate of
15% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The provision for PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") is
estimated according to the requirements set forth in the relevant
PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain allowable
deductions.

The major components of income tax expenses for the year are
as follows:

HE+T-_A=+T—HILLEFE

Year ended 31 December

et ARETT
NOTE RMB'000
331,405

2,462

20 (16,651)

Total tax charge for the year 317,216
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1. P Be b 3¢ (%) 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)
BRANRBAIFNBOEHRER (L AEE A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit
REDRABIFAEREER ZAER R before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
Eﬁ) IR ER R TN SHEROHA majority of the companies of the Group are domiciled to the

CARBEARE(BEERR)EERH tax expense at effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the
—?—E’Jﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ—l— 3 applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax

rate, are as follows:

2021 2020

A R¥E T8 AREFIT
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
R 750 A1 o A Profit before tax 2,336,556 1,134,926
IREATHMEFTEMFIIE Tax at the statutory tax rate 584,139 25.0 283,732 25.0
5%JEINFH LI AREE T Effect of withholding tax at 5%
BB AT RIS )%  on the distributable profits of
llzo)=2- the Group's PRC subsidiaries 70,189 3.0 36,711 3.2
BB EREIERL Lower tax rates enacted by
= local authority (57.,772) (2.6) (10,774) (0.9)
DR Expenses not deductible for tax 6,170 0.3 7,176 0.6
FABAHMMFAE Tax losses and temporary
BREREERE difference utilised from
previous periods (1,512) (0.1) (1,133) (0.1)
KRR HEIER  Tax losses and deductible
AIF B A 1 258 temporary difference not
recognised 16 - 1,735 0.2
FBAEFEENEIRIIEE Adjustments in respect of
Ok current tax of previous years 1,486 0.1 952 0.1
BB U A Income not subject to tax (914) - (3,029) (0.3)
+ Hh 3 E LAT 11.579 0.5 2,462 0.2
T IS ERTIEFE Tax effect of LAT (2.895) (0.1) (616) (0.1)
HAREBERFEE Tax charge at the Group's
MFRIE S B effective rate 610,486 26.1 317,216 27.9
2. k& 12. DIVIDENDS
RZZEZZFRA  ARFARREHE In June 2020, the Company declared a dividend in the amount of
HWERKEARKAIZMSEE L ERZ RMB434.8 million to the shareholder, CR Land, which was paid
ZoTFTR+=HXfte on 23 October 2020.
HE-_Z-_TF+_A=+—HIEFEZ A dividend of RMBO0.132 (equivalent to HK$0.158) per ordinary
ERETABRBREARE0I2TT(HER share that relates to the year ended 31 December 2020
HEHE0.1587T) - EHARM3001BE T amounting to RMB300.1 million (equivalent to approximately
(*ﬁ"‘“ﬁ’\\ 4B HE360.6EETT) EEAEM: HK$360.6 million) was recognised during the six months ended
ZE—FXRA=Z+TALEANEAER X 30 June 2021 and paid in July 2021.

ER-_F_—FEtAIKM -



194

T - —FEHLE  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ot A A
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. BB (5)

13.

KRB —F=A=+HEFTZHTH
gHtb EEeERRNEBEE=ZT=—
F+ A=+ BHULEFEEZRERES
B @Ak A R#0.2767T (37 A 7 #0.339
L) AHARG30.0H5ET(FABE
773.8B8HT) °

FARBARIBEAFARRRRRERE
BRERBFEANS LHE - TAMEER -

RS v 35 B A 5 N\ AN 4B
v

BREAXAREERFTBRBEFAG ARG E
BRRFFEABESNARFABETY
AR A INFEF 19 802,282,500,000/% (= F
—=4F :1,686,691,781A )& -

AAARBE-B=—%+=A=+—~
1L 9 5 B0 B 78 MR (=

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS (continued)

At a meeting held by the board of directors on 30 March
2022, the board of directors recommended a final dividend of
RMBO0.276 (equivalent to HK$0.339) cents per ordinary share
totalling RMB630.0 million (equivalent to HK$773.8 million) for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 2,282,500,000 (2020: 1,686,691,781) in issue
during the year.

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

2021 2020

A R¥ T8 ARKETFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
& F Earnings
ISUNCIR S Frs =YW\ L Profit attributable to ordinary equity
S M) holders of the parent 1,724,925 817,710

BET-A=+—HILEFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARWT
RMB’000

ARETTT
RMB'000

Bt

Shares

FERNEBITERKRZ METEE Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year

2,282,500,000 1,686,691,781
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14. W3 > Wb Beisefli

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

[ 54 Bt L Huath  AstmERE LA H3k
Machinery Motor Other  Leasehold ~ Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment improvements in process Total
AREFT  AREBTR ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AZEZ—F—F—H: At1January 2021:
KR Cost 02,148 115,095 12,459 179,672 102,262 0,051 478,287
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (20.821) (42.951) (6403)  (116,624) (31,560) - (21839)
RERE Net carrying amount 41327 72,744 0,050 03,048 70,702 60,051 259.928
W-ZE-—%—F—H At1January 2021 net of
Hk2:4E accumulated depreciation 41327 72,744 6,056 03,048 70,702 6,051 259,928
NE Additions 209,905 11,245 4,428 29,741 7,569 3,601 336.739
ek Disposals (04) (104) () (532) - - )
ERGHRNE Depreciation provided during
the year (5.954) (10,300) (2.282) (28.772) (21.,568) - (68,876)
WZZEZ—F+=F  At31December 2021, net of
=+—R fKZ:d  accumulated depreciation
e 305.214 73,585 8,125 03,485 06,703 9,902 527,014
WZZZFF-F—H: At1January 2020:
KA Cost 63,212 95,744 8,845 147,915 46,752 9,157 371,625
P Accurulated depreciation (16241 (32892 (4638 (9249 (22492) - (168758
REEE Net carrying amount 46,971 62,852 4,207 55,420 24,260 9,157 202,867
WZZ-ZE-F—B  At1January 2020 net of
B 25HTE accumulated depreciation 46,971 62,852 4,207 55,420 24,260 9,157 202,867
RE Additions 3,188 20,801 3,676 34,706 28,547 23,891 114,809
33 Transfer - - - - 26,997 (26,997) =
HE Disposals (4,252) (850) (62) (2,949) (34) = (8,147)
ERGHINE Depreciation provided during the
year (4,580) (10,059) (1,765) (24,129) (9,068) = (49,601)
WZZE-ZFE+ZF  At31December 2020, net of
Zt—8 MBEF  acoumulated depreciation
nE 41,327 72,744 6,056 63,048 70,702 6,051 259,928

195



196

—ZT - —FF5H%E ANNUAL REPORT 2021

A B A B R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. BEWE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

RIFHERE

Held under

leases

AREET T

RMB'000

RZZE_FF—-H—H At 1 January 2020 2,217,800

= Additions 14,496

KEMEARBEZ DO Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties 1,704

RZEZZEF+-HA=+—H At 31 December 2020 2,234,000

RZEZ—F—HA—H At 1 January 2021 2,234,000

KEMERARBEZSHHKE Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties 30,000

R-ZE-_—F+=-_B=+—H At 31 December 2021 2,264,000

BiRE - Notes:

(a) AEENHERRF (a)  Valuation processes of the Group

AEBREMEMNTEAM - KEE
BARBEFERREDE - ARER
ﬁ%%ﬁ/\_z:—ﬁﬂ— A=+—BRK
—ECRE+_A=1+-RANAREE
DRIERNBILFEE ERGER
%ﬁ@ﬁ&*ﬁ‘ﬁ&’&ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ%i °

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China.
The Group measures its investment properties at fair value. The
fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020 have been determined on the basis
of valuation carried out by CBRE Limited, an independent and
professionally qualified valuer.



#=HEREEGMR /AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

| ol

15. BEWE (4)

BsE - (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

HERIT

HEFRAOGETERKRAE

WARREFERRERBHENE
HEWRARBENBEERRAELE
ERE)  RREENEAEETEARE
~EE-

EREAMELABER  WENRSK
REMRGARERE -

EREREXTAEEBARENAA
BEFENEM(EIR)

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(b) Valuation techniques

The valuation methodology adopted in valuation is the income
approach.

The income approach operates by takes into account the rental
income of the properties derived from the existing tenancy
with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
tenancy, which is then capitalised into the value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

(c) Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

R+=—A=+—8

As at 31 December

2021 2020

ARBEARETT)

BREE(%)

KRHERTHSEES
(BAGFHIAARKET)

THERGARBER A BENEER

o AXMLEHD  AAEESE

. EXNIE i o

=
= °

RREEY

RERN - DR EEFEFIREE2H 2
R M - IR WA K R 3
(Z2=ZF &)

Fair value (RMB'000)
Capitalisation rate (%) 6.3 6.3
Assessed prevailing market rents

2,264,000 2,234,000

(RMB per square meter per month) 95-340 125-400
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value:
. The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value;
o The higher the prevailing market rents, the higher the fair
value.
(d) During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).
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16. B A 16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
;i
Software
AR¥T K
RMB’000
—E-—%+=-B=+—H 31 December 2021
R-ZTE——F— A — B8 Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated
B Rtk amortisation 2,238
NE Additions 116.476
F R HEEE Amortisation provided during the year (2,757)
R-EBE-_—F+=-_B=+—H At 31 December 2021 115,957
RZBE-_—F+_-_A=+—8": At 31 December 2021:
PR Cost 125.571
RETHE S Accumulated amortisation (9.614)
BREFAE Net carrying amount 115,957
LIt
Software
AREFIT
RMB'000
—E-_EE+_-H=+—H 31 December 2020
RZZZF—-R—HHOKAK Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated
R Bty amortisation 1,555
= Additions 2,240
F TR Amortisation provided during the year (1,557)
N-_E-—FTF+—-_H=+—H At 31 December 2020 2,238
R-ZE-_ZTF+-_RF=+—H: At 31 December 2020:
AR Cost 9,095

RETHEY Accumulated amortisation (6,857)

B FE Net carrying amount 2,238
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18.
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HRBERTEAMEEEENRFERITE

BENAREEFE  BEFHMEXR3L% R
FTHIR A36MAH - ERFHRRFERBIB=

B AR A T AR - 87K A RHRR
REEAHEENREREEAH AT R
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17.

18.

EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

TIME DEPOSITS

The balance represents deposit certificates purchased from a
creditworthy licensed bank in Mainland China earning interest
at a fixed rate of 3.5% per annum with original maturity period
of 36 months. The deposits certificates are redeemable upon
holding for longer than three months. The contractual terms of
the time deposits give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding and are held within
a business model with the objective to hold in order to collect
contractual cash flows. For such purpose, the time deposits are
accounted for as financial assets at amortised cost.

LEASES

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land use
rights, buildings and motor vehicles used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the owners with lease periods of 20 years. Leases
of buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 8 years,
while motor vehicles generally have lease terms between 2 and 3
years. Other equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months
or less and/or is individually of low value.
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18. AL (A7) 18. LEASES (continued)
ASR A 2 AR R () THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (continued)
(a) FEHEEE: (a) Right-of-use assets
RAFE  KAEBFEBREEEZER The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets
MmEREZESHWT - and the movements during the year are as follows:

ke i £ D A B L A5t

Land use Motor
rights Buildings vehicles Total
ARWTX ARWTRE ARWTEX ARWTX
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RZTE-ZTF At 1 January 2020

—H—H 2,024 44,415 106 46,545
NE Additions - 98.045 1.498 99,543
HEER Depreciation charge (152) (31,050) (629) (31,831)
N-ZE_TF At 31 December 2020 and

+=—A=+—~H 1 January 2021

kT —%

—H—H 1,872 111,410 975 114,257
NE Additions - 49,191 1,372 50,563
WEER Depreciation charge (38) (49,140) (803) (49,981)
FAET A HEETE  Revision of a lease term

R P EE A E R arising from a change in

HEET the non-cancellable period

of a lease (1,834) (13,411) (178) (15,423)
RIE——F At 31 December 2021
+=-—A=+—H - 98,050 1.366 99.416
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18. AL ()
AR A B AR AN (7))
(b) HESE

RAFE  HEREZKREERLE

18. LEASES (continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

2021 2020

AR AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—A—HBMERAEE Carrying amount at 1 January 1,382,372 1,304,555
FEE New leases 50,563 114,039
RAE E R FIEIE N Accretion of interest recognised
during the year 66,427 66,710
REAHMAARCovid-19 Covid-19-related rent concessions
HHEEEER from lessors - (7,468)
DB Payments (125,064) (95,464)
HE T REHE B & P E Revision of a lease term arising from
EFRERERT a change in the non-cancellable
period of a lease (15,828) -
R+=—A=+—H/EEEE Carrying amount at 31 December 1,358,470 1,382,372
DWNTA Analysed into:
B S Current portion 80,547 63,041
FEREE D Non-current portion 1,277,923 1,319,331

HEABENIHBEDTRPBHRE
B sE36H EE -

AEBERFACHEBEARE TR
ERERERLNMEREREEZR
RRMNEREETL

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
36 to the financial statements.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all eligible
rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases of
certain plant and equipment during the year.
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18.

At (41
SR A 2 AR AN (A

(c) NESEREHERMISBEWNT

18. LEASES (continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (continued)
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

leases are as follows:

HE+T-_A=1T—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

A R¥s T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEB GRS Interest on lease liabilities 66,427 66,710
EREEEITEEHR Depreciation charge on right of assets 49,98 31,831
R HIEERKEBMEEEME Expense relating to short-term leases
BN and leases of low-value assets 16,934 5,391
K8 H A AR Covid-1958 7 Covid-19-related rent concessions from
HeER lessors - (7,468)
Rt AHEBEHECTE Variable lease payments not included in
HERK the measurement of lease liabilities 25,826 20,200
RIEEERNB ST Total amount recognised in profit or loss 159,168 116,664

AR A2 AL

AEBRBELLHEELTHHAREDE
(MI3E15) - MEKER—REFBL IR
Fe  UHRERBEERABITHRE A
%%ﬁé RAFE  TAHHEEERER
HHEBA B ARE319,977,000L(=F =
TF . AR¥230,383,0007T) (FI5E5) °

RZTE-_—F+-_A=+—H ~EEH
EBEAFTEAR - RETAHEELEEHE
AU R B 2 HA R R R AR B IR A E S R
-

THE GROUP AS A LESSOR

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. The sublease revenue of non-cancellable
operating leases during the year was RMB319,977,000 (2020:
RMB230,383,000) (note b5).

At 31 December 2021, the Group had contracted with lessees
for the following future undiscounted lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

HET-_A=1T—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

A R¥s T8 AREF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

—FR Within one year 217,868 205,927
RE_FEZERF(BIFEEREME) In the second to fifth year inclusive 240,131 268,516
hFE After five years 211,503 201,705

669,502 676,148
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19. R —HEBEEZ2RE 19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

W+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December

2021 2020

AR¥ET IO ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 435 2,330
TRINRAEB ZIEFERERES S DERN The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
48 B B 7R OB L of the Group's joint venture that is not individually material:
®n+=ZA=+—8

As at 31 December

2021 2020
A R¥s T AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREEAEDEEE Share of the joint venture's loss for
the year (1,895) (120)

AEBR—HAELEZIRER  Aggregate carrying amount of the
HEREE Group's investment in a joint venture 435 2,330
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20. JEREBLIH

20. DEFERRED TAX

BEMREERREENZEBIT

The movements in deferred tax assets during the reporting
period are as follows:

Mk
WL

Allowance for
impairment
of receivables

Rt i

Write-down
of inventories

BsiaH

Tax losses

52N

Deferred
incomes

Mk

Acerued
expenses

ARETT  AREBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R=%-%%-A-H At 1 January 2020 2,742 - 217 1,978 - 4,937
ER(MBE)/5ABHE  Deferred tax (charged tol/credited to
MEERE profit or loss during the year (466) - (217) 787 40,326 40,430
N_BE_EF+_A At 31 December 2020 and
=t-BR-E-—&- 1 January 2021
A—H 2,276 - - 2,765 40,320 45,307
ER(HBE)/FHABES  Deferred tax (charged tol/credited to
EiEsE profit or loss during the year 1,192 526 - 273) 20,773 31,218
WZEZ-E+ZA=1—H At31 December 2021 3,468 520 - 2,492 70,099 70,585

BEHRBEERERBENEEHIT

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the reporting
period are as follows:

i
PR
LAl i) A

Impact of

HKEFRS 16

g

Withholding

tax

L3t

YR LE

Fair value

gains from
investment

properties

A3
MEBKA

Unrealised
interest
income

ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WZZ-ZF-f—H At 1 January 2020 2,398 23,464 176,068 - 201,930
ERHIGBEHNETHE  Deferred tax charged to profit or
loss during the year 7,495 13,247 3,037 - 23,779
RZZ-ZFF+-A=+—H At31 December 2020 and
k=2=—%-8-H 1 January 2021 9,893 36,711 179,105 - 225,709
ENNBERFMELHE  Deferred tax charged to profit or
loss during the year 9,257 70,189 7,500 21,091 108,037
RZZ-—-%+-F=1+—HB At31 December 2021 19,150 106,900 186,605 21,091 333,746




20. W #E B (4])

R-_ZE-_—F+_F=1+—8  K&EBA
FA R 8 A 2 JE SR A i 1 ) Kk B FR B 765 U85
BAEANREE2747,0000(ZE T4 :
AR¥5,657,0000T)  ER W E(ZT=
TF: E)RABECERBELHES
B WEGARE2,747,0000(—2=-F
F: AR¥5,657,0007T) B84 T 5 7% &5
BHERAEEREBEE  REARAARES
RAE - BENE R RRRAE T HORTHE
o MEBEAERZ AT -

BIB(PEAREMBECEMETE)
AR B R K S Y M IR A (b EE RN IR
BEET KA B BEILZ10% 8 R B 4 78
N - ZREE_TENF-—A—HEE
o EARZETEF A=+ —RH%
BIZF o finiHh B A1t B HNE % 1 A P AE &)
EEERITAHKRE - TEAREKMNTE
HMBRE - WAEEMES  BATEAR
5% o At - AREBE AR T R AL
M BARR TS NF—A—RREL
REFIFT SR AR S RANTEIIRL « IRAF
& AREBE R B AR /B A
EETBINH ARK70,189,000t(—F =
T AR¥13,247,0007T) ° KA AIA

21. H#1

EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

20. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses
of RMB2,747,000 (2020: RMB5,657,000) available to offset
against future taxable profits, of which no (2020: nil) tax losses
have been recognised as deferred tax assets. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised on the remaining tax losses of
RMB2,747,000 (2020: RMB5,657,000), as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the future profit streams of these
subsidiaries are uncertain. The tax losses could be carried
forward for a maximum of five years.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. In the current year,
the Group accrued withholding tax of RMB70,189,000(2020:
RMB13,247,000) for those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

HERESZMIRET@ELREHRER - payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
21. INVENTORIES
RT+=ZA=+—H

As at 31 December
AREF T
RMB'000
(X=X v Parking spaces 160,894
HEiprE Other Inventories 35,238
196,132

#*%:—¢+*ﬂ*+—a B 5L
REEZAEZRFEARBEBEARE
3,045,000 (ZE-ZEF+ /A =+—
;&) o

As at 31 December 2021, the provision for write-down of
inventories to net realizable value amounted to RMB3,045,000
(31 December 2020: nil).
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22, B 5 WE WK B R % 22. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES

R+=ZA=+—8
As at 31 December

2021 2020

ARWET ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000
E 5 W RIE Trade receivables
BaRE 75 (K7 33) Related parties (note 33) 703,820 586,992
F=5 Third parties 339,482 221,778
FEUR IR Bill receivables
B 7 (M15£33) Related parties (note 33) 7,185 13,920
£=H Third parties 1,057 3,351
WA Impairment (8,935) (3,801)
1,042,609 822,240
BoEWZBERERERER X ZRIZB®HE Trade and bill receivables mainly arise from property
SN ESIERS I EREMEL management services managed on a lump sum basis and value-
added services.
BB EESE RS AIZRBIEBE Y ER Property management service income on a lump sum basis are
A R A IERUNEL - IR RS RIS received in accordance with the term of the relevant property
WAZBERETEIREREES A - AEE service agreements. Service income from property management
HREABIE S H R U B A FEUR TR IE - @ Hf services is due for payment by the property owners upon
HERREIEE T HAER o BN T - rendering of services. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
BEAREENE ZEKZBLEREE S K over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
RENHNEF I EEERRKRENE regularly by management. In view of the aforementioned and
oo REFEN MRt H E 5 pE Ik F0E K& EWR the fact that the Group’s trade and bill receivables relate to a
Z &S A I R E (S P i large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
o BEEWRIENEWZE TS - concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any

collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade and bill
receivable balances. Trade and bill receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
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22. B 5y W0k I B M OB R ()

B 5 RKFIRRERREEREER A
BREC DTN

22. TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade and bill receivables based on
invoice date is as follows:

W+=—A=+—8H

As at 31 December

2021 2020

ARWTE ARKEFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

1R Within 1 year 1,017,119 798,295
1226 1 to 2 years 31,558 25,580
2E3F 2 to 3 years 1,531 1,563
3FLAE Over 3 years 1,336 603
1,051,544 826,041

WA Impairment (8,935) (3,801)
1,042,609 822,240

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and
bill receivables are as follows:

R -

W+=-—A=+—8H
As at 31 December

2021 2020

A R¥WT o8 ARKETFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

REF] At beginning of year 3.801 5,164
BEEE (BERERRE) Impairment losses/(reversal of

impairment losses) 6.146 (1,363)

WgH A AT Y @ Y R Amount written off as uncollectible (1,012) =

REXR At end of year 8.935 3,801

The trade and bill receivables were denominated in RMB, and
the fair values of trade and bill receivables approximated to their
carrying amounts.

BHRYGRARBEREBAARKE -
BHRUFARBEEENAABERER
BREEARE



208

—=—

-

—EF#HE  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ot A A
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22.

S0 o0 M MRk L M S (48D

NERE B RFERBEREETRES
W AErEREHEEEE BEXDE
REBEUBERANZERTF,SEA
EIJ(EU@}E@M&HH%EM)E’Js@%ﬁﬂ%%{
EBE sTERBEERMELR  EEH
Faﬁféi&ﬁéiﬁttaﬁﬁﬁféﬁa@ff%# S =1}
R RRRGEEMRABANEERE X
?—*rﬁ’)ﬁﬂ BB MBHEEBEX:

BRON%(ZEZZEF+A=+—8:
0.1%) * EEREHE - WHAIEHRE
EESIRED A -

TXHINBRAKEE SRR REK
ERERABRBEENERERRNER

22,

TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e. customer
type and service type). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. The expected credit loss rate for related
parties is calculated as 0.1% (31 December 2020: 0.1%) by
considering the default rates and adjusting for forward-looking
macroeconomic data.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade and bill receivables using a provision matrix:

)
Related
parties
15/ 3ENE
Less than 21to Over
1 year 3 3 years 3 years
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR%®Tn  ARETR ARET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-B--F+Z4 At 31 December 2021
=t-8
BHEEFHEX Expected credit loss rate 1.27% 15.00% 30.06% 100.00% 0.10%
RESE Gross carrying amount 318,378 20,442 875 844 711,005 1,051,544
BHEEER Expected credit losses 4,051 3,060 203 844 iy 8,935
R-B-2£+Zf At 31 December 2020
=t-8
BHEEFHEX Expected credit loss rate 0.93% 13.17% 28.52% 100.00% 0.10%
BHEAE Gross carrying amount 221,495 1,987 1,052 595 600,912 826,041
BHEEER Expected credit losses 2,060 262 300 595 584 3,801
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PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

23. BB - BREBGK B R ICML  23.
% OTHER ASSETS

R+=ZA=+—8
As at 31 December

2021 2020

A R¥ET o0 AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JEE) Current

AN B Prepayments 170,979 116,201
bira Deposits 26,870 17,387
H e R IE Other receivables 181,170 137,613
[ UR BE B 75 ZRIE (A72£33) Amounts due from related parties (note 33) 548,639 520,273
927,658 791,474
VENIE] Impairment (5,080) (5,301)
922,578 786,173

FETED Non-current
FEfTFRIE Prepayments 3,758 86,065

H AR IBAA REEEHE - M R
FENAABEREREEAERS - BKE
= HMEMBERGRIEAERR 28 KA
REREE - BINEBTNEMTIERSR
B FHIERMI 33 EE -

MBS RBENFKEMNE - AEBEFERE
ES B BB RN o Tt FE U BA B 5 3B I B Ath
BWRIEMS @ AKEFERE - BUK
TR B % F M WK IE /Y (5 B R B I 8 K18
Bl - REMEIR - ZFRKFIBESE
BEIRE  FTE12E A EHEE - RE
E-E-_—F+-_A=1+—HIEFER "
ZNER B 5 B Uk B it U 9 L A R LR IR Y
FEHEEEBERE01%( T -_TF+—
A=1+—H:01%) &EBEHNE - I
FATEM RBEBESIREL AR - EER
AR - BRESL - BN RE AR REE
MARTER - FRBEEEFERKE=
FREMERFIBERNTEIEEES

The other receivables were denominated in RMB, and the
fair value of other receivables approximated to their carrying
amounts. Other receivables with third parties are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand. Other receivables
with related parties are interest-free, details of which are
disclosed in note 33.

For deposits and prepayments, the Group has assessed that
the loss allowance was minimal. For amounts due from related
parties and other receivables, the Group has assessed that the
credit risk of these receivables has not increased significantly
since initial recognition. At the end of each reporting period,
these receivables were categorised in stage 1 and 12-month
expected losses are calculated. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group calculated the ECL rate for other
receivables from related parties as 0.1% (31 December 2020:
0.1%) by considering the default rates and adjusting for forward-
looking macroeconomic data. A provision matrix was used to
measure expected credit losses for other receivables from
third parties based on the number of days past due, repayment
history, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.
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23. WA - HAbERGRE R 23. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

¥ e (4) OTHER ASSETS (continued)
T H B R AN 5 [ A FE U RIE (B IR Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
S REMNFIEINERBEERNEER on the Group's other receivables (except for deposits and
fREyE R prepayments) using a provision matrix:

kioy
Related
Third parties parties

FENE 152F ES SENLE
Less than 1to 2to Over

1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
ARETL  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR AR%TRT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R-B--F+=R At 31 December 2021

=t-H
EHEEREX Expected credit loss rate 1.00% 5.00% 15.00% 100.00% 0.10%
RHEE Gross carrying amount 170,805 6,904 1,024 2,437 436,218 617,388
BHEEER Expected credit losses 1,708 345 154 2,437 436 5,080

R-B-BE+ZA At 31 December 2020

=t+-g
BHEEEER Expected credit loss rate 0.99% 6.87% 17.27% 100.00% 0.10%
FREAE Gross carrying amount 120,809 3,826 2,653 2,965 419,152 549,405
BHEEER Expected credit losses 1,196 263 458 2,965 419 5,301
Hit e W IB R EEBREENEENT - The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

R+=—A=+—8
As at 31 December

2021 2020

AR T 0 ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000
REY] At beginning of year 5,301 5,806
RE R Bl Reversal of impairment (221) (505)

RER At end of year 5,080 5,301
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

R+=ZA=+—8
As at 31 December

2021 2020

A R¥ET o0 AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

FEAERNEBIERITER Structured bank deposits with floating
interest rates - 3,847,810

EBURTERERIZRRARE - K
REFHEFIHA - SBIERITERE
mA A RIERNEERHEENRSRE
WIHERHAS R AEERS BN
Koo Bl - EBURTERERD BRIEZ
ARBENEEEEHTAEHELS -

BleRBESHY

Structured bank deposit products are principal guaranteed
investments with floating rate of return with a maturity period.
The contractual terms of the structured bank deposits products
give rise on specified dates to cash flows are not SPPI on the
principal amount outstanding. Accordingly, the structured bank
deposit products are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

R+—-—A=+—8
As at 31 December

2021 2020

ARW¥T I ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

R RIRITHAEH Cash and bank balances 13,926,958 10,679,414
AR RMB 13,869,695 10,364,563
BT Hong Kong dollar 57,182 314,718
ETT United States dollar 81 133
B ZREIRITER Less: Restricted bank deposits (228,720) (366,955)
ReERBLZED Cash and cash equivalents 13,698,238 10,312,459

RREHR - AEBMUARBHENERES
MiRTTHE S5 A AREE13,869,695,000
T(ZEZZEF+-A=+—H: AR¥
10,364,563,0007T) - AR B R L
BAEMEY R REPBEAMA
CONEBIRIEH) R(HEME - &SR REE
BT NEBEESBEREETI
EEBHRITEARELRSEMER -

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB13,869,695,000 (31 December 2020: RMB10,364,563,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorized to conduct foreign
exchange business.
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25. BleRBESEY (8) 25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

RITREENETARITERFEKAZHH
TET B o RITHSF AT B B2 4
LNEBREMNRT - RERREEHEY
MEmERE AR EERE -

RRBEEBNRE @ AEBETARZEAR
WamEEECKEEE (—RBAI=
H—% DHRETARBYEERNET
BITIRE - FRFIE S RAEEEBHEBR
T B PIAE 1 AR A S 1 AR W) 35 9 2 2K
KoeRZTEZ—F+=-_A=+—H " &=
ZREIRS S EE A ARE198,410,0007T
—ET-_FF : AR¥352263,0007T) °
ZRHEBITFERABIER=_E_—F+=
A=+—HB&8E A ARY5,490,0007T
—E-TF : ARM4,713,0007T) &
RARDERZENBEREFRESLERE
RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H&EAA
[R#1562,000 (T -_FF : ARK
2,898,0007T ) MR AR IR € %] B 28
HEME® -

RZE-_—F+_A=+—H " AR
#23,268,000 (=TT F : ARK
7,081,0007T ) K ERIT1F 3R E BE AN & [ — [
WBARGSENSLRE M EEMEERE
AR A& HEIRIERBIELR

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of
the cash and cash equivalents approximated to their fair values.

In accordance with relevant government requirements, certain
companies of the Group are required to place the amounts
received from the SOE Reform Projects, commonly known as
the “Three Supplies and Property Management Projects”, in
designated bank accounts for the constructions of the related
properties. The restricted cash can only be used for payments
for construction costs of the relevant properties when approval
from the related government authority has been obtained.
As at 31 December 2021, such restricted cash amounted to
RMB198,410,000 (2020: RMB352,263,000). The restricted bank
deposits also included cash of RMB5,490,000 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB4,713,000) received from property owners that
is restricted to use in construction of properties and cash of
RMB1,562,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB2,898,000)
restricted to use for projects managed on commission basis.

Bank deposits of RMB23,258,000 were deposited as security as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB7,081,000), for the brokerage
service and residential property management services conducted
by a subsidiary of the Group.
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26. B 5 MK

2021 2020

26. TRADE PAYABLES

W+=—A=+—8H
As at 31 December

AR T0 ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

E S RE Trade payables
B 5 (f1:£33) Related parties (note 33) 119.295 119,104
£=5 Third parties 719,820 581,274
839.115 700,378

BHRNFRAENER R HNRRE D0

T

2021 2020

date is as follows:

W+=-—A=+—H

As at 31 December

ARWET I ARETT

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice

RMB’000 RMB'000

1R Within 1 year 763,544 659,255
1226 1 to 2 years 54,079 20,248
2E3%F 2 to 3 years 12,617 19,948
3FLE Over 3 years 8.875 927
839,115 700,378

B RMNFARELR - 28 R—KR1N0

RNKETS °

normally settled within 90 days.

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and are

213



914 —Z=——4EH%s ANNUAL REPORT 2021

A T R B
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. A HEA % 0 B ME T8 H 27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

W+=—A=+—8H

As at 31 December

2021 2020

ARHTo0 ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000
HAb P RIB R EETE A Other payables and accruals
R 5 (H12£33) Related parties (note 33) 316,061 245,470
B=5 Third parties 1,496,602 1,678,726
1.812,663 1,924,196
ENEHe Salaries payable 867.608 640,457
BNERAR 155 B & LA SNA JFE (S B8 18 Tax payables other than current income
tax liabilities 127,042 100,569
2,807,313 2,665,222
ENE=ZANEMENFIBEREASERR Other payables and accruals with third parties are unsecured,
I R B REREREER - IEEN non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand. All other payables
BTN EMENFRIBEREE - FHERM with related parties are interest-free, details of which are
FE333HE - disclosed in note 33.
EBRNE=ZARERER-ZZ=—F+= The amount due to third parties includes the payable related
A=+—HH# FIJLEAZEIEE J1(HM$5E25) to “SOE Reform Projects” (note 25) of RMB198,410,000 as at
A Eﬁ FEH FIE A R #198,410,000 7T 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB352,263,000) and
(ZE-FEF+-A=Z+—H: AR¥ the payable related to construction of properties on behalf of
352,263, 00075) ERZZT-_—%+=A property owners of RMB5,490,000 as at 30 December 2021 (31
ST -HEARETIERMERMNEN December 2020: RMB4,713,000).

FIBARES,490,000 0 (—E-TF+—
A=+—H8 : AR¥4,713,0007C) °
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28.

29.

il B 8T A £

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

REBSEITEENIKRSIFHBHNNDOT - Details of the terms of the Group's bank borrowings as set out

below:

2021 2020

TR (%) M ARWTL ERFE%) WA AR®TR
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
RITER Bank loans kg SFCCH R  ZF=Z-F
—BER - unsecured DESiY-S EESS
+0.05> +1.65
—-Fikge
GEL7Y-S
+1.65
HIBOR+0.65- 2022 301,249 HIBOR+1.65 2021 521,815
HIBOR +1.65
R-EBE-—F+=-A=+—H  F&£H As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings
RITIEE LR AR ¥S801,249,0007T amounting to RMB801,249,000 (31 December 2020:
—E_EF+_A=1+—"HH: AR® RMB521,815,000) are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. CR
521,815,0007T) LA B TTEHE © IZRR B Land and China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH")
EXRMEZER  EEHEMLERER) are required to hold, directly or indirectly, not less than 51% and
BRAR(TEHEE]) ERZEFAR 35%, respectively, of the issued share capital of the Company
TESHNEEXEEZEFETLRE1% K& at any time during the period of the loan in accordance with the

35%MARRAIE BT o
AR

terms of the respective loan agreements.

29. SHARE CAPITAL

R+=ZA=+—8
As at 31 December

2021 2020

ARH T8 ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR ¢ Authorised:
5,000,000,000 ( —ZFE =_F4F : 5,000,000,000 (2020: 5,000,000,000)

5,000,000,0004% ) &A% E{E ordinary shares of US$ 0.00001 each

0.00001% T2 E @A 338 338
BEITRETE Issued and fully paid:
2,282,500,000 ( —ZE - F : 2,282,500,000 (2020: 2,282,500,000)

2,282,500,000/% ) &A% E & ordinary shares at US$ 0.00001 each

0.00001% 7T 2 & B 152 152
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30. Gk

REBRAFERERMFENFHERER

EBPNUBRENGAEREDRE

REBN A GHE RS S EIREE
THHBARS R A EHEEKRE
BB RES TORBA TN
REZFENESRE -

REPEIBDDEREEARZEBLZ
MEER  RPBEEMNEQRA
EB10%RETEARSERE
R RB RSN ERTE BARHE
HEEFIEMEANL0% BLE - 8
BREZFRRANRABRELBRED
IRAT{EH ©

EERBRBEATALE  KiFR
B H B BOE G A EE TR
MR - AT AERE R BB RE
AR RAAS] o

30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the paid-up share
capital of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group
and the consideration paid by the Group for the business
combination under common control.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
respective articles of association of the group companies,
each of the companies that is domiciled in the PRC
is required to allocate 10% of its profit after tax, as
determined in accordance with PRC GAAP, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before the distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

The statutory surplus reserve is non-distributable except
that in the event of liquidation where it can be used to
offset accumulated losses or be capitalised as paid-up
capital, subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant
PRC regulations.
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31. HAB R RN 31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF CASH FLOWS
(A) Rl 5 Bh 2 A i B AR A ) (A) CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Hit B E HEEE TEER

Interest-bearing

Other payables Lease liabilities borrowings

ARETT ARETR AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZE-_—F—F—H At 1 January 2021 225,073 1,382,372 521,815

HELEREED Changes from financing cash flows (220.636) (125,064) 321,080

FER% Interest expense - 66,427 -

Hi 3R e 28 Other non-cash movements 40,009 34,735 -

ERSE) Foreign exchange rate changes - - (41,646)

RZE-—F+-H=+—H At31 December 2021 44,446 1.358.470 301,249

R=ZE-ZF—-A—H At 1 January 2020 761,833 1,304,555 =

BERSREEF Changes from financing cash flows (748,384) (95,464) 542,345

AR Interest expense 5,419 66,710 -
KEEAABNECovid-1948  Covid-19-related rent concessions

ANHEES from lessors = (7,468) -

HiteRie 29 Other non-cash movements 206,205 114,039 -

[EREE) Foreign exchange rate changes - - (20,530)

RZZ-F&+-F=1—F At 31 December 2020 225,073 1,382,372 521,815
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31. A BLe T R R W (4]) 31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(B) FHEE B H A% (B) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES

AR S RERAMAERSRLR The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement
BT : of cash flows is as follows:

HE+T-_A=+T—HILLEFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARHTo0 ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000
IRSEEN Within operating activities 42,760 25,591
BEEEN Within financing activities 125,064 95,464
167.824 121,055

BE_ZTZ-_—F+_-_A=+—H ((1) The Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets

EFE AEEEHEEHAEEE
FHEREHRRSENAARRE
50,663,000 (ZF=FF+= A
=+—H8: AK®114,039,000
) °

and lease liabilities of RMB50,563,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB114,039,000).
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32. 7%k

AEEBITHERNGA M EHRERPIED
BB EARAENT

32. COMMITMENTS

The Group has following material commitments which are
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements:

HE+T-_A=+T—HILLEFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARHTo0 ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

BBEUTHEHENEARMY : Capital expenditure in respect of:
—EEITR — Construction in progress 17,838 30,773
—ME - BEKRE - Property, plant and equipment - 192,498
17.838 223,271

33. BB 53 B B A bk
(1) BRIy B4 4 76 K% B 13
BIERAT ATEERY  HEE
BRATBEEEM -
(2) BB 5 AL 5
BB AT A S S

5h o ARERAFEE RMBT#
TATRS :

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES
(1) NAME AND RELATIONSHIP WITH A RELATED
PARTY

The ultimate holding company is CRCL and the immediate
holding company is CR Land.

(2) TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
the financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:
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33. BHIBE 75 52 By B ik ()

(2) BRBBT 032 5 (A1)

(a)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(2) TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

(continued)

(a)

BET-ZA=T—RILEE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARWET I ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEMFEER KILERS Residential property management and
value-added services
MEEERY Property management services
—BIRERA B R - The ultimate holding company and its
HETB AR ([FEBEE ) subsidiaries (the “CRH Group”), and
REMEAREAEDE its associates and joint ventures
(TREEHEMEE) (excluding the CR Land Group) 38,175 31,894
—ERERARRENBAR] - The immediate holding company and its
([EHEMER]) - subsidiaries (the “CR Land Group"),
BECERBE QR joint venture and associates 229,482 244,458
267,657 276,352
KRIEE T RILERS Value-added services to non-property
owners
—EBHEBRAKE N AR - The CRH Group and its associates and
BECE(TREEE joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
EMEE) Group) 1,123 9,263
—EHEMERREBZ A AFE - The CR Land Group and its associates
BELE and joint ventures 765,355 547,918
766,478 557,181
KRE AL ERS Value-added services for property owners
—EHEERERE AR HE - The CRH Group and its associates and
BEPE(TRIEER joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
BER) Group) 454 509
—EPBMEERHBEAFE - The CR Land Group and its associates
&b and joint ventures 68,921 24,614
69,375 25,123
PEEMENEEEL R Commercial operational and property
MEEEREERE management and operational services for
commercial properties
—EREE R ERE AR H — The CRH Group and its associates and
BECE(TREEE joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
EinsE) Group) 60,541 23,522
—EHFMEENHBELAFE - The CR Land Group and its associates
AR and joint ventures 1,560,726 1,215,554

1,621,267

1,239,076




#ERHBRAESM /AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited 2]

AR S I

i 2l
33. BT 3 5 Ko & Bk (%) 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(2) EBRPREE WAL 5 (4]) (2) TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
(continued)
(@ (%) (a) (continued)

BET-_A=+—HILEFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARWT L ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HRYENYEEE RS Property management services for
office properties
- EHEENEBENRHE - The CRH Group and its associates and
AEPE(TBEEHEL joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
£8) Group) 214,576 192,850
—EHEWEEREBZ A AAE - The CR Land Group and its
EEE associates and joint ventures 505,422 268,429
719,998 461,279
BEERERE Purchases of goods and services
—EREEREBRE AT — The CRH Group and its associates and
BEBET Il%ﬁifﬂ joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
EMEE) Group) 59,039 64,949
—EHBMEBNEBENRE - The CR Land Group and its
BEDLE associates and joint ventures 192,262 260,903
251,301 325,852
BEME  BEME Purchases of property, plant and equipment
—EHEHNEER - The CR Land Group and its associates
HBMENrEHAERE and joint ventures 261,901 -
BEEVEE Purchases of intangible assets
—EHEHEER - The CR Land Group and its associates

HEt& N\ RIESG P and joint ventures 116,007 =
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33. BT A 5 B4 Bk () 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(2) BB RS (H) (2) TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
(continued)
(@ (&) (a)  (continued)

BET-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARWT L ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEHZ Interest expenses
- EBHEENEBE AR HE - The CRH Group and its associates and
BELE(TREEHE joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
EinEE) Group) 22 2,942
—EHEMEER - The CR Land Group and its
HEENmHEaEhE associates and joint ventures 3,160 =
3,182 2,942
EHBMIREBRARER Repayments from China Resources Land
Investment Limited - (1,704,507)
AT B Advances to related parties
—ERERNERE AR H - The CRH Group and its associates and
BECE(TBEEE joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
Ei&E) Group) - 1,204,213
—Z=HEMERNR - The CR Land Group and its associates
HBE AR HEE 8% and joint ventures - 475,937
- 1,680,150
B g Repayments from related parties
—EBHEBNEBE AR H - The CRH Group and its associates and
BECE(TREEE joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
Ein&E) Group) - 1,661,999
—EHEMEER — The CR Land Group and its associates
HEE A REAE0E and joint ventures - 494,403

2,056,402
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33. BT 3 5 B 4 Bk (A1)
(2) BB HAE 5 (5

@ (&)

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(2) TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

(continued)
(@) (continued)

BET-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARWTIL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
) B Advances from related parties
- EBHEENEBE AR HE - The CRH Group and its associates and
BECE(TRIEER joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
EinEE) Group) - 1,427,966
—EHEMEER - The CR Land Group and its associates
HEENmHEaEhE and joint ventures - 412,737
- 1,840,703
BlizlcRap Repayments to related parties
- EHEENEBRE AR HE - The CRH Group and its associates and
BETE(TRIEER joint ventures (excluding
BER) the CR Land Group) - 1,688,666
—EHEMEER - The CR Land Group and its associates
HBe N rEeE Mt and joint ventures - 587,133
- 2,275,799
CHABEERE Additions of right-of-use assets
—EREBRAMKE N AR - The CRH Group and its associates and
BELETBEREER joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
EHEE) Group) 387 =
—EHEHNEER - The CR Land Group and its associates
HEE N rEEE 0% and joint ventures 18,873 62,984

19,260 62,984
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33. BB )T AR 5 B & ok (481)

(a)

(&)

ez -

a)

b)

c)

R EBRTR G FRAF]
([EBRTT]  BALEELFEZH
NI

RZFEZ—F+=ZHA=+4—
H B RRTEBEFENE
BEHREZEBRITOGEAAR
#% 415,600,000 T ( = £ = F
F+ZA=Z+—H: @ AR¥
244,435,000T) ° BilE = F = —
F+-—A=+—HILFE Z=Z
FARELBEFERABARK
246,000t (ZE=FF+=H
=+—H : AR#¥59,0007T) °

BE-—F-—F+=-HA=4+—
BILFE  BBELAABZ A
ERHEEETEAT(=F=
FEFE+-_A=+—H: NR¥
31,398,0007T) °

H—_E_FF—H—HFEF_F
Z—FF+ZA=+—HIf  E%E
BEE#EEEHEBEBNE S

LRI E R E MR 5 HER IR
RAT #4977 KR R E RO IR REERE

Eit A% % 5 (R e ER & A
70) T AR B S T % b T AR BB

14AT R E R BIER 5 R RS
%5 -

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

a)

b)

c)

Deposits with Zhuhai China Resources Bank Co., Ltd. (“"CR
Bank”), a fellow subsidiary of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, cash and bank balances included
deposits of RMB415,600,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB244,435,000) which were made by the Group to CR
Bank. The aggregate interest income arising from such
deposits amounted to RMB246,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB59,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the employee
salaries of Mixc Commercial paid on behalf by related parties
were nil (31 December 2020: RMB31,398,000).

From 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2021, the Group was
entitled to use some trademarks of CRH Group for free.

The prices for the above service fees and other transactions
were determined in accordance with the terms mutually
agreed by the contracted parties.

The related party transactions listed above excluding
addition of lease liabilities also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing of the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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33. BT A 5 B4 Bk () 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(3) BB 7 45 8% (3) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

BET-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARWTIL AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JE W B B 5 3R0R Receivables from related parties
B 5 FENGRIE ] FE IR 1R Trade and bill receivables
—EHEEREHE R HE — The CRH Group and its associates and
RELE(TEEER joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
B RE) Group) 71,541 18,409
—EHEMEBREBZEATE - The CR Land Group and its associates
AL and joint ventures 639,464 582,503
711,005 600,912
H At W R IE Other receivables
—EREE AR A RN - The CRH Group and its associates and
RECE(TEEER joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
B KE) Group) 31,727 23,663
—EHEMEBREREATE  —The CR Land Group and its associates
AEER(TREEE and joint ventures (excluding China
BB BERRAF) Resources Land Investment Limited) 404,491 395,489
436,218 419,152
TafrtzE Prepayments
—EREERERE AR N - The CRH Group and its associates and
BELE(TEEER joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
Eﬂﬂ%) Group) 340 72
—EHEMEER — The CR Land Group and its associates
ABENARGERR and joint ventures 112,08 101,049
112,421 101,121

REEME MERZEDNES Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant
and equipment
—EHEHNEER — The CR Land Group and its associates
HEERNRAIEGE and joint ventures - 82,498
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(3) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

(continued)

33. BT A 5 B ()
(3) BEBIWT 5500 ()

BET-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

A R 8 AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JE{S R 75 FRIR Payables to related parties
B SRR Trade payables
—¥/F1%@&,ﬁ\ﬂ§ﬁ‘&“ - The CRH Group and its associates and
ﬁ:\ﬁ(Tﬁﬁiﬂ joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
ﬁiﬂ%) Group) 37,746 26,819
—EHENEER - The CR Land Group and its associates
HBERmEQERR and joint ventures 81,549 92,285
119,295 119,104
H At FE(T3RIE Other payables
—EREERARE AT - The CRH Group and its associates and
A%ﬁ%(T@?ﬁiﬂ joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
B RE) Group) 21,149 7,567
—EHEMEER — The CR Land Group and its associates
HEENRESEE and joint ventures 294.912 Lo
316,061 245,470
cR&E Contract liabilities
—EREEREBRE AT - The CRH Group and its associates and
A%ﬁ%(T@ﬁiﬂEﬂﬂ joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
£E) Group) 2,812 183
—EHEMEBRHEBEARE - The CR Land Group and its associates
AEhE and joint ventures 54,257 11,030

57,069

11,213
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33. BB Iy 28 B B 4t b () 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(3) BB I Oy B & A (4] (3) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

(continued)

BET-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

2021 2020

ARWTE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HERBRMZN) Lease liabilities (Note (i)
—EHEEREHE A R HE - The CRH Group and its associates and
RELE(TEREER joint ventures (excluding the CR Land
Etﬁl%) Group) 382 -
—EHEMEERR - The CR Land Group and its associates
HEpENmEaehE and joint ventures 48,413 73,875
48,795 73,875
(i) ERX - HEMNMSIEANERE K (i) The lease payment during the year amounted to
24,405,0007T - R = F = —F RMB24,405,000. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's right-
+—A=+—H ZXEFEHEZ of-use assets relating to such rental contracts amounted to
EHEARMEBEZ EHELE RMB40,402,000 (31 December 2020: RMB68,045,000).

A B H#40,402,0007T (= F =
THFE+—HA=+—H: ARK
68,045,0007T) °
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34. WM S 0y 4k TR 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
FHEEMTER T -_—FR-_ZT-TF The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
REBREMEWT - instruments as at the end of 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

SREE REIEKATTENERERE
Financial assets at

Financial Assets amortised cost
R+=ZA=+—8

As at 31 December

2021 2020

AR¥ET I ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5N EIE N EWEE Trade and bill receivables 1,051,544 826,041
FIAFERFRIE - EfbEUWFRIE K Financial assets included in prepayments,

HEtEENESREE other receivables and other assets 639,177 669,972
ZRRFIRI T Restricted bank deposits 228,720 366,955
REMRESEZEY Cash and cash equivalents 13,698,238 10,312,459
TE BTER Time deposits 2,474,608 =
RAARBEFEAEZFHTA Financial assets at fair value through

ERERNEemEE profit or loss - 3,847,810

18,092,287 16,023,237
SRBE REEKATENSRAE
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Rt=A=+—8

As at 31 December

2021 2020

ARH T ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

E S RE Trade payables 839.115 700,378
B E b FE A 7108 Financial liabilities included in other

ErrEANSREaE payables and accruals 1,782,812 1,879,932

HEBRE Lease liabilities 1,358,470 1,382,372

sHEIRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 801,249 521,815

4,781,646 4,484,497
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RzETERMEI R MEE -

AEERHH(AERMHEERE)ARE
EEMITARABEFENERERER -
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EHERREEGREN AR BEIERE
F o EERB ST HEEENLNTA
WA EGNARRERRRRERE
Mt - RZEZ—FRZZTZTF+=
A=+—8 BAXRSEB@EG ERITRE
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EEBSRAEBR AT China Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited

. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, financial assets included in prepayments and
other receivables, and trade and bill receivables, trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the chief financial
officer is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each
reporting date, the finance manager analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of structured bank deposits, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China, have been estimated within Level 2 using a discounted
cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates of
instruments with similar terms and risks.

The fair values of time deposits, lease liabilities have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as
a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 were assessed to be insignificant.
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36. 4l B 4T P H B K BUR 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AEENFTESRIATFEREEREHE
%%E%ﬁ%mx@ﬂﬁﬁfm ﬁi&
ReEHEEY  BHRHEMEWRIE - E5
N EL A RS RRIA $EIW%EE@iﬂ
BENBE WEERAE  ENEBT X
EREREB T HRIE - ZEEMITANT
ZENERRAEENEBEEES o

AEESBITASIBMNEZER BT ER

%%H CEERBERESESR
% o BE - AEERBEREEFRRBERST
%%oﬁ%$%lm&$ﬂ fEERIE
REBWE AR B NmMEREMITET
BEREMTE - AEBETELAR S B HF
ARETITESRTAE - EESEMER
SEESEZSRBMKE - HEBEH
manT

AEEEBRAFRER T ERREENE
KB - AERBEKZH R LERGHRR
BRI 28T R - NEBAMEET A
HEFREREROFE -

REBRFETHEERONERR - NE
E%Eﬁﬁ%if/qu ﬁﬁﬂ&a&ﬂ%ﬁk
B o

RZTE=-_—F+=-A=+—8 " fHAEH
fmﬁi N R FH N AAS0E AR
BIAREEREE T -—F+-_HA=+—
B 1EF S B BR B AT S AR 418 A
R#4,006,000L(ZT=_ZTF : AR
2,609,0007T) °

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly include
restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, which arise directly
from its operations. The Group has other financial assets and
liabilities such as lease liabilities, amounts due to related parties
and amounts due from related parties. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on
its risk management. To keep the Group's exposure to these
risks to a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and
other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below:

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to the
Group's borrowings. The interest rates and terms of repayment
of the Group's borrowings are disclosed in note 28 to the
financial statements. The Group's policy is to obtain the most
favourable interest rates available for its borrowings.

The Group constantly assesses the interest rate risk it
encounters to decide whether it is required to hedge against the
possible interest rate risk that may arise.

As at 31 December 2021, if interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit before tax for the year ended 31 December
2021 would have been RMB4,006,000 lower/higher (2020:
RMB2,609,000).
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AEEHEISEERR - ZERBRKE
EEEMANEEERAINERETE

= o
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TERAENR AR EE 2 UK -

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the Group's sensitivity at the
end of each year to a reasonably possible change in the HK$ and
US$ exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax.

ST ST &
L7t/ (F#%)

BB i ik A
Bom, (W)

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in

HKS$/USS$ rate
% AREEFTT

in profit
before tax

% RMB'000

T —F+=ZA=1+—H 31 December 2021
i AR WA If RMB weakens against HK$ 5 37,203
i NREE R BT AHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ (5) (37,203)
HMARHZTlE If RMB weakens against US$ 5 4
i AREE R ETTHAE If RMB strengthens against US$ (5) 4)

—EZTF+=ZA=1+—H 31 December 2020
W ARE R BTiE If RMB weakens against HK$ 5 10,353
i AR HABTTAE If RMB strengthens against HK$ (5) (10,353)
MARBHETEE If RMB weakens against US$ 5 7
W AR ETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ (5) (7)

15 £ b CREDIT RISK

AEEREBESREFARERRE B
KSR  RekREFEEBYRFZRH
ROFFAREERR

AEERRYEERS RRSFBYWAR
XRHRTEFREENENEERR - B
REBFEEEZFHNEERITREMAK
R EHRTT - ERERAETERZE
RHGBUFTIBROMRIEMEARERX °

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade and bill
receivables and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank deposits.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash and cash equivalents and restricted
bank deposits since they are substantially deposited at state-
owned banks and other medium or large-sized listed banks.
Management does not expect that there will be any significant
losses from non-performance by these counterparties.
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36. 4 B 4% B H B B BOR (41) 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

o B LB (4

AEETRHEE FRUGRIA K EKRERIA
K e REEsE T e E R IR B AR E B
REBREIE - AR B RANENIRE
HBRETARRERERT

AEEERARBEERFNE=THETT
R5 - EERRETREREF X 5Y
FOSITETER - AR AEENE SR
R TR e FE M R 4 DA B EL A R MR IR
FERBEZDE > Rt ARERHEE
SPRRLTERX © boh  AEBEFREE
W IRRE S o

EA—g:_qE&—?—?qi—i— H

=t+-BNESRERRFRERR
TRITR-BF_—FR_F_FTF+_

A=+— EE?EAZISE@FEB(#%E’M*EE
ZREREERR(ZEENBHMEN
BRIFEDR iﬁy&$‘}2%¥ﬁﬁﬂ—ﬁ§ SHME
AR FERMEREDE - 270N E
BEREREEMNRERAE -

AND POLICIES (continued)
CREDIT RISK (continued)

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade and
bill receivables and other receivables due from related parties to
be low, since the related parties have strong capacity to meet
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

The Group trades only with recognised and credit worthy third
parties. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by analysis by
customer/counterparty. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group's trade and bill receivables and other receivables are
widely dispersed. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2021 and 2020

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

WA

REZFZ—4+ZA=1+—H fiftla B 1 UM BN S0 1L

12-month
As at 31 December 2021 ECLs

Lifetime ECLs
BEREB i Sk
Simplified
Stage 3 approach

ARMBETE ARWTE ARWTE ARBTL ARWTL
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

%’%FEJ&MIE&FELI&Z =42+ Trade and bill receivables* - -
CIYNEGE S Financial assets included in

1,051,544 1,051,544

ﬁ’rlﬂJ?ELIQTAIE& prepayments, other receivables and
HinZENSREE other assets
= ek - Normal** 639,177 - - - 639,177

BB RITFER Restricted bank deposits

— AR - Not yet past due 228,720 - - - 228,720
Re kAL EED Cash and cash equivalents

— MR - Not yet past due 13,698,238 - - - 13,098,238
EHER Time deposits

— HAEH - Not yet past due 2,474,608 - - - 2,474,608

17,040,743 - - 1,051,544 18,092,287
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o B LB (4

R-EBE-_—FR-ZE-ZF+H
=S+—HNBRERBRFRMERER

(%)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

CREDIT RISK (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at

31 December 2021 and 2020 (continued)

REZZR4EHZA=T—H

As at 31 December 2020

+ =M A B
fri Bl 41 Rl 7 W BUN A Bl 41
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs

R B BERB i %

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 3 approach
ARETRE ARETL ARBTE ARETR AR%TRL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

BHRNFARERRE

Trade and bill receivables*

826,041 826,041

FIAFERFIE - Financial assets included in

H b el 708 I prepayments, other receivables and

HtBEENSRERE other assets

—ER** - Normal** 669,972 - - - 669,972
SRR Restricted bank deposits

— A - Not yet past due 366,955 - - - 366,955
BeRASEEN Cash and cash equivalents

— WA - Not yet past due 10,312,459 - - - 10,312,459

11,349,386 - - 826,041 12,175,427
* AR EEEFE G LT RERNE S @ For trade and bill receivables to which the Group applies the

WHBERERRZENE  BREEERE
BB BRI K522

** FUABENFIE - R ERABREME *x
EREmMEEMNEEEXFETEDNA
TEEHNBE AR BEENZERR
B HHE TR A E XI5 18 I B 342 75 [ IE
Flo BRI eBEEMSEERERS

[FET5E]

simplified approach for impairment, information based on the
provision matrix is disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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36. 4k e 1 H B R BOR (45) 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AEEASKELERBEBTIREER -
BERERTAHNERRENEEETUARE
NEHREHK NGB L AT RE
T MAESEEENESEMER 7
AIHETT ©

AEENBRETHEERDESHTER
HRELSEETHEERFENSRE - BREE
HAMNAESHRERMEZSREBIG
MW AEEERE - UEMEREHRR
RHENRBESF R

TRINTREFRAKEITESRARE
T ARZIMER  ERARARMEAR
EnE(BEERS R EL(WNRFEEF
R)ERHERRNBITHRFAENFE
5 RAKBE A ER BRI NN B
H o

AND POLICIES (continued)

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by management and
directors when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of each year of the Group's non-derivative financial
liabilities, based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
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36. 4l b By 45 B H B K B8O (%) 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Uit Bl 4 R e (7)) LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

1ENE
R : 5 Hat

Within
1 year or

on demand yea Total

ARBETFE ARMTE ARMTLE ARBTLT ARWTL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ZZ-—%+-A=+—H 31 December 2021

HERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 806,156 - - - 806,156
HEARE Lease liabilities 143,876 109,687 292,983 1,619,547 2,165,393
BN HE Trade payables 839,115 - - - 839,115
Bl NE B 1 5E K Financial liabilities included in other

EirEANSRAR payables and accruals 1,782,812 - - - 1,782,812

3,571,959 109,687 292,283 1,619.547 5,593,476

(B
BBk

Within
1 year or
on demand

ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETRL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

“T-ZF+-F=+—H 31 December 2020

STERTER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 534,042 - - - 534,042
HEBE Lease liabilities 128,864 115,623 282,150 1,710,803 2,237,440
B SR FIE Trade payables 700,378 = = - 700,378
Bl NE B (TR K Financial liabilities included in other

EAERNERAR payables and accruals 1,879,932 = = - 1,879,932

3,243,216 115,623 282,150 1,710,803 5,351,792
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36.

Zx v R, B 4 P H B B 8O ()
B B

AEEEEEER  URRASERNER
BREDETRERE  WEBEBLEBE
B FERRREREA@IE o

ARREBEFERNBBEEEELE(R
BABRABEE)  FRENKRARE
SRENERNER - AREREBES
MEFMERREEGMFEHEREARR
B YERAREEELR - AEEMNE
BRBNFREFIE -

RZE-——FR-_T-_TERNAEFHEE
ELERINT :

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The directors of the Company review the liability-to-asset ratio,
which is total liabilities divided by total assets, on a continuous
basis, taking into account the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the raising of new debts as well
as the redemption of the existing debts, and manage the liability
to asset ratio. The Group's overall strategy remained unchanged
during the year.

The liability-to-asset ratios at the end of 2021 and 2020 are as
follows:

W+=-—A=+—8H

As at 31 December

2021 2020

AREETE ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BEE Total assets 21,591,922 19,075,954
HEefE Total liabilities 7,702,897 6,612,922
BEREELX Liability-to-asset ratio 35.7% 34.7%
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37.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Except as disclosed elsewhere of the consolidated financial
information, the Group had following significant events
subsequent to 31 December, 2021:

(a)

On 5 January 2022, Runying, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a share transfer agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Tianjin Yujia Life Service Company
Limited (the “Proposed Vendor”), a third party independent
of Runying, pursuant to which Runying agreed to acquire,
and the Proposed Vendor agreed to sell, the entire
registered capital in Yuzhou Property Service Company
Limited (“Yuzhou Property”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Proposed Vendor, at a consideration of RMB1,058
million.

As at the date of this report, the acquisition under the
Agreement has been completed and Runying has paid an
amount of RMB583 million of the consideration.

On 20 January 2022, Super Honour, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer
agreement (the “Agreement”) with HongKong Rainbow
Property Limited and HongKong Lehuo Property Limited
(the “Proposed Vendors”), both being third parties
independent of Super Honour, pursuant to which Super
Honour agreed to acquire, and the Proposed Vendors
agreed to sell, the entire equity interests in Nantong
Changle Property Co., Limited and 1% of the equity
interests in Jiangsu Zhongnan Property Services Co.,
Ltd., both being wholly-owned subsidiary of the Proposed
Vendors, respectively, at a consideration of approximately
RMB2,260 million, subject to price adjustment but in any
event will not exceed RMB2,260 million.

As at the date of this report, the acquisition under the
Agreement has not been completed.

The Company entered into an uncommitted revolving loan
facility in an aggregate amount up to RMB1,000,000,000
with a bank on 23 March 2022.
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38. AR H| W HE RO 38. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
BREARNARREARTBEMR AR ZER N Information about the statement of financial position of the
T Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Rt=A=+—8

As at 31 December

2021 2020

ARH T ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSET
KRB RAFNIKE Investment in a subsidiary 158 158
IEmBEESLE Total non-current asset 158 158
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
Be kR EEY Cash and cash equivalents 7,837,372 7,881,538
FERFTE RS REMEWFIE  Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables 4,484,914 4,423,665
mBEERE Total current assets 12,322,286 12,305,203
REBERE CURRENT LIABILITIES
H b ERIB K EE B Other payables and accruals 46,067 161,138
EHEX Short-term loans 801,249 521,815
BB ERE Total current liabilities 847,316 682,953
mEBEEFHE NET CURRENT ASSETS 11,474,970 11,622,250
REERREBAES TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES 11,475,128 11,622,408
FBEE NET ASSETS 11,475,128 11,622,408
s EQUITY
A&7 Share capital 152 152
H b &8 (PR 5E) Other reserves (note) 11,474,976 11,622,256

B Total equity 11,475,128 11,622,408
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38. AR MR (4])

38. STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

BiRE - Note:
RARZHEHEHEENOT : A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
JBe 3 i R & Bk
Share premium Retained profits Total
ARBT T ARETT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-ZE-_ZTF—HF—H At 1 January 2020 - (30) (30)
FREN Profit for the year - 416,658 416,658
FREZEWRERE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 416,658 416,658
BITREG Issuance of shares 11,857,187 - 11,857,187
R 1D B 1T R AN Share issuance costs (216,770) = (216,770)
AR BT’ Capitalisation issue of shares (23) _ (23)
MEBATBERKESK Dividends declared by the
AR S subsidiaries to the then
shareholders - (434,766) (434,766)
R-ZZE_ZTF+_-A At 31 December 2020 and
=+—HBK 1 January 2021
—E-—%—Af—H 11,640,394 (18,138) 11,622,256
FRmA Profit for the year - 152,797 152,797
FREEWZEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 152,797 152,797
“ECTEREKE Final dividend for 2020 - (300,077) (300,077)
N-ZTE=-—F+=A4 At 31 December 2021
=Ll 11,640,394 (165,418) 11,474,976
39. bk WK 39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR RERER—_E-_—FE=A=

SEHERBETIE -

+REE The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 30 March 2022.

23¢

)



—E-—#EHRE ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

ERES

Yozk

BRBL AT A
FrgBif

FRRT

AT AL
BRREAA
FeER s

e MR

FRBEE

mBEE

mBAR
RBEE/(Af)FE
BEERRDAR
FRBaE

BEFE

e g

=+

3
BRAIEA AR

(LN
i

FEE R as

EF Atk

Consolidated results

Revenue

Profit before tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Consolidated financial position

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets/(liabilities)

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Equity
Equity attributable to owners of
the parent

Share capital
Reserve

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

5,561,773
16,030,149
6,079,062
9,951,087
15,612,860
1,623,835

13,889,025

162
13,887,728

13,887,880
1,145

13,889,025

2020

ARETT
RMB'000

6,778,911

1,134,926
(317,216)

817,710

817,170

2020

ARBTT
RMB'000

2,744,185
16,331,769
5,055,330
11,276,439
14,020,624
1,657,692

12,463,032

152
12,462,880

12,463,032

12,463,032

2019
AREFT
RMB’000
5,868,103

496,508
(131,580)

364,928

364,928

2019
ARETT
RMB'000
2,478,121
4,623,157
4,637,347
(14,190)
2,463,931
1,432,347

1,031,684

88
1,031,496

1,031,584

1,031,684

2018
YN
RMB000

4,431,727

571,965
(149,047)

422,918

422,918

2018

ARBTT
RMB'000

2,381,662
3,359,952
3,685,102

(325,150)
2,056,512
1,389,856

666,656

88
666,568

666,656

666,656

2017

ARETT
RMB'000

3,129,425

516,162
(127,819)

388,343

388,343

2017

AREFT
RMB’000

1,915,295
1,965,494
2,250,436

(284,942)
1,630,353
1,315,895

314,458

88
314,370

314,458

314,458
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